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CHOOSE THE NICHE THAT YOU ENJOY, WHERE YOU CAN EXCEL AND 
STAND A CHANCE OF BECOMING AN ACKNOWLEDGED LEADER
-RICHARD KOCH

AT CONCORD, GROWTH 
IS A TESTIMONY TO 

OUR RICH EXPERTISE, OUR 
STRATEGIC INTELLECT, 
OUR UNWAVERING EFFORT 
AND ORGANISATIONAL 
RESILIENCE TO DELIVER 
BETTER THAN BEFORE.

AS WE STEP INTO A PERIOD 
OF VAST OPPORTUNITIES, 
UNLOCKING NEW AVENUES 
OF GROWTH, WE REMAIN 
STRONGLY INSPIRED TO 
SUSTAIN OUR MOMENTUM 
AND ESTABLISH 
CONCORD AS A FORCE 
TO RECKON WITH IN THE 
FERMENTATION SPACE.

OUR FIRST ANNUAL REPORT (POST LISTING) IS A NARRATIVE OF HOW WE ARE PERFECTLY POISED TO 
MAKE THE BEST OF A BIG OPPORTUNITY THAT IS ABOUT TO UNFOLD OVER THE NEXT 3-5YEARS.
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THE OVERALL API MARKET IS GROWING, AND OUR 
FOCUSED MARKETS ARE GROWING FASTER THAN 
THE GLOBAL AVERAGE.

2019

29

28
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113

181

2020

33

29

13

114

188

2021

37

31

14

129

211

2022

42

32

16

130

219

2026

72

36

23

148

278

Oncology Anti-infectives Immunosuppressant Others

Oncology CAGR (2022-2026): 14.3%
Immunosuppressant CAGR (2022-2026): 9.7%
Anti-infective CAGR (2022-2026): 3.3%

GLOBAL API MARKET BY SELECT THERAPY AREA: 2019 TO 2026
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THE GLOBAL API MARKET, as of 
2022, was valued at approximately 
USD 219 billion, which is expected to 
reach approximately USD 278 billion 
by the year 2026, at a projected CAGR 
of 6.1%.
Of the total market, biological APIs 
accounted for 37% of the share in 
2022, and small molecule drug APIs 
accounted for 63% of the share.
The value of the global 
immunosuppressant API market was 
USD 16 billion in 2022 and is on track 
to reach a value of USD 23 billion by 
2026 with a CAGR of 9.7%.

Concord is the market leader for 
Immunosuppressants and the 
only supplier in the world having a 
complete portfolio of fermentation-
based API’s for Immunosuppressant. 
Alongside, we have also developed 
our capabilities into niche 
fermentation-based API’s in oncology, 
anti-infective and anti-fungal APIs.
The oncology market has become 
the largest segment among the 
therapeutic areas in the API market, 
with a value of USD 42 billion in 2022. 

The segment will continue to be the 
fastest growing, with a CAGR of 14.3% 
between 2022 and 2026, estimated to 
reach USD 72 billion by 2026.
The anti‐infective API market is one of 
the largest segments by sales value. 
The anti-infective market was worth 
USD 32 billion in 2022 and is expected 
to reach USD 36 billion by 2026.

THE INDIAN API MARKET, valued 
at USD 17 billion in 2022, comprises 
APIs manufactured for export and 
APIs consumed in formulation by 
Indian formulation companies. 
These formulations are domestically 
consumed as well as exported to the 
global market.

India’s growth trajectory of the API 
market is well-cemented for domestic 
API consumption as well as exports. 
The India API market is expected to 
grow at a CAGR of 11.1% between 
2022 and 2026.
The API consumption for domestic 
formulations is also expected to 
drive high demand in the next four 

to five years. This growth is in line 
with the country’s overall growth of 
pharmaceutical drug consumption. 
The export during the same period is 
also expected to grow at a rate of 7% 
to 9%.
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WHY WILL THE GLOBAL API MARKET GROW?

MULTIPLE factors drive APIs’ volume 
and value growth, resulting in the 

cumulative growth of the total
API market.
l 	The increasing prevalence of 

chronic diseases and improving 
diagnosis rates drive volume 
growth

l 	Government actions aimed at 
lowering the cost of treating 
chronic disease

l 	Aging populations that face 
issues such as cardiac failure and 
hypertension

l 	Substantial improvement in 
diagnosis rates of common diseases 
globally

l 	Fast-growing pharmaceutical 
sector in emerging markets with 
advancing healthcare infrastructure

l 	Increasing availability of low-cost 
generic drugs in both developed 
and emerging markets as expensive 
innovator drugs lose exclusivity

New opportunities in Emerging 
Markets...
For exploring opportunities beyond 
pharma sales in developed countries, 
drug makers are increasingly focussing 
on emerging markets for new sources 
of growth and revenue.
Indian Pharmaceutical companies 
will leverage their competencies 
to develop and execute tailored 
strategies for each emerging market 
to stay competitive.

...AND WHAT IS IN IT FOR INDIA?
l 	India benefits from the China 

Plus One Strategy due to its 
infrastructure, large scientist pool, 
and competitive costs

l 	India is high on quality standards. It 
has the highest number of FDA-
approved plants for manufacturing 

APIs, indicating its capability to 
serve regulated markets

l 	India has an expansive presence. 
The domestic pharmaceutical 
industry offers 60,000 generic 
brands across 60 therapeutic 
categories

l 	Conducive Indian government 
policies such as the Production 
Linked Incentive Scheme (PLI) and 
bulk drug parks boost domestic 
manufacturing

2022

211

2026E

280

2021

61%

7%
15%

17%

211

2026E

55%

8%
13%

24%

280

GLOBAL API MARKET

+6%

GLOBAL API MARKET BY SELECT THERAPY AREA

Oncology

Anti-infectives

Immunosuppressant

Others
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WHY WILL FERMENTATION-BASED 
API GAIN TRACTION?

THE technological advantages of 
fermentation lend well to market 
expansion of the fermentation API 

segment.
The global small molecule 
fermentation API market by volume 
was 51,519 metric and is forecasted to 
grow at a CAGR of 4.6% between 2022 
and 2026 to reach a value of 61,673 
metric tons.
Within the small molecule segment, 
generic drug fermentation APIs 
accounted for a dominant share of 
nearly70% by volume in 2022. With 
the increasing thrust of adopting low-
cost alternatives, the overall market is 
expected to shift further in favour of 
generic drugs.
Consequently, the volume of APIs 
utilised in generic drugs is forecasted 
to grow at a 5.2% CAGR between 
2022 and 2026, compared to 3.3% for 
innovators during the same period.
Global Fermentation API Market by 
Regional Consumption Asia is the 
largest consumer of fermentation-
derived small molecule APIs, driven 
by the high use of antibiotics and 
the increasing use of oncology and 
immunology drugs. Asia, including 
countries such as India, China, 
and Japan, accounted for 51% of 
the market share by volume (and 
approximately 25% by value) of the 
fermentation API market in 2022.

In addition to holding a dominant 
share, the Asian region is forecasted 
to grow at the fastest rate owing 
to the increase in healthcare 
expenditure, growing cases of chronic 
diseases and effective government 
policies supporting the booming 
pharmaceutical market.
This dominance in some parts is 
attributable to the higher use of anti-
infective drugs in Asia and the Rest 
of World markets, given the higher 
vulnerability to infectious diseases. 
Additionally, the Asian markets are 
dominated by the older generation of 
affordable generic drugs, compared to 
western regions, which adopt a new 
generation of specialty products more 
readily.
Europe is the second largest market, 
accounting for 19% share by volume 
(and approximately 22% by value) 
in 2022. The Rest of World and 
North American markets accounted 
for 17% and 13% by volume and 
approximately 10% and 43% by value, 
respectively.
In line with the global trend of greater 
dispensing of generic prescription 
drugs in North America, the highest 
proportion of generic API use within 
these markets was observed in North 
America, followed by the Rest of the 
World and Europe. Additionally, the 
proportion of generic drugs has risen 
in the past three years across North 
America and the Rest of the World.

2019

11

GLOBAL SMALL MOLECULE 
FERMENTATION API MARKET BY

SALES VALUE: 2019 TO 2026

2022

12

2026

14

CAGR (2022-2026): 3.6%

U
SD

 b
ill

io
n

2019

47,696

GLOBAL SMALL MOLECULE 
FERMENTATION API MARKET BY 

VOLUME: 2019 TO 2026

2022 2026

CAGR (2022-2026): 4.6%
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33,387

14,309

51,519

34,746

16,772

61,673

42,557

19,116

Generic Innovator
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OUR END-USER MARKET SHOULD
GROW AT A ROBUST UPTICK

GROWTH DRIVERS
l 	Sedentary and unhealthy lifestyles are leading causes of 

organ failure
l 	Organ transplants could increase at 10.1% CAGR from 

2021 to 2026
l 	Immunosuppressants are required to be used by the 

patients for long term period
l 	Drugs also treat autoimmune disorders such as lupus, 

psoriasis, and rheumatoid arthritis
2018

69

2021 2026E

101

160

13.7%
CAGR

9.6%
CAGR

GLOBAL IMMUNOSUPPRESSANT DRUG MARKET ($BN)

GROWTH DRIVERS
l 	Improved screening protocols, early disease diagnosis, 

and more prolonged treatment durations
l 	Continued momentum of innovation in targeted and 

curative therapeutics
l 	More comprehensive access to cancer drugs in 

emerging markets

2018

128

2021 2026E

187

321

13.7%
CAGR

11.4%
CAGR

GLOBAL ONCOLOGY DRUG MARKET ($BN)

GROWTH DRIVERS
l 	Tuberculosis, malaria, and HIV contribute to high 

mortality and burden healthcare systems
l 	Emerging infectious diseases like Ebola, Zika, SARS and 

others
l 	Growth in Antimicrobial Resistance cases to the older 

generation of anti-infectives

2018

126

2021 2026E

127

149

0.4%
CAGR

3.1%
CAGR

GLOBAL ANTI-INFECTIVE DRUG MARKET ($BN)

AT CONCORD,
WE BELIEVE WE ARE

IN THE RIGHT PLACE
AT THE RIGHT TIME!

Concord Biotech, a research-driven biotech company, is at the forefront of Active Pharmaceutical Ingredient (API) 
production. Our dedication to innovation and quality, using fermentation and semi-synthetic processes, allows us to 

craft a diverse range of APIs for various medical needs.
From Immunosuppressants to Anti-bacterial, Oncology, Anti-fungal, and more, we are dedicated to driving healthcare 

advancements through innovation. The global recognition and trust from our customers worldwide affirm our 
commitment to quality, safety, and improving human health.
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THE COMPANY WITH 
NICHE CAPABILITIES 
AND A UNIQUE 
PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

ABOUT CONCORD BIOTECH LIMITED
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VISION
Create products through Biotechnology route 
and Service offering that enrich the lives of 
people by continually building on our expertise in 
Biotechnology.

MISSION
We strive to be a global power in the field 
of Biotechnology based products through 
research and development to create sustainable 
earnings growth and to establish long-term 
business success. We continue to reinforce our 
commitment to safety, health and environment. 
We endeavour for an environment where creativity 
and effectiveness are encouraged with the 
technologies for the niche market.

ABOUT CONCORD BIOTECH LIMITED

SHARED VALUES
INNOVATION | EXCELLENCE | INTEGRITY | COMMITMENT | QUALITY | DISCIPLINE | HUMANE

WE are an India-based biopharma 
company and one of the leading 

global developers and manufacturers 
of select fermentation-based APIs 
across Immunosuppressant and 
oncology in terms of market share, 
based on volume in 2022, supplying to 
over 70 countries, including regulated 
markets, such as the United States, 
Europe and Japan, and India.

While most Indian API manufacturers 
are in the more crowded chemical 
API space, we are in the niche 
fermentation technology space with 
limited competition.

We chose to enter the fermentation 
space against the more traditional 
chemical-based APIs due to the high 
barriers to entry and challenging-to-
replicate capabilities associated with 
fermentation technology.

Fermentation is an excruciating 
process, and we are among the few 
companies globally to successfully 
scale up fermentation-based 
capabilities. We have scaled our 
manufacturing capabilities with a 
consistent regulatory compliance 
track record.

As of March 31, 2023, we had a total 
installed fermentation capacity of 
1,250 m3. In 2016, we launched our 
formulation business in India as well 
as emerging markets, including Nepal, 
Mexico, Indonesia, Thailand, Ecuador, 
Kenya, Singapore and Paraguay, and 
have further expanded to the United 
States.

We are amongst the few companies 
globally that have successfully 
and sustainably established and 
scaled up fermentation-based 

API manufacturing capabilities. 
Fermentation is challenging as it 
involves working with microbial 
strains and culture, controlling 
multiple processes and performing 
various purification steps. Minor 
modifications to the process may lead 
to relatively significant variances in 
the outputs.

Complex technical capabilities, 
difficulties in scaling up operations 
and the substantial capital investment 
required have resulted in significant 
barriers to entry in the fermentation-
based API space.

We have established high market 
shares and leading positions in several 
key APIs, including 20%+ market share 
in some of our APIs.

STATE-OF-THE-ART MANUFACTURING FACILITIES

UNIT I (API)
DHOLKA, GUJARAT

UNIT II (FORMULATIONS)
VALTHERA, GUJARAT

UNIT III (API)
LIMBASI, GUJARAT

l 	Operations commenced in year: 
2000

l 	Spread across: 112,302 sqm

l 	Installed Capacity: 450m3

l 	Operations commenced in year: 
2016

l 	Spread across: 94,826 sqm

l 	Installed Capacity: ~802mn units

l 	Operations commenced in year: 
2021

l 	Spread across: 596,309 sqm

l 	Installed Capacity: 800m3

+UPCOMING
INJECTABLE FACILITY

1,250m3

TOTAL INSTALLED CAPACITY

~802mn
FORMULATION CAPACITY, 
MANUFACTURING FACILITY FOR 
INJECTABLES UNDER CONSTRUCTION

Zero Discharge Plants
ALL OUR FACILITIES HAVE EFFLUENT 
TREATMENTS PLANTS (ETP) WITH ZERO 
DISCHARGE

Regulatory Approvals
SUCCESSFUL INSPECTIONS BY GLOBAL 
REGULATORS AND CUSTOMERS

PLI
APPROVED BENEFICIARY OF PLI SCHEME 
FOCUSING ON FERMENTATION-BASED 
APIS

Efficiency
FLEXIBLE PLANT CONFIGURATION FOR 
HIGH PRODUCTIVITY AND EFFICIENCYOur presence in the complex fermentation space allows us to scale our business while

maintaining robust margins and returns.
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ABOUT CONCORD BIOTECH LIMITED

OUR JOURNEY

2000
Acquisition by our promoter

Mr. Sudhir Vaid

2005
First USFDA inspection of Unit I at 
Dholka

2015
First EU GMP inspection of

Unit I, Dholka

2016
Established formulation facility at 
Valthera (Unit II) for Oral Solid Dosages

2017
First USFDA inspection at Unit II, 

Valthera

2018
Established Joint Venture in Japan to 
cater to Japan market

2019
Received ANDA approvals for 

our formulation products

Expansion in critical care 
segment in India

First shipment of finished 
formulations to US market

2021
Commenced commercial operations for 
API at Unit III, Limbasi

2022
Third EU GMP inspection and 

Japan PMDA at Unit I

2023
USFDA Inspection successfully 
completed in Unit II, Valthera, EIR 
received

First USFDA Inspection successfully 
completed Unit III, Limbasi, EIR received

OUR BUSINESS SNAPSHOT

PORTFOLIO

23 >128 20%-plus
Fermentation-based APIs API DMFs Market Share by Volume in 

Select Molecules

INFRASTRUCTURE

1,250m3 41 802Mn Units
Total Installed Fermentation 

Capacity
Manufacturing Blocks: 

Dholka & Limbasi facilities
Formulation Capacity

CUSTOMERS / FILINGS

70+ 200+ 77
Nations of presence Customers across 

geographies
Approved products for 

Formulations

FINANCIALS

H853 cr 40% 24%
Revenue from Operations, 

FY23
EBITDA margin, FY23 Return on Capital 

Employed, FY23

API PRODUCT PORTFOLIO

ANTI-BACTERIAL
l Mupirocin
l Mupirocin Calcium
l Vancomycin Hydrochloride
l Teicoplanin
l Fidaxomicin
l Ploymixin B Sulfate

IMMUNOSUPPRESSANTS
l Tacrolimus
l Mycophenolate Mofetil
l Mycophenolate Sodium
l Cyclosporine
l Sirolimus
l Tacrolimus Premix
l Voclosporine

ONCOLOGY
l Everolimus
l Temsirolimus
l Romidepsin
l Mitomycin
l Dactinomycin
l Midostaurin
l Doxorubicin

ANTIFUNGAL
l Anidulafungin
l Micafungin Sodium
l Caspofungin
l Amphotericin B
l Nystatin
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ABOUT CONCORD BIOTECH LIMITED

OUR RESEARCH & DEVELOPMENT INFRASTRUCTURE

R&D LAB FOR API R&D LAB FOR FORMULATIONS
Location: Dholka Location: Valthera

Capability: Isolation of strain, mutation and passive 
selection of microbial strains and strain improvement, 
lab fermenters and pilot plant facility for scaling up 
fermentation process.

Capability: Formulation development and analytical 
capabilities as per cGLP practices.

Approved by DSIR (Department of Scientific & Industrial Research), India.

Services offered: (i) strain improvement; (ii) media optimisation; (iii) process development and optimisation to achieve 
efficiency and cost-effectiveness; (iv) process scale-up to commercial scale; and (v) development of optimised bio-
transformation processes, (vi) pre-formulation and formulation development for a wide range of sterile and non-sterile 
dosage forms for global markets.

OUR QUALITY CONTROL & ASSURANCE

In our business, the quality of products 
and services is vital. Maintaining high 
quality in manufacturing is critical for 
our brand. It draws market players 
closer to us and helps build long-term 
relationships with our customers.

As per agreements, we are obligated 
to purchase from qualified suppliers 
only and store as mandated in cGMP 
and other stringent regulatory 
protocols.

We consistently implement cGMPs 
in all our manufacturing facilities, 
which are again monitored by a 
QMS encompassing all areas of 
business processes from raw material 
procurement to manufacturing, 
packaging, and delivery.

Our manufacturing facilities are 
regularly inspected and/or audited by 
regulatory authorities such as FDA, 
European regulatory agencies, and 
JPMDA.

Besides, we have our own internal 
audit and control procedures, which 
help us adhere to high quality 
standards.

At the end of FY23, more than 20% of 
the personnel were involved in Quality 
Control and Assurance functions.
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OUR BUSINESS VERTICALS

ACTIVE PHARMACEUTICAL INGREDIENTS (APIS)1

CONCORD is one of the leading 
global developers and 

manufacturers of Fermentation-based 
APIs.

Fermentation is challenging as it 
involves working with microbial 
strains and culture, controlling 
multiple process parameters, and 
performing various purification steps.

The Company focuses on products 
which requires complex technical 
process, have limited competition 
and potential to acquire leadership 

position in global market with 
backward integration to the 
KSM level for some key APIs. 
The portfolio primarily includes 
immunosuppressants, oncology, 
and anti-infective APIs. Over the last 
23 years, Concord has created and 
commercialised a basket of 23 APIs.

Concord has two API manufacturing 
facilities in Gujarat, India, 
at Dholka and Limbasi. It is 
among the select companies 
globally that has successfully 

and sustainably established and 
scaled up fermentation-based API 
manufacturing capabilities.

The Dholka facility has successfully 
cleared multiple inspections by 
overseas regulators, including USFDA, 
EUGMP, PMDA of Japan, and MFDS 
of Korea. The Limbasi facility will 
also cater to major regulated and 
emerging markets as it has undergone 
the USFDA inspection with zero 483s.

GROWTH
API Revenue (H crore)

FY21

506

FY22

574

FY23

761

FORMULATIONS2

CONCORD entered the formulations 
segment in 2016 to capitalise on 

the benefits of backward integration. 
The Company operates through a 
B2B model across the United States 
and emerging markets, under 
arrangements with distributors.

The Company’s formulations are 
manufactured at its Valthera facility, 
which has successfully cleared 
inspections by overseas regulators, 
including USFDA and WHO. Concord 
has invested in an injectables facility 

scheduled to commission operations 
shortly. This investment will widen its 
opportunity canvass significantly.

GROWTH
Formulations Revenue (H crore)

FY21

110

FY22

138

FY23

92
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KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS
Over the years, we have a demonstrated track record of healthy growth, consistent profitability and strong returns. 

FY
21

FY
22

FY
23

61
7

71
3

85
3

Revenue from Operations
(H crore)

FY
21

FY
22

FY
23

32
7

27
0

34
5

EBITDA
(H crore)

FY
21

FY
22

FY
23

23
5

17
4

24
0

Profit after Tax
(H crore)

FY
21

FY
22

FY
23

16
7

20
7

24
6

Net Cash Flow from 
Operations
(H crore)

FY
21

FY
22

FY
23

99
9

1,
10

3

1,
29

0

Networth
(H crore)

FY
21

FY
22

FY
23

0.
09

0.
05

0.
02

Debt-equity
(x)

FY
21

FY
22

FY
23

53
.0

37
.8

40
.5

EBITDA Margin
(%)

FY
21

FY
22

FY
23

28
.5

4

20
.5

5

24
.2

7

ROCE
(%)
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THE POTENTIAL TO GROW

BIG

OUR BUSINESS STRENGTHS

1 Established Presence across the complex fermentation value chain

2 Global leadership in Immunosuppressant APIs, along with a broad spectrum of 
complex fermentation-based APIs across multiple therapeutic areas

3 Scaled manufacturing facilities with a consistent regulatory compliance track 
record and supported by strong R&D capabilities

4 Diversified global customer base with long-standing relationships
with key customers

5 Experienced promoters, management team, and supported
by marquee investors
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ESTABLISHED PRESENCE ACROSS THE COMPLEX 
FERMENTATION VALUE CHAIN

CONCORD has over two decades of rich experience across the complex fermentation value chain. Possessing an 
integrated platform strengthens Concord’s ability to cater to customer-specific requirements, enhances its business 

profile, and strengthens customer relationships. Also, The Company’s deep expertise in niche fermentation technology 
allows it the opportunity to expand into other adjacencies, such as biosimilars and other molecules with microbial and 
mammalian strains.

OVERVIEW OF THE INTEGRATED PLATFORM

R&D Patents Key
Starting
Material

API 
Manufacturing

Marketing &
Distribution

Formulations + Other 
Adjacencies

Established presence Emerging
presence

GLOBAL LEADERSHIP IN IMMUNOSUPPRESSANT APIs

CONCORD is a global leader in immunosuppressants. It has the broadest range of fermentation-based APIs that are 
globally present. They include Tacrolimus, Mycophenolate Mofetil, Mycophenolate Sodium, Cyclosporine, Sirolimus, 

and Pimecrolimus. The molecules in our portfolio represent large end markets. The overall trend of generalisation is 
visibly playing out in this therapeutic segment, with all the molecules expected to increase the share of generics going 
forward. This is a favourable trend, allowing the Company to serve a broader set of customers.

ONCOLOGY and Anti-infective represent significant and growing Fermentation API markets. The market for 
Everolimus, an Oncology molecule that Concord manufactures is expected to see a significant shift towards 

genericisation, with the generic share expected to rise from 17% in 2021 to 33% in 2026, growing at a 20%+ CAGR. 
Concord manufactures several anti-infective class of products of which in Mupirocin and Mupirocin calcium, Concord 
has around 20% market share in terms of volume.

...AND A BROAD SPECTRUM OF COMPLEX FERMENTATION-BASED 
APIs ACROSS MULTIPLE THERAPEUTIC AREAS
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SCALED MANUFACTURING FACILITIES

CONCORD has three manufacturing 
facilities in Gujarat, India: API 

manufacturing facilities in Dholka 
and Limbasi and a formulation 
manufacturing facility in Valthera. The 
Company is adding an injectables 
plant at its Valthera site, which should 
commence operations shortly.

All the plants are designed to attain 
Zero Liquid Discharge. The flexible 
plant configuration facilitates speed 
and efficiency.

The Company’s total annual 
installed fermentation capacity for 
API is around 1,250-m3. It has 41 
manufacturing blocks at its Dholka 
and Limbasi facilities, which provides 
the flexibility in plant configuration to 
cater to customer demands.

The Limbasi facility holds a special 
place in Concord’s journey as it 
positions the Company among the 

largest global fermentation capacities, 
allowing it to service the global 
fermentation API market efficiently.

Moreover, Concord has featured 
among the approved beneficiaries 
under the PLI Scheme.

DIVERSIFIED GLOBAL CUSTOMER BASE WITH LONG-STANDING 
RELATIONSHIPS WITH KEY CUSTOMERS

COMPETENTLY SUPPORTED BY STRONG R&D CAPABILITIES

CONCORD’s deep R&D capabilities facilitate its leadership in fermentation technology. The Company consistently 
increased its R&D investments to enhance innovation skills and capabilities.

The Company’s R&D efforts are led by its 148 member strong team, including 19 PhDs, who have filed more than 128 
DMF across different geographies, received 4 ANDA product approval, 4 Para IV approvals and have created 22 non-
infringing processes.
The Company’s consistent R&D investments have led to a robust API molecule pipeline. Its key pipeline molecules 
constitute over USD2.5bn in formulation end-market sales. In addition to product innovation, the R&D team focuses on 
process and cost improvement, which is vital for the Company to stay competitive.

R&D Initiatives:

NEW PRODUCT 
DEVELOPMENT TECHNOLOGY TRANSFER

COST IMPROVEMENT SCALE-UP INITIATIVES

PROCESS IMPROVEMENT ENHANCEMENT OF 
BACKWARD INTEGRATION

Increasing Investments in R&D
(in crore)

FY21

13
26

30

FY22 FY23

Expansion in oncology and anti-infectives (in addition to the existing 
immunology drug portfolio) with a pipeline of API molecules

US$2.5bn+

Total 
Formulation 
End-Market 

Sales

Anti-infectives

Immuno-suppressant

Oncology

Voclosporin

Fidaxomicin

Daptomycin

Epirubicin

Doxorubicin

Idarubicin

Pirarubicin

148
R&D Employee Strength

> 128
API DMFs

4
ANDA approved 

products/PARA IV 
Approvals

22
Non-Infringing 

ProcessesCONCORD’s services a marquee customer base of over 200 clients in 70 countries. The Company’s common theme 
across products is that it serves market leaders across all geographies.

Concord enjoys long-standing relationships extending over ten years with its key customers. This is facilitated by its 
superior value proposition of high-quality products, competitive pricing, consistent supply, track record of regulatory 
compliance, R&D and manufacturing capabilities, and long-term agreements.
The Company has added close to 50 customers annually in the last three years, demonstrating our appeal to clients. As a 
result, its dependence on the top 10 customers has dropped - derisking the business progress significantly.
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WITH A SIGNIFICANT 
RUNWAY FOR 
GROWTH AND 
AN IMPROVING 
MARKET SCENARIO, 
ESPECIALLY FOR 
INDIAN PHARMA 
COMPANIES, WE 
REMAIN HIGHLY 
OPTIMISTIC ABOUT 
THE FUTURE OF 
OUR COMPANY AND 
ARE CONFIDENT 
IN OUR ABILITY TO 
ELEVATE CONCORD 
TO GREATER 
HEIGHTS

FROM THE CHAIRMAN’S DESK
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FROM THE CHAIRMAN’S DESK

SUDHIR VAID
CHAIRMAN & MANAGING DIRECTOR

IT’S A PLEASURE TO REPORT 
THAT YOUR COMPANY MADE 
COMMENDABLE PROGRESS 
IN A YEAR THAT WITNESSED 
CONSIDERABLE HEADWINDS. 
OUR PROGRESS IS SHOWCASED 
IN OUR IMPROVED FINANCIAL 
NUMBERS. OUR HOLISTIC 
GROWTH IS OWING TO THE 
UNTIRING EFFORTS OF THE 
ENTIRE TEAM. THEIR DISCIPLINED 
DETERMINATION AGAINST 
PREVAILING ODDS MADE IT 
POSSIBLE TO ACHIEVE OUR 
OPERATIONAL AND FINANCIAL 
GOALS.

DEAR SHAREHOLDERS,

OUR DEFINING EDGE
In recent times, the industry has 
witnessed significant consolidation 
of manufacturing activities. Several 
companies have encountered 
challenges related to growth owing 
to skill shortage, lack of scalability 
and a limited product portfolio. 
This has presented us with ample 
opportunities to expand our presence 
in various markets and geographical 
regions, ultimately contributing to our 
revenues and market share growth.
We have effectively capitalised on the 
opportunity. While we added about 50 
new customers in FY21 and FY22, we 
have added close to 63 customers in 
FY23. This has de-risked our revenue 
basket. Our revenue contribution 
from the top 10 customers, which was 
at about 60% in FY20, now stands at 
approximately 45% in FY23, even as 
overall revenue increased by close to 
18% CAGR during the same period. 
This is a testimony to our customer 
acquisition strategy, customer 
retention, and wallet share-enhancing 
capability. Even as our topline growth 
has been robust, we have maintained 
the quality of our business - our 
EBITDA margin has hovered between 
the 35-40% ranges for nearly a decade.

THE POSITIVE LANDSCAPE
I am very excited about the 
opportunities over the horizon. And 
there are significant prospects in the 
domestic and global markets.
1) The rising prevalence of chronic 
diseases, India’s largest population 
and diverse demographics have led 
to a broad spectrum of diseases, 
including chronic conditions. This 
ongoing trend will continue to drive 
the demand for APIs and formulations 
within the domestic market.
2) Drug genericisation will increase 
over the coming years. According to 
credible reports, numerous drugs are 
set to lose their patents between 2022 
and 2026. This presents a significant 
opportunity for increased product 
volume and growth, creating a higher 
demand for the corresponding APIs.

3) India has strongly affirmed its 
position as the ‘Pharmacy of the 
World’. Indian pharmaceutical 
companies consistently secure 30% 
to 35% of ANDA approvals annually, 
establishing themselves as reliable 
exporters of generic drug formulations 
to regulated markets.
4) As Indian firms continue to invest 
in augmenting their capacities, the 
demand for relevant APIs will also 
see an upswing. Further, with the 
adoption of the China plus One and 
Europe plus One strategy, countries 
worldwide are actively diversifying 
their sourcing options, which are more 
reliable and can consistently provide 
them with these kinds of products, 
reducing dependency on single 
suppliers.
This dynamic opens up substantial 
opportunities for Indian 
pharmaceutical companies to emerge 
as alternative suppliers for regulated 
and unregulated markets, leveraging 
their high capabilities and focus on 
innovation. Supportive government 
initiatives and PLI schemes, 
concurrently favourable government 
schemes and the production-linked 
incentives program have significantly 
boosted the Indian pharmaceutical 
manufacturing sector.
With a significant runway for growth 
and an improving market scenario, 
especially for Indian pharma 
companies, we remain highly 
optimistic about the future of our 
Company and are confident in our 
ability to elevate Concord to greater 
heights.

OUR FOCUS AREAS
a) We will work towards expanding 
our API portfolio across therapeutic 
areas, especially in oncology, where 
we currently have 6 APIs for global 
markets, and anti-infectives and 
antifungals, where we currently 
have seven products. For this, we 
will increase our investments in 
our R&D efforts to accelerate the 
development of our robust pipeline 
of products across diverse therapeutic 
areas, which have an addressable 
market size of US$ 2.5 billion at the 
formulation level.

b) API will be the core focus of the 
business, and we will continue to 
increase our wallet share among 
existing customers by selling them 
existing and new products across 
therapies. Also, investments in our 
new manufacturing capacity have 
enhanced our capabilities to grow our 
wallet share from existing customers.
c) We will add new customers 
across geographies, leveraging our 
established product portfolio and 
with the commercialisation of new 
products.
d) We will increase our formulations 
business and add new formulations 
and delivery platforms (our injectable 
facility should be operational in FY25), 
widening our geographical reach and 
expanding the therapeutic coverage.
e) We will focus on growing our CDMO 
piece. With the capacity expansion 
at our Limbasi facility, the China plus 
One strategy and our expertise in the 
fermentation area, we see this as an 
important growth opportunity.
The increase in demand for our 
products will help us to shore asset 
utilisation of existing and new 
facilities, allowing us to improve 
profitability and unlock value for all 
stakeholders.

IN CLOSING
Concord is poised for healthy 
growth over the coming years. Our 
established track record, presence 
across the complex fermentation value 
chain, manufacturing capabilities and 
technical expertise, global regulatory 
approvals and global leadership in 
our select portfolio should help us 
accelerate our growth momentum, 
translating into even better financial 
outcomes and stakeholder value.

SOLID CUSTOMER RELATIONS
Our commitment to building enduring 
relationships is evident from the fact 
that we have maintained an average 
customer relationship span of eight 
years with our ten largest customers by 
revenue.

QUALITY CERTIFIED
I am happy to mention that USFDA 
authorities inspected our Limbasi 
facility in June 2023. The inspection 
was successfully concluded with zero 
483 observations. We now have an EIR 
report for the same. Our best starts now!
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ANKUR VAID
JT. MANAGING DIRECTOR & CEO

I FIRMLY BELIEVE 
THAT WE ARE 
PERFECTLY POISED 
FOR SIGNIFICANT 
GROWTH. OUR 
ONGOING 
INVESTMENTS, 
ROBUST PRODUCT 
PIPELINE AND 
STRONG AND 
GROWING 
CUSTOMER 
RELATIONS FURTHER 
UNDERPIN OUR 
ABILITY TO DELIVER 
LONG-TERM VALUE

STATEMENT FROM THE JT. MANAGING DIRECTOR
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STATEMENT FROM THE JT. MANAGING DIRECTOR

It is a pleasure to 
communicate with 
you through the 
Annual Report.
I welcome the 
new shareholders 
to the Concord 
family and thank 
the investor 
community for 
believing in our 
growth story.

OUR Initial Public Offering 
received splendid response, 
being oversubscribed 25 times. 

This statistic indicates the relevance of 
our business model and belief in our 
prospects. Your trust in us reinforces 
our confidence and motivates us to 
work harder to pursue a higher growth 
trajectory.

PERFORMANCE IN FY23
I am happy to state that your 
Company made considerable progress 
in an eventful year.
FY 2023 brought various challenges 
stemming from macroeconomic 
headwinds in our operating 
landscape. Inflation reached multi-
decadal highs, which prompted 
several developed and developing 
economies to implement aggressive 
monetary tightening policies. Despite 
the hurdles, I am delighted that 
we have delivered a noteworthy 
performance. It is passion backed by 
perseverance that has enabled our 
teams to prevail.
Our revenue from operations scaled 
from H713 crore in FY22 to H853 crore 
in FY23. It underscores the growing 
acceptance of our products by global 
and domestic formulators. EBITDA 
increased by 28.04% over the previous 
fiscal, and we reported a Profit after 
Tax of H240 crore in FY23 against 
H175 crore in FY22- a significant jump 
despite considerable volatility.
Our API business continued to gain 
momentum as we registered robust 
growth in all the markets of our 
presence. Our formulation business 
maintained a stable run rate. With 
the commissioning of our injectable 
facility during FY24, we look forward 
to a substantial uptick in this vertical 
over the medium term.

IN THE FUTURE
Global market: The pharmaceutical 
space has experienced a significant 
transformation with new technologies 
and cost-effective and more efficient 
manufacturing approaches - green 
processes are increasingly becoming 
preferred over legacy practices.
While the pandemic hit the world over 
the last three years, the broader trends 
in medicine use remain unchanged. 
The global medicine market (in value 
terms) is expected to grow at 3-6% 
CAGR through 2027, reaching about 
US$1.9 trillion in total market size.
India’s role in the world: The 
world is looking up to India as a 
pharmaceutical manufacturing and 
sourcing hub. On the one hand, it 
amplifies the opportunity landscape 
for the Indian pharmaceutical sector. 
On the other, it places considerable 
responsibility on pharmaceutical 
companies to embed sustainability 
into the enterprise’s core.
Hence, reinventing and innovating 
will be the two essential drivers for the 
Indian pharma industry in the coming 
years to graduate from volume to 
value leadership amid emerging 
global challenges of inflation and 
pricing pressures in the global 
markets.

BIO-PHARMACEUTICAL 
FERMENTATION
The Bio-pharma fermentation is 
poised to grow at a healthy uptick in 
the current decade.
This demand for fermentation-based 
pharma products should continue to 
grow over the coming years. Products 
developed using the fermentation 
process are preferred.

Increasing demand for Bio-tech-
based drugs and rising research and 
development activities to produce 
novel biological drugs will propel 
market growth over the coming years. 
Credible estimates suggest that the 
Bio-pharmaceutical Fermentation 
Market size is expected to grow from 
US$ 25.22 billion in 2023 to US$ 40.31 
billion by 2028, at a CAGR of 9.83% 
during the forecast period (2023-
2028).

OUR PLANS
Looking ahead, I firmly believe we are 
perfectly poised for significant growth.
Having established a strong base in 
our business space, our focus will be 
on fueling innovation - strengthening 
our API and formulation product 
basket and growing our CDMO 
operations - aligning us more closely 
to our customers.
Our ongoing investments, robust 
product pipeline and strong and 
growing customer relations further 
underpin our ability to deliver long-
term value.
On behalf of the Board, I extend my 
gratitude to our customers, bankers, 
vendors and shareholders for their 
solid support. I express my sincere 
appreciation to our employees for 
their unwavering passion.

At Concord, we 
remain steadfast in 
our commitment 
to produce 
high-quality 
pharmaceuticals 
and make a 
difference in human 
health.
Together, we will 
continue on our 
journey towards 
excellence.

Warm regards...

OUR KEY THERAPEUTIC SEGMENTS
The global API market can be broadly segmented into therapeutic areas such as anti-infective, oncology, 
immunosuppressants, and others. Of these immunosuppressants accounted for 7% of the market and is expected to grow by 
approximately 9.7% and oncology market which accounted for 19% is expected to grow at a CAGR of 19.7%.
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BUSINESS STRATEGIES FOR

TOMORROW

2
We will increase the presence of 
our existing formulations and 
expand into new formulations

l 	We plan to grow our business 
by expanding our geographic 
reach, launching newer dosage 
forms, and expanding our 
formulation portfolio with 
a focus on improving our 
profitability and utilising our 
formulation manufacturing 
capacity more efficiently

l 	We intend to pursue growth 
opportunities for our 
formulations in India, emerging 
markets, and the United States

l 	We plan to expand our 
formulation portfolio by 
adding new drug delivery 
forms. Our injectable facility is 
designed to have the capability 
to manufacture delivery 
forms such as liquid vials and 
lyophilized vials, dry powder 
injections and sterile powder 
lyophilization

l 	We intend to expand into new 
formulations that have relatively 
higher growth potential 
and continually calibrate 
our product mix to improve 
profitability. We plan to leverage 
our API capabilities to continue 
to develop new formulations

3
We plan to grow our CDMO 
business

We leverage our R&D capabilities 
and experience to offer CDMO 
services for (i) APIs in the area of 
fermentation and semi-synthesis; 
and (ii) formulations. We have 
completed two CDMO projects 
and have one additional CDMO 
project in progress

1
We will continue to increase our 
API market share and further 
develop our portfolio of complex 
and niche APIs with high growth 
potential

l 	We will endeavour to increase 
the sales of API products to 
existing customers and will 
focus on cross-selling other API 
products to these customers

l 	With increased manufacturing 
capacities, we have the ability to 
serve additional customers with 
our existing API portfolio

l 	We will continue to focus on 
developing niche and complex 
fermentation-based products 
with high growth potential 
to ensure profitability and 
strengthen market leadership

l 	We also intend to leverage 
our expertise in fermentation 
technology and capture the 
opportunities to manufacture 
the low-volume high-value 
fermentation-based APIs which 
will go off-patent
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ENVIRONMENTAL, 
SOCIAL & 
GOVERNANCE

ENVIRONMENT

WE understand and appreciate 
the impact of our operations 
on the environment and the 

effect of climate change on our 
business. Besides, we are subject 
to several Indian and international 
environmental laws and thus have 
to comply with different regulatory 
standards wherever our products are 
sold.

These factors significantly influence 
our policies and actions regarding 
water pollution, air pollution, 
hazardous waste management, 
noise pollution, etc. To adhere to the 
environmental laws, we have set up 
Standard Operating Procedures (SOP) 
to ensure compliances.

We have established a full-scale 
effluent treatment plant with 
two streams of physico-chemical, 
biological, and advanced treatment 
facilities.

The treated effluent is used for 
gardening purposes. We ensure 
our pollution level stays within the 
permissible limits the regulatory 
authorities prescribe.

In our effort to optimise energy 
usage, we use energy-efficient 
centrifugal air compressors, water 
chillers, and motors. We consciously 
try to efficiently use water by 
reducing consumption, recycling, and 
harvesting rainwater. We also carry 
out regular tree-planting programmes 
to minimise the impact of climate 
change.
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ESG - ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL & GOVERNANCE

SOCIAL

OUR Company emphasizes the 
overall development of society, 
which empowers each member 

of the society and potentially leads to 
prosperity and equity. Keeping this 
goal in mind, we encourage and drive 
campaigns in healthcare, education, 
and gender equality.

In healthcare, our initiatives include 
promoting overall healthcare, 
including preventive healthcare, while 
raising awareness about the same. We 
also organise health check-up camps 
and provide medicine & treatment 

facilities. Additionally, we have a 
mobile medical unit that provides free 
medical care to the people of nearby 
villagers.

Regarding education, our efforts 
include supporting schools with the 
necessary educative infrastructure. 
We installed e-smart classes in schools 
in neighboring villages. Further, we 
provide scholarships to the students 
of IITs with financially challenged 
backgrounds.

We support gender equality and 
women’s empowerment and conduct 
regular awareness campaigns to 
promote those ideas.

We also work with several government 
agencies to improve access to drinking 
water, hygiene, and quality sanitation 
for the people in the villages.

EDUCATION
Installed e-smart 
classes in schools 
of neighboring 
villages; Scholarships 
to economically 
backward students 
studying in IITs

HEALTHCARE
Preventive healthcare, 
through awareness 
programs, health 
check-ups and 
medicine & treatment 
facilities

SPORTS ACTIVITIES
Provides sports 
scholarship to 
upcoming badminton 
player to facilitate 
her development 
and prepare her for 
national and Olympics 
in the future

ENVIRONMENTAL 
SUSTAINABILITY
Water harvesting 
and tree plantation 
program and are 
also very active in 
encouraging the use 
of jute bags instead of 
plastic

RURAL 
DEVELOPMENT 
PROJECTS
Work with certain 
govt. agencies to 
strengthen rural areas 
by improving drinking 
water, hygiene and 
sanitation

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

FY21

FY22

FY23

33.37

44.95

49.73

CSR Spend (H million)

GOVERNANCE

OUR Company is devoted to efficiently discharging its duties, responsibilities, and adherence to the highest 
standards. We have built a robust governance framework focused on doing business with integrity, ethics, and 
transparency, ensuring the smooth functioning of the business while managing our responsibilities.
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N O T I C E

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN THAT the 38th Annual General Meeting 
of CONCORD BIOTECH LIMITED will be held on Friday, 7th July, 
2023 at the Registered Office of the Company at 1482-86, Trasad 
Road, Dholka, Dist. Ahmedabad- 387810 at 11.00 a.m. to transact 
the following business:

Ordinary Business:
1.	� To receive, consider, approve and adopt the Audited 

Standalone and Consolidated Financial Statements for the 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2023 together with the 
Auditor and Directors’ Report there on.

2.	 To declare dividend for the financial year 2022-23.

3.	 To appoint Mr. Utpal Hemendra Sheth (DIN: 00081012) 
who retires by rotation and being eligible offers himself as 
Director.

4.	 To appoint Mr. Amit Varma (DIN: 02241746) who retires by 
rotation and being eligible offers himself as Director.

Special Business:
5.	 To consider and if thought fit to pass the following 

Resolution, with or without modification as an Ordinary 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 
148 and all other applicable provisions of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the Companies (Audit and Auditors) 
Rules, 2014 including any statutory modification(s) or 
re-enactment(s) thereof, for the time being in force the 
Members of the Company hereby ratify the remuneration of 
` 1,75,000/- (Rupees One Lac Seventy-Five Thousand) plus 
applicable Goods and Service Tax, p.a. and reimbursement 
of all reasonable out of pocket expenses incurred, if any 
payable to M/s. Dalwadi & Associates, Cost Accountants, 
who have been appointed by the Board of Directors on 
the recommendation of the Audit Committee as the Cost 
Auditors of the Company to carry out the cost audit for the 
financial year ending on 31st March, 2024.”

6.	 To consider and if thought fit to pass the following 
Resolution, with or without modification as a Special 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions Section 196, 
197 and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) 
Rule, 2014 (including any statutory medication(s) or re- 
enactment thereof, for the time being in force) and in 
accordance with the approval of the Board of Directors 
based on recommendations of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of the Board, approval of the 
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for 
the re-appointment of Mr. Sudhir Vaid, (DIN: 00055967) 
Chairman & Managing Director with effect from 1st 
April, 2024 to 31st March, 2029 for a period of 5 years on 
such terms and conditions including remuneration and 

perquisites (hereinafter referred to as “remuneration”) as set 
out in the explanatory statement annexed to this notice.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding anything 
to the contrary herein contained, where in any financial 
year during the currency of the tenure of Mr. Sudhir Vaid, 
Chairman & Managing Director, the Company has no profits 
or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay to him 
the remuneration as per Schedule V of the Companies Act, 
2013 as minimum remuneration, subject to such statutory 
approvals, as may be applicable.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is 
hereby authorised to increase, alter, vary from time to time 
the terms of the remuneration in such a manner as may be 
deemed fit and acceptable to Mr. Sudhir Vaid.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and 
is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and 
things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary, 
desirable and expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

7.	 To consider and if thought fit to pass the following 
Resolution, with or without modification as a Special 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to provisions of Section 
196, 197 and 203 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with 
Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies 
Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel 
Rules, 2014 (including any statutory modification or 
reenactment thereof for the time being in force) and in 
accordance with the approval of the Board of Directors 
based on recommendations of the Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee of the Board, approval of the 
members of the Company be and is hereby accorded for 
the re-appointment of Mr. Ankur Vaid (DIN 01857225) as 
a Jt. Managing Director and CEO of the Company w.e.f. 
1st June 2024 to 31st May, 2029 for a period of 5 years on 
such terms and conditions including remuneration and 
perquisites (hereinafter referred to as “remuneration”) as set 
out in the explanatory statement annexed to this notice.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT notwithstanding anything to 
the contrary herein contained, where in any financial year 
during the currency of the tenure of Mr. Ankur Vaid, Jt. 
Managing Director and CEO, the Company has no profits 
or its profits are inadequate, the Company will pay to him 
the remuneration as per Schedule V of the Companies Act, 
2013 as minimum remuneration, subject to such statutory 
approvals, as may be applicable.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and is 
hereby authorised to increase, alter, vary from time to time 
the terms of the remuneration in such a manner as may be 
deemed fit and acceptable to Mr. Ankur Vaid.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER THAT the Board of Directors be and 
is hereby authorised to do all such acts, deeds, matters and 
things as it may, in its absolute discretion, deem necessary, 
desirable and expedient to give effect to this resolution.”

8.	 To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, with or without 
modifications, the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT further to the resolution dated July 
8, 2022 passed by the shareholders of the Company and 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and the rules made thereunder, each as amended, 
and other applicable provisions, if any, and in order to 
incorporate the observations issued by the Securities and 
Exchange Board of India on the draft red herring prospectus 
dated August 12, 2022, Part B of the existing articles of 
association of the Company, be and is hereby terminated 
and an amended set of articles of association as circulated 
to the shareholders of the Company, be and is approved 
and adopted as the articles of association of the Company, 
in total exclusion and substitution of the existing articles of 
association of the Company.”

	� “RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Mr. Sudhir Vaid, Managing 
Director, Mr. Ankur Vaid, Jt. Managing Director and CEO, 
Mr. Lalit Sethi, Chief Financial Officer and Mr. Prakash 
Sajnani, Company Secretary of the Company be and are 
hereby severally authorised to do all such acts, deeds, 
matters and things as may be required to be done to give 
effect to the abovementioned resolution including filing of 
necessary forms with the Registrar of Companies, Gujarat at 
Ahmedabad.”

By Order of the Board

(SUDHIR VAID)
Place: Ahmedabad	 DIN: 00055967
Date: 1st July 2023	 Chairman & Managing Director

Registered Office:
1482-86, Trasad Road, Dholka,
Dist. Ahmedabad- 387810

NOTES :
1.	� A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE 

MEETING IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT PROXY OR PROXIES TO 
ATTEND AND VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND THE PROXY 
NEED NOT BE A MEMBER.

2.	� Explanatory Statement pursuant to provisions of Section 
102 of the Companies Act, 2013, is attached to the notice.

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF 
THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
ITEM NO.5
The Board of Directors at its meeting held on 1st July, 2023, has 
appointed M/s. Dalwadi & Associates, Cost Accountants, as the 
Cost Auditor for audit of the cost accounting records of the 
Company for the financial year ending on 31st March, 2024, at 
a remuneration amounting to ` 1,75,000/- (Rupees One Lac 
Seventy Five Thousand only) plus applicable Goods and Service 
Tax, p.a. and reimbursement of all reasonable out of pocket 
expenses incurred, if any. In terms of the provisions of Section 
148(3) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies 
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, the remuneration payable 
to Cost Auditor shall be ratified by the shareholders of the 
Company.

Accordingly, consent of the members is sought for approving 
the Ordinary Resolution as set out in Item No. 5 for ratification by 
the shareholders at the ensuing Annual General Meeting of the 
Company.

None of the Directors, Key Managerial Personnel, relatives of 
Directors and Key Managerial Personnel of the Company is 
directly/ indirectly interested in the above resolution. The Board 
of Directors recommend the resolution for your approval.

Item No. 6
Mr. Sudhir Vaid (DIN 00055967) was appointed as Chairman and 
Managing Director of the Company for a period of 5 years w.e.f. 
1st April, 2019 to 31st March, 2024 by Ordinary resolution passed 
by the members on 5th August, 2019. The tenure of Mr. Sudhir 
Vaid as Chairman and Managing Director expires on 31st March, 
2024.

The Board of Directors based on recommendation of Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, thought it fit and in the interest 
of the Company to re-appoint Mr. Sudhir Vaid as Chairman and 
Managing Director for a period of 5 years w.e.f. 1st April, 2024 to 
31st March, 2029. Though Mr. Sudhir Vaid has already attained the 
age of 70 years, the Board, based on the performance evaluation 
and considering his contribution to the Company, it has been 
proposed to pass the special resolution for reappointment of 
Mr. Sudhir Vaid as Chairman and Managing Director for further 
period of five years w.e.f. 1st April, 2024.

The appointment and payment of remuneration and perquisites 
to Mr. Sudhir Vaid is subject to approval of members of the 
Company and other statutory approval as may be required.

The terms of remuneration and perquisites payable to Mr. Sudhir 
Vaid is as follows:

Particulars Amount in `
Basic Salary 18,75,000
HRA 7,50,000
Education Allowances 1,20,000
Conveyance 4,80,000
Special Allowance 17,75,000
Total – Per Month 50,00,000

Period of appointment: From 1st April, 2024 to 31st March, 2029

Perquisites: Perquisites payable are as under.

(i)	� Group Insurance Policy for self as per the policy of the 
Company.

(ii)	� Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or 
Annuity fund as per the rules of the Company and Gratuity 
as per the “The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972”.

(iii)	� Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure as per the 
Company’s Rules

A copy of the draft letter for re-appointment of the Director 
setting out the terms and conditions of his re-appointment are 
available for inspection by the Shareholders at the Registered 
Office of the Company during the business hours (except on 
Saturdays and Sundays) and will also be kept available at the 
venue of the AGM till the conclusion of the AGM.

Where in any financial year during the currency of the tenure of 
Mr. Sudhir Vaid, Chairman & Managing Director, the Company 
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has no profits or if its profits are inadequate, the remuneration 
determined as per Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 
be considered as minimum remuneration, subject to such 
statutory approvals as may be applicable. Particulars which are 
required to be disclosed as per Section II, Part-II of Schedule V 
of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in Annexure-A to this 
explanatory statement.

The Board may increase, alter or vary the above referred terms 
of appointment, salary, commission, performance bonus and 
perquisites including minimum remuneration payable in such 
manner as the Board in its absolute discretion deems fit and 
agreed by Mr. Sudhir Vaid provided that such alterations are 
within the limits specified in Schedule V of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and that of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015, to the extend and when 
becoming applicable or any amendments, modifications or re-
enactments made thereof from time to time.

Mr. Sudhir Vaid shall not be liable to retire by rotation.

Other particulars pertaining to Directors seeking appointment 
/ reappointment at this AGM which are required to be disclosed 
as per Secretarial Standard II issued by Institute of Company 
Secretary of India and notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
are given in Annexure-B.

The board recommends the members to pass this resolution as a 
Special Resolution.

Except Mr. Sudhir Vaid and Mr. Ankur Vaid, none of the Directors, 
and the Key Managerial Personnel of your Company and their 
relatives is directly or indirectly concerned or interested in this 
resolution.

ITEM NO. 7
Mr. Ankur Vaid (DIN 01857225) was appointed as Jt. Managing 
Director and CEO of the Company for a period of 3 years w.e.f. 1st 
June, 2021 to 31st May, 2024 by special resolution passed by the 
members on 13th September, 2021. The tenure of Mr. Ankur Vaid 
as Jt. Managing Director and CEO expires on 31st May, 2024.

The Board of Directors based on recommendation of Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee, thought it fit and in the interest 
of the Company to re-appoint Mr. Ankur Vaid as Jt. Managing 
Director and CEO for a period of 5 years w.e.f. 1st June, 2024 to 
31st May, 2029.

The appointment and payment of remuneration and perquisites 
to Mr. Ankur Vaid is subject to approval of members of the 
Company and other statutory approval as may be required.

The terms of remuneration and perquisites payable to Mr. Ankur 
Vaid is as follows:
Particulars Amount in `
Basic Salary 10,92,500
HRA 4,37,000
Allowances 13,45,500
Total – Per Month 28,75,000

Period of appointment : From 1st June 2024 to 31st May 2029.

Perquisites: Perquisites payable are as under.

(i)	� Group Insurance Policy for self as per the policy of the 
Company.

(ii)	� Contribution to Provident Fund, Superannuation Fund or 
Annuity fund as per the rules of the Company and Gratuity 
as per the “The Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972”.

(iii)	� Encashment of leave at the end of the tenure as per the 
Company’s Rules

A copy of the draft letter for re-appointment of the Director 
setting out the terms and conditions of his re-appointment are 
available for inspection by the Shareholders at the Registered 
Office of the Company during the business hours (except on 
Saturdays and Sundays) and will also be kept available at the 
venue of the AGM till the conclusion of the AGM.

Where in any financial year during the currency of the tenure 
of Mr. Ankur Vaid, Jt. Managing Director and CEO, the Company 
has no profits or if its profits are inadequate, the remuneration 
determined as per Schedule V of the Companies Act, 2013 
be considered as minimum remuneration, subject to such 
statutory approvals as may be applicable. Particulars which are 
required to be disclosed as per Section II, Part-II of Schedule V 
of the Companies Act, 2013 are given in Annexure-A to this 
explanatory statement.

The Board may increase, alter or vary the above referred terms 
of appointment, salary, commission, performance bonus and 
perquisites including minimum remuneration payable in such 
manner as the Board in its absolute discretion deems fit and 
agreed by Mr. Ankur Vaid provided that such alterations are 
within the limits specified in Schedule V of the Companies 
Act, 2013 and that of SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure 
Requirements) Regulations 2015, to the extend and when 
becoming applicable.or any amendments, modifications or re-
enactments made thereof from time to time.

Mr. Ankur Vaid shall be liable to retire by rotation.

Other particulars pertaining to Directors seeking appointment 
/ reappointment at this AGM which are required to be disclosed 
as per Secretarial Standard II issued by Institute of Company 
Secretary of India and notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs 
are given in Annexure-B.

The board recommends the members to pass this resolution as a 
Special Resolution.

Except Mr. Ankur Vaid and Mr. Sudhir Vaid, none of the Directors, 
and the Key Managerial Personnel of your Company and their 
relatives is directly or indirectly concerned or interested in this 
resolution.

ITEM NO. 8
In order to undertake the proposed initial public offering, the 
Company was required to ensure that the articles of association 
of the Company (the “Articles of Association”) conform to the 
requirements prescribed by relevant stock exchanges prior 
to filing of the draft red herring prospectus (“DRHP”) with the 
Securities and Exchange Board of India (“SEBI”) and the relevant 
stock exchanges. Accordingly, the Company had amended its 
Articles of Association and divided it into two parts, Part A and 
Part B, pursuant to a special resolution dated July 8, 2022 passed 
by the shareholders of the Company. The DRHP was filed with 
the SEBI and stock exchanges on August 12, 2022. Pursuant 
to observations received from SEBI on the DRHP, the Articles 
of Association are proposed to be amended to terminate Part 
B in the existing Articles of Association, remove special rights 
available to the Promoters/shareholders from the existing 
Articles of Association and to make corresponding articles cross-
reference changes.

The existing Articles of Association (including both Part A and Part B) and the proposed revised Articles of Association will be made 
available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during the working hours of the Company on any working day and on 
the website of the Company, at 
www.concordbiotech.com up to the date of the annual general meeting.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 14 of the Companies Act, 2013, as applicable, any amendment in Article of Association requires 
approval of the members of the Company by way of a special resolution.

The Board recommends to the members to pass the resolution as Special Resolution.

None of the directors or managers or key managerial personnel or their relatives is concerned or interested in the said resolution 
except to the extent of their shareholding in the Company, if any.

By Order of the Board

(SUDHIR VAID)
Place: Ahmedabad	 DIN: 00055967
Date: 1st July 2023	 Chairman & Managing Director

http://www.concordbiotech.com
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Annexure-A
Statement as required under Section II of Part-II of Schedule V to the Companies Act, 2013 giving details in respect of 
Appointment of Mr. Ankur Vaid as Jt. Managing Director and CEO and Mr. Sudhir Vaid as Chairman & Managing Director

I	 General Information:
	 a)	� Nature of Industry: Biopharma Company and one of the leading global developers and manufacturers of select 

fermentation-based APIs

	 b)	 Date of Commencement of Commercial Production: 1st June 2001

	 c)	� In case of new companies, expected date of commencement of activities as per project approved by financial 
institutions appearing in the prospectus: N.A.

	 d)	 Financial Performance based on given indicators:	 (` in lakhs)
Particulars F. Y. 2021-22 F. Y. 2020-21

Standalone Consolidated Standalone Consolidated
Revenue from operations (Gross) 71293.35 71293.35 61640.44 61640.44
Total Expenses 49519.29 49519.29 31734.09 31734.09
Profit / (Loss) Before Tax 24115.71 23751.94 31316.81 31271.90
Profit / (Loss) After Tax 17856.78 17493.01 23533.48 23488.57
Profit / (Loss) under Section 198 22401.63 - 16633.58 -

	 e)	 Export Performance:	 (Amount in Lacs)
Particulars F. Y. 2021-22 F. Y. 2020-21
FOB Value of Exports 33453.45 36083.07
Net Foreign Exchange Earnings 36924.30 35086.12

	 f)	 Foreign Investments or Collaborations if any:

II	 Information about the Appointees:
Sr. 
No.

Particulars Mr. Sudhir Vaid
(Chairman & Managing Director)

Mr. Ankur Vaid
(Jt. Managing Director and CEO)

1. Background Details One of the Promoter of the Company 
playing a crucial role in 

One of the Promoter of the Company 
and Chief Executive Officer, having 
over 15 years of experience in the 
pharmaceutical industry. 

2. Past Remuneration 40 Lacs Per Month 23 Lacs Per Month
3. Recognition or Awards – –
4. Job Profile and his suitability He has been building our 

technology capabilities, scaling up 
our manufacturing facilities and 
developing our R&D division

He has been involved in the 
development of the research and 
development division of Company

5. Remuneration proposed 50,00,000 p.m. 28,75,000 p.m.
6. Comparative remuneration profile with respect to 

industry, size of the Company, profile of the position and 
person (in case of expatriates the relevant details would 
be w.r.t. the country of his origin):

Remuneration Proposed is as per 
general market standards looking 
at the contribution and size of the 
Company

Remuneration Proposed is as per 
general market standards looking 
at the contribution and size of the 
Company 

7. Pecuniary relationship directly or indirectly with the 
Company or relationship with the managerial personnel

There is Pecuniary relationship with 
the Company or relationship with the 
managerial personnel

There is Pecuniary relationship with 
the Company or relationship with the 
managerial personnel

III	 Other Informations :
	 a.	 Reasons for inadequacies of profits:- N.A.

	 b.	 Steps taken or proposed to be taken for improvement:- N.A.

	 c.	 Expected increase in productivity and profits in measurable terms:- N.A.

IV	� The following disclosure are mentioned in the Director’s Report under the heading “Corporate Governance” attached to the 
financial statement:

	 i.	 all elements of remuneration package such as salary, benefits, bonuses, stock options, pension etc., of all the Directors;

	 ii.	 details of fixed components and performance linked incentives along with the performance criteria;

	 iii.	 service contracts, notice period, severance fees; and

	 iv.	� stock option details, if any, and whether the same has been issued at a discount as well as the period over which accrued 
and over which exercisable.

By Order of the Board

(SUDHIR VAID)
Place: Ahmedabad	 DIN: 00055967
Date: 1st July 2023	 Chairman & Managing Director

Annexure-B
In terms of the Secretarial Standard on General Meetings issued by the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and 
notified by Ministry of Corporate Affairs certain disclosures are required with respect to Directors seeking appointment/re-
appointment at the ensuing Annual General Meeting which is mentioned below:

Name of Director Mr. Utpal Hemendra Sheth Mr. Amit Varma Mr. Sudhir Vaid Mr. Ankur Vaid
DIN 00081012 02241746 00055967 01857225
Date of Birth 20/06/1971 15/09/1968 03/09/1952 14/04/1982
Age of Director 52 years 55 years 71 years 41 years
Date of First Appointment/Re-
appointment

04/12/2009 05/07/2016 10/05/2000 04/12/2009

Qualification Chartered Financial Analyst, 
Cost Accountant and 
Bachelor of Commerce

Bachelor of Medicine 
and Doctor of Medicine

Master of Science Master of Business 
Administration 

Experience 27 years 13 years 49 years 17 years

Terms and Conditions of 
Appointment

Appointed as Professional 
Director

Appointed as 
Professional Director

N.A N.A.

Remuneration sought to be 
paid

Nil Nil 4,80,00,000 2,76,00,000

Remuneration last drawn by 
such person (including Sitting 
Fees)

70,000 Nil 4,80,00,000 2,76,00,000

Designation Director Director Chairman & Managing 
Director

Joint Managing Director 
and CEO

Disclosure of relationship of 
Directors with Manager and 
KMP of the Company

N.A. N.A. Father of Mr. Ankur Vaid 
(Director)
Father of Mrs. Sonal Kumar 
(KMP)
Father in Law of Mrs. Megha 
Vaid (KMP)

Son of Mr. Sudhir Vaid
Brother of Mrs. Sonal 
Kumra
Husband of Mrs. Megha 
Vaid

Names of other Companies 
in which person holds 
Directorship

As per Annexure C As per Annexure D Nil Nil

Names of membership and 
Chairman of the committees of 
the other Companies

As per Annexure C Nil Nil Nil

Number of shares held in the 
Company

Nil Nil 30169524 5,86,520

No. of Board Meetings 
attended during the year

2 4 5 5

By Order of the Board

(SUDHIR VAID)
Place: Ahmedabad	 DIN: 00055967
Date: 1st July 2023	 Chairman & Managing Director
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Annexure – C
Names of other Companies in which Mr. Utpal Sheth holds Directorship:

1.	 Aptech Limited

2.	 Metro Brands Limited

3.	 NCC Limited

4.	 Star Health and Allied Insurance Company Limited

5.	 Insight Asset Management (India) Private Limited

6.	 HRS Insight Financial Intermediaries Private Limited

7.	 Trust Plutus Wealth (India) Private Limited

8.	 Trust Capital Holdings Private Limited

9.	 Trust Plutus Family Office & Investment Advisers (India) Private Limited

10.	 Chanakya Wealth Creation Private Limited

11.	 Inventurus Knowledge Solutions Private Limited

12.	 Hiranandani Financial Services Private Limited

13.	 Trust Asset Management Private Director Limited

14.	 Kabra Extrusion Technik Limited

15.	 Zenex Animal Health india Private Limited

16.	 SNV Aviation Private Limited

17.	 Rare Worldwide Holdings PTE

Names of membership and Chairman of the committees of the other Companies:

1.	 NCC Limited – Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

2.	 Aptech Limited– Member of Nomination and Remuneration Committee

3.	 Metro Brands Limited: Nomination, Remuneration & compensation Committee, Risk Management Committee

4.	� Star Health and allied Insurance Co. Ltd : Nomination and Remuneration Committee – Member, Audit Committee and Risk 
Management Committee

By Order of the Board

(SUDHIR VAID)
Place: Ahmedabad	 DIN: 00055967
Date: 1st July 2023	 Chairman & Managing Director

Annexure D
Names of other Companies in which Dr. Amit Varma holds Directorship:

1	 Nobel Hygiene Pvt Limited

2	 Quadria Capital Advisors Private Limited

3	 Healthquad Advisors Pvt. Ltd

4	 Vimakr Foundation

5	 Asian Institute of Nephrology And Urology Private Limited

6	 IBOF Investment Management Private limited

7	 Quadria Capital Investment Management Pte. Ltd., Singapore

8	 Quadria Capital GP, Cayman Islands

9	 Quadria Capital Management Company, Cayman Islands

10	 Far East Medical HK Limited, Hong Kong

11	 Far East Medical Vietnam Limited, Vietnam

12	 Medical Specialist Asia (previously known as MWH Holdings Pte. Ltd.), Singapore

13	 Quadria Capital Fund II GP, Cayman Island

14	 Quadria Capital Fund II Holdings Pte. Ltd., Singapore

15	 Akums Drugs And Pharmaceutical Limited

16	 Healthquad Capital Advisors Private Limited

17	 ANA Limited, Cayman Island

18	 ANA III Limited, Cayman Island

19	 Encube Ethicals Pvt Limited

20	 Asian Institute Of Gastroenterology private Limited

21	 Quadria Capital Management Company II

22	 Quadria Capital Fund III GP

Names of membership and Chairman of the committees of the other Companies:

1.	 Healthquad Advisors Pvt. Ltd: Member of Investment Committee

2.	 Quadria Capital GP, Cayman Islands: Member of Investment Committee

3.	 Quadria Capital Fund II GP, Cayman Island : Member of Investment Committee

4.	 Akums Drugs And Pharmaceutical Limited : Member of Audit, NRC and CSR Committee

5.	 Healthquad Capital Advisors Private Limited : Member of Investment Committee

6.	 Encube Ethicals Pvt Limited : Member of Audit Committee

7.	 Quadria Capital Fund III GP : Member iof Investment Committee

By Order of the Board

(SUDHIR VAID)
Place: Ahmedabad	 DIN: 00055967
Date: 1st July 2023	 Chairman & Managing Director

Registered Office:
1482-86, Trasad Road, Dholka,
Dist. Ahmedabad- 387810
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT
TO THE MEMBERS:

The Directors have pleasure in presenting the 38th Annual Report together with Audited Statement of Accounts of the Company for 
the financial year ended on 31st March, 2023.

1.	 FINANCIAL RESULTS
	 The financial results of the company for the year under review are as under:

Particulars 2022-23
(`in Lacs)

2021-22
(`in Lacs)

Revenue from Operation 85316.82 71293.35
Other Income 3530.93 2341.65
Share of Profit in Joint venture with Japan 195.93 (363.77)
Profit/loss before Depreciation, Finance Costs, Exceptional items and Tax Expense 37859.68 29669.15
Less: Depreciation/ Amortization/ Impairment 5403.24 5005.08
Profit /loss before Finance Costs, Exceptional items and Tax Expense 32456.44 24664.07
Less: Finance Costs 451.03 548.36
Profit /loss before Exceptional items and Tax Expense 32005.41 24115.71
Add/(less): Exceptional items 0.00 0.00
Profit /loss before Tax Expense 32005.41 24115.71
Less:	 Tax Expense:
	 Current 7953.00 5849.00
	 Deferred 238.16 370.53
Short provision for tax of earlier years 1.61 39.40
Profit /loss for the year (1) 23812.64 17856.78
Total Comprehensive Income/loss (2) 25.75 (55.80)
Total (1+2) 23838.39 17800.98
Balance of profit /loss for earlier years 109764.94 99016.04
Add: Profit for the Year 23812.64 17856.78
Add: Other Comprehensive Income 25.75 (55.80)
Less: Dividend paid on Equity Shares (5356.35) (7052.08)
Less: Dividend paid on Preference Shares 0.00 0.00
Less: Dividend Distribution Tax 0.00 0.00
Balance carried forward 128151.88 109764.94

7.	 INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM
	 Your Company has strong Internal Controls and Risk 

Assessment/ Management systems. These systems enable 
the Company to comply with Internal Company policies, 
procedures, standard guidelines and local laws to help 
protect company’s Assets and Confidential information 
against financial losses and unauthorized use. Further, M/s. 
Ramanlal G. Shah & Co., Chartered Accountants, appointed 
as Internal Auditor of the Company and based on findings 
of Internal Audit Report, the Company further took action 
to strengthen control measures and M/s Manubhai & Shah 
LLP carries out management audit to ensure ongoing 
control and improvement of the systems.

8.	� DETAILS OF SUBSIDIARY/JOINT VENTURES/ASSOCIATE 
COMPANIES

	 Concord Biotech Japan KK based out in Japan is an 
associate Company in which Company holds 50 % Stake.

	 Pursuant to provisions of Section 129(3) of the Companies 
Act, 2013 read with Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014, 
a statement containing salient features of the financial 
statements of the Concord Biotech Japan KK an Associate 
Company, in Form AOC-1 is attached to the financial 
statements of the Company.

9.	 ANNUAL RETURN
	 As per provisions of Section 92(3) Annual Return of the 

Company for the financial year ended on March 31, 2023 is 
placed on the website of the Company and the same can 
be accessed through https://www.concordbiotech.com/
investors

10.	� PARTICULARS OF LOANS, GUARANTEES OR INVESTMENTS 
MADE UNDER SECTION 186 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 
2013

	 Details of Loans, Guarantees and Investment covered under 
Section 186 of the Companies Act, 2013 appear in the notes 
to the financial statement.

11.	� CHANGES IN DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL 
PERSONNEL

	 Mr. Utpal Hemendra Sheth and Mr. Amit Varma, Directors 
of the Company would retire by rotation, and being 
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. Mr. Sudhir 
Vaid, Chairman & Managing Director of the Company 
and Mr. Ankur Vaid, Joint Managing Director and CEO will 
be reappointed due to their expiry of term. As per the 
requirement of the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 
approval of the shareholders is required to be obtained in 
the general meeting of the Company. Necessary resolutions 
are therefore proposed in the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting.

	 During the year, Mr. Rajeev Agarwal resigned from the 
post of Director of the Company with effect from 30th 
May, 2022 and Board places on record their appreciation 
for the contribution made by him during his association 
with the Company. Mr. Arvind Agarwal was appointed as 
an Independent Director on 24th May 2022, Mr. Jayaram 
Easwaran and Mr. Chakaravarthy Mandayam Sriraman both 
were appointed as Independent Directors with effect from 
14th June, 2022.

12.	 DECLARATION BY INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS
	 All the Independent Directors have provided declarations 

that they meet the criteria of independence as laid down 
under Section 149(6) of the Companies Act, 2013.

13.	 NO. OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	 There were total five (5) meetings of the Board of Directors 

of the Company held during the financial year from April 01, 
2022 to March 31, 2023 on following dates:

SR. NO. DATE SR. NO. DATE
1. 24-05-2022 4. 14-09-2022
2. 29-07-2022 5. 11-01-2023
3. 09-08-2022

14.	 DEPOSITS
	 The Company has not accepted any deposits during the 

period under review and there are no outstanding deposits 
as on March 31, 2023. There have been no matured deposits 
remaining unpaid at the year-end.

15.	� PARTICULARS OF CONTRACTS OR ARRAGEMENTS WITH 
RELATED PARTIES

	 The particulars of every contract or arrangements entered 
into by the Company with related parties referred to in 
sub section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 
including arms length transactions under third proviso 
thereto is annexed in Annexure I.

16.	� INFORMATION PURSUANT TO SECTION 134 OF THE 
COMPANIES ACT, 2013

	 a.	 Conservation of energy and technology absorption.
		�  Information pursuant to clause (m) sub-section (3) of 

section 134 of The Companies Act, 2013 read with the 
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014 and forming part of 
this report are given in the Annexure II.

	 b.	� The details of foreign exchange earnings and outgo 
are annexed in Annexure II.

17.	 DIRECTOR’S RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
	 Pursuant to Section 134(3)(c) of the Companies Act, 2013 

the Directors confirm the following:

	 i.	 In the preparation of the annual accounts, the 
applicable accounting standards had been followed 
along with proper explanation relating to material 
departures.

	 ii.	 Your Directors had selected such accounting policies 
and applied them consistently and made judgements 
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent so as 
to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the 
Company at the end of the financial year and of the 
profit of the Company for that period.

	 iii.	 Your Directors had taken proper and sufficient 
care for the maintenance of adequate accounting 
records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for 
preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities.

	 iv.	 Your Directors had prepared the attached Annual 
Accounts for the year ended on March 31, 2023 on a 
going concern basis.

2.	 DIVIDEND
	 The Board has recommended final dividend of ` 6.83/- per 

equity share i.e. 683% on equity shares of ` 1 each for the 
financial year ended on 31st March, 2023. The resultant 
dividend would result in total cash outflow of ` 7145.29 
Lacs.

3.	 RESERVES
	 The Board does not propose to carry any amount to the 

reserves.

4.	� REVIEW OF BUSINESS OPERATIONS AND FUTURE 
PROSPECTS

	 Company continues to add assets and enhance its 
manufacturing abilities to cater the growing market add 
new products to the product portfolio. The injectables 
facility is likely to commence commercial production 
during the current financial year, however considering 
legal requirements revenue from this facility is expected 
during the financial year 2024-25. The new facility has also 
been successfully inspected by the USFDA authorities and 
accordingly, Company will be able to sell the products to 

the United States also from the new facility. During the 
period under review the total revenue of the Company 
increased from ` 71293 lakhs to ` 84018 lakhs.

	 During the year Company has not changed in it’s nature of 
Business.

5.	 LISTING ON STOCK EXCHANGES
	 In order to meet its commitments as per the investment 

agreement entered into with the investors, the Board 
of Directors of the Company has subject to necessary 
approvals and market conditions decided to list the shares 
of the Company on stock exchanges through offer of sale 
by the existing investors. While no fresh funds are proposed 
to be raised by Company the listing will be beneficial for its 
stakeholders.

6.	 MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS
	 There are no material changes and commitments have 

occurred between the end of financial year and date of 
the report, which could affect financial position of the 
Company.

https://www.concordbiotech.com/investors
https://www.concordbiotech.com/investors
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	 v.	 Your Directors had devised proper systems to ensure 
compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws 
and that such systems were adequate and operating 
effectively.

18.	 AUDIT COMMITTEE:
	 The Audit Committee of the Company is constituted in line 

with the provisions of Section 177 of the Companies Act, 
2013. The composition of audit committee is given below:

Name Category
Amitabh Thakore Independent, Non- Executive Member 

Chairman
Dr. Arvind Agarwal Independent, Non-Executive 
Amit Varma Non-Executive Director-Member

	 During the year two Audit Committee Meetings were held 
on 18.07.2022 and 11.01.2023.

19.	� POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND 
REMUNERATION AND OTHER DETAILS

	 The Company has formed a Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee of Directors in line with the provisions of 
Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013. The composition 
of committee is given below:

Name Category
Amitabh Thakore Chairman (Independent Non- Executive)
Dr. Amit Varma Member (Non-Independent Non- Executive)
Bharti Khanna Independent, Non-Executive Member

	 During the year two Meetings of Nomination and 
Remuneration Committee were held on 24.05.2022 and 
18.07.2022

	 The Nomination and Remuneration Committee has 
formulated policy relating to the remuneration for the 
directors, KMPs and other employees and same is attached 
as Annexure III.

20.	 CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY:
	 The brief outline of the Corporate Social Responsibility 

(CSR) Policy of the Company and the initiatives undertaken 
by the Company on CSR activity during the year are set 
out in Annexure IV of this report in the format prescribed 
in the Companies (Corporate Social Responsibility Policy) 
Rules, 2014. The policy is available on the website of the 
Company.

21.	 SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT
	 Pursuant to Section 204 of the Act, the Secretarial Audit 

Report for the Financial Year ended on 31st March, 2023 
provided by Mr. Ashish Shah of M/s. Ashish Shah & 
Associates, Practicing Company Secretary is annexed 
herewith as Annexure-V to this Report.

22.	 AUDITORS
	 M/s. Deloitte Haskins & Sells, Chartered Accountants, (Firm 

Registration No. 117365W) has been appointed in the 
Annual General Meeting of Financial Year 2018-19 for a term 
of 5 consecutive years from the Annual General Meeting 
of Financial Year 2018-19 till the conclusion of the Annual 
General Meeting for the Financial Year 2023-24.

23.	� EXPLANATION OR COMMENTS ON QUALIFICATIONS, 
RESERVATIONS OR ADVERSE REMARKS OR DISCLAIMERS 
MADE BY THE AUDITORS AND SECRETARIAL AUDITOR

	 There are no qualifications or comments by the Statutory 
Auditors and Secretarial Auditors which require explanation 
from the Directors.

24.	� DETAILS OF SIGNIFICANT AND MATERIAL ORDERS 
PASSED BY THE REGULATORS OR COURTS OR TRIBUNALS 
IMPACTING THE GOING CONCERN STATUS AND 
COMPANY’S OPERATIONS IN FUTURE.

	 There are no material orders passed by the Regulators, 
Courts, and tribunals impacting going concern status and 
the Company’s operations in future.

25.	 VIGIL MECHANISM:
	 In Compliance with the provisions of Companies Act, 

2013, the Company has established a vigil mechanism and 
overseas through the Committee, the genuine concerns 
about unethical behavior expressed by the employees 
and other Directors. The Company has also provided 
adequate safeguards against victimization of employees 
and Directors who express their concerns. The Company 
has also provided direct access to the Chairman of the Audit 
Committee on reporting issues concerning the interests of 
employees and the Company. The board has approved a 
policy for vigil mechanism which has been hosted on the 
website of the Company.

26.	 RISK MANAGEMENT POLICY OF THE COMPANY:
	 The Company has structured risk management policy. 

The Risk management process is designed to safeguard 
the organization from various risks through adequate 
and timely actions. It is designed to anticipate, evaluate 
and mitigate risks in order to minimize its impact on the 
business. The potential risks are inventoried and integrated 
with the management process such that they receive the 
necessary consideration during decision making. It is dealt 
with in greater details in the management discussion and 
analysis section

27.	� INCREASE AND SUB DIVISION IN AUTHORISED SHARE 
CAPITAL:

	 The Share Capital of the Company was subdivided from 
existing ₹ 10,000,00,00/- consisting of ₹ 1,00,00,000 
equity shares of face value of ₹ 10 each to ₹ 10,00,00,000 
consisting of 10,00,00,000 equity shares of face value of 
₹ 1 each during the year. Further the authorized share 
capital of the Company was increased from the existing 
₹ 10,00,00,000/- (Rupees ten crore only) divided into 
10,00,00,000 equity shares of ₹ 1/- (Rupees one only) each 
to ₹ 11,00,00,000/- (Rupees Eleven Crores only) divided into 
11,00,00,000/- (Eleven Crores) equity shares of ₹ 1/- (Rupees 
One only) each.

	 There were no other changes in the Share Capital during 
the year.

28.	� INCREASE IN ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE 
CAPITAL:

	 The Paid-Up Share Capital of the Company was increased 
from ` 9,51,05,640/- to ` 10,46,16,204/- during the year by 
allotment of 9510564 as Bonus Shares on 8th July 2022.

	 There were no other changes in the Paid-Up Share Capital 
during the year.

29.	� MAINTENANCE OF COST RECORDS AS SPECIFIED BY THE 
CENTRAL GOVERNMENT UNDER SUB SECTION (1) OF 
SECTION 148 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 AND STATUS 
OF THE SAME:

	 M/s. Dalwadi & Associates, Cost Accountants have been 
duly reappointed as Cost Auditors of the Company for the 
financial year 2022-23. The cost records as specified by the 
Central Government under sub section (1) of section 148 of 
the Companies Act, 2013 are made and maintained by the 
Company.

30.	� CONSTITUTION OF INTERNAL COMPLAINTS COMMITTEE 
UNDER THE SEXUAL HARASSMENT OF WOMEN AT 
WORKPLACE (PREVENTION, PROHIBITION AND 
REDRESSAL) ACT, 2013:

	 The Company has established an Internal Complaint 
Committee under the Sexual Harassment of Woman at 
Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 
2013.

	 During the year under review, there were no incidences of 
sexual harassment reported.

31.	� DETAILS IN RESPECT OF FRAUDS REPORTED BY AUDITORS 
UNDER SUB-SECTION (12) OF SECTION 143 OTHAR 
THAN THOSE WHICH ARE REPORTABLE TO THE CENTRAL 
GOVERNMENT:

	 No frauds have been noticed or reported during the year 
under audit report which are reportable to the Central 
Government.

32.	 HUMAN RESOURCES
	 The employees have played a major role in the performance 

of the Company over the years. They will continue to be 
the Company’s pillars of strength in the years to come as 
proper training and exposure to the new products will 
be forthcoming. Industrial relations in the Company were 
amicable throughout the year under review.

33.	 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT
	 The Directors wish to express their gratitude towards the 

Bankers of the Company for the cooperation provided 
by them throughout the year. The Directors also place on 
record the trust put in by the members in the management 
of the Company. Your Directors are also grateful to all the 
agencies, customers, suppliers and all other concerned 
persons, who have cooperated in the business of the 
Company.

	 For and on behalf of the board of Directors
	 Concord Biotech Limited

	 Sudhir Vaid	 Ankur Vaid
Place: Ahmedabad	 Chairman & Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director
Date: 1st July, 2023	 DIN-00055967	 DIN-01857225
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Annexure-I

FORM NO. AOC-2
(Pursuant to clause (h) of sub-section (3) of section 134 of the Act and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)

Form for disclosure of particulars of contracts/arrangements entered into by the company with related parties referred to in sub-
section (1) of section 188 of the Companies Act, 2013 including certain arm’s length transactions under third proviso thereto

1.	 Details of contracts or arrangements or transactions not at arm’s length basis:

Name of 
Related 
Party

Nature of 
Relationship

Nature of 
Contract / 
Arrangements / 
Transactions

Duration of 
Contracts / 
Arrangements / 
Transactions

Salient Terms of 
the Contracts / 
Arrangements / 
Transactions

Justification 
of entering

Date of 
Approval 
by Board

Amount 
paid in 
Advance

Date on which 
Special Resolution 
was passed in 
general meeting 
U/S 188

NIL

2.	 Details of material contracts or arrangement or transactions at arm’s length basis:

Name of 
Related Party

Nature of 
Relationship

Nature of Contract 
/ Arrangements / 
Transactions

Duration of 
Contracts / 

Arrangements / 
Transactions

Salient Terms of 
the Contracts / 
Arrangements / 
Transactions

Transactions 
Value

Date of 
Approval 
by Board

Amount 
paid in 

Advance

Mr. Sudhir Vaid Chairman and 
Managing Director

Lease Agreement 3 Years Lease Office at 
Mondeal Heights

Lease rent of 
` 121.60 lakhs 
p.a.

01/07/2023 Nil

Mrs. Manju Vaid Wife of Chairman 
& MD

Lease Agreement 3 Years Lease Office at 
Mondeal Heights

Lease rent of 
` 39.14 lakhs 
p.a.

01/07/2023 Nil

Col. S.K. Vaid Brother of MD Service Contract N.A. Providing of 
professional 
Services

Increase in 
service charges 
from 4.05 lakhs 
p.m. to 3.52 
lakhs p.m.

29/07/2022 NIL

Mrs. Megha Vaid Wife of Joint MD Remuneration N.A. Periodical review 
by board

Increase in 
monthly 
Remuneration 
from ` 4.14 to 
` 5.59 lakhs 
p.m.

29/07/2022 NIL

Mrs. Sonal Kumra Daughter of MD remuneration N.A. Periodical review 
by board

Increase in 
monthly 
Remuneration 
from ` 4.57 to 
` 6.12 lakhs 
p.m.

29/07/2022 NIL

Concord Biotech 
Japan K.K.

Joint Venture Sale of Goods N.A. Sale of Goods at 
prevailing market 
rate

` 5395.70 lacs 
p.a.

01/07/2023 Nil

	 For and on behalf of the board of Directors
	 Concord Biotech Limited

	 Sudhir Vaid	 Ankur Vaid
Place: Ahmedabad	 Chairman & Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director
Date: 1st July, 2023	 DIN-00055967	 DIN-01857225

Annexure-II

PARTICULARS REQUIRED UNDER THE COMPANIES (ACCOUNTS) RULES, 2014

A.	 PARTICULARS WITH RESPECT TO CONSERVATION OF ENERGY
	 a.	 The Steps taken or impact on conservation of energy:-
		�  The Company attaches a great deal of importance to energy conservation. Efforts to conserve Energy continued during the 

year through timely preventive maintenance and inspection of major plant and machinery and replacement of equipment 
are carried out wherever necessitated.

	 b.	 The steps taken by the Company for utilizing alternate sources of energy
		  Company at present does not intend to use any alternate source of energy.

	 c.	 The Capital investment on energy conservation equipments
		  No Capital investments are planned at this stage.

B.	 TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION
	 i.	 Efforts made towards technology absorption:
		  We have state of the art R & D facilities and developments are carried out to adopt and upgrade new developments.

	 ii.	 The benefits derived like product improvement, cost reduction, product development or import substitution
		�  At Concord, product improvement and cost reduction is an ongoing process. Company though imports some key raw 

materials but is not totally dependent on such imported materials.

	 iii.	� In case of imported technology (imported during the last three years reckoned from the beginning of the financial 
year) –

		  (a)	 The details of technology imported : Company has imported technology for Anti-Bacterial Drugs.

		  (b)	 The year of import : 2020 & 2021

		  (c)	� Whether the technology been fully absorbed : While technology for one product has been adopted, for the other its 
in the process of implementation.

		  (d)	 If not fully absorbed, areas where absorption has not taken place, and the reasons thereof

	 iv.	 The expenditure incurred on Research and Development

		�  Company has incurred Revenue Expenditure of ` 2958.91 lacs and Capital Expenditure of ` 231.16 lacs during the current 
year on Research and Development.

C.	 FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND OUTGO:
	� Total earnings in foreign exchange for the year ended 31st March, 2023 were ` 41641.03 Lacs and the total outflow was 

` 2978.81 Lacs.

	 For and on behalf of the board of Directors
	 Concord Biotech Limited

	 Sudhir Vaid	 Ankur Vaid
Place: Ahmedabad	 Chairman & Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director
Date: 1st July, 2023	 DIN-00055967	 DIN-01857225
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ANNEXURE III

POLICY ON REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS, KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL (“KMP”) AND OTHER 
EMPLOYEES

Preamble
This Policy on Remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel (“KMP”) and Other Employees (hereinafter referred as the 
“Policy”) of Concord Biotech Limited (“the Company”) is designed and formulated by the Nomination and Remuneration Committee 
(”the Committee”) of the Company pursuant to the Companies Act, 2013 (the “Act”) and rules made thereunder. In case of any 
inconsistency between the provisions of law and this remuneration policy, the provisions of the law shall prevail and the Company 
shall abide by the applicable law.

The Policy lays down the criteria with regard to remuneration of Directors, KMP and other employees.

A.	� Guiding Principles for remuneration: The Company shall remunerate all its personnel reasonably and sufficiently as per 
industry benchmarks and standards. The remuneration shall be commensurate with their contributions and shall be sufficient 
enough to retain and motivate the human resources of the Company. The compensation package will, inter alia, take into 
account the experience of the personnel, the knowledge and skill required including complexity of the job, work duration and 
risks associated with the work, and attitude of the worker like positive outlook, team work, loyalty, past remuneration, past 
performance etc.

	� The level and components of the remuneration shall be such so as to align with the long term interest of the company and its 
shareholders.

B.	 Components of Remuneration:
	� The following will be the various remuneration components which may be paid to the personnel of the Company based on the 

designation and class of the personnel.

	 a.	� Fixed compensation: The fixed salaries of the Company’s personnel shall be competitive and based on the individual 
personnel’s responsibilities and performance.

	 b.	 Variable compensation: The personnel of the Company may be paid remuneration by way of variable salaries based on 
their performance evaluation. Such variable salaries should be based on the performance of the individual against his 
short and long term performance objectives and the performance of the Company.

	 c.	 Share based payments: The Board of Directors may, on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration 
Committee, issue to certain class of personnel a share and share price related incentive program.

	 d.	 Non-monetary benefits: Senior management personnel of the Company may, on a case to case basis, be awarded 
customary non-monetary benefits such as discounted salary advance /credit facility, rent free accommodation, Company 
cars with or without chauffer’s, share and share price related incentive, reimbursement of electricity and telephone bills etc.

	 e.	 Commission: The directors may be paid commission if approved by the shareholders. The shareholders may authorise the 
Board to declare commission to be paid to any director of the Board.

	 f.	 Retirement benefits: The Company shall provide retirement benefits applicable in accordance with law.

	 g.	 Sitting Fee and Commission: The Company may pay sitting fee for attending Board and Committee meeting and 
commission to the Directors of the Company in compliance with law.

	 h.	 Loan/ advances to the Employees: The Company may give loan or advances to the employees in accordance with the 
provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the terms and conditions of the Loan Policy of the Company, as approved by 
the Board or any Committees thereof, from time to time.

C.	� Entitlement: The authority to determine the entitlement to various components as aforesaid for each class and 
designation of personnel shall be as follows:
Designation / Class To be determined by
Managing Director/ Joint Managing 
Director/ Whole Time Director

The remuneration for the Managing Director/ Joint Managing Director/ Whole-time Director is as per 
the agreement approved by the shareholders on recommendation of the Board of Directors. In case of 
any change, the same would require the approval of the shareholders on recommendation of the Board 
of Directors and other applicable compliances required by laws.

Independent Directors* Board of Directors / Executive Committee
Other Directors Board of Directors
Senior Management Recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee and approval of Board of Directors
Recommendation of the Nomination 
and Remuneration Committee and 
approval of Board of Directors

Departmental Heads in consultation with Human Resources Head

	 *Sitting fee payable to the directors shall be as approved by the Board in accordance with the provisions of the law.

D.	� Amendment: The Remuneration policy may be reviewed by the Board of the Company on the recommendation of the 
Nomination & Remuneration Committee of the Board.

Annexure IV

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2023

1.	 Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:
	� Concord Biotech Limited shall strive to reach out to the under-privileged, needy and weaker sections of the society and to 

address the social, educational, cultural, environmental and economic needs of such sections of the society. The company shall 
give preference to the local area of its operations.

	 Key Focus Areas of the CSR Policy are
	 a)	 Promoting education

	 b)	 Health Care

	 c)	 Sustainable Livelihood

	 d)	 Protection of the environment

	 e)	 Promotion of sports

	 f )	 Gender Equality & Empowerment of Women

	 g)	 Rural Development

	 h)	 Infrastructure development

2.	 Composition of the CSR Committee:
Sl. 

No.
Name of Director Designation / Nature of Directorship Number of meetings of CSR 

Committee held during 
the year

Number of meetings of 
CSR Committee attended 

during the year
1 Mr. Ankur Vaid Chairman and Joint Managing Director & CEO - -
2 Mr. Rajiv Agarwal Member and Director - -
3 Dr. Amit Varma Member and Director - -
4 Mrs. Bharti Khanna Member and Director - -

3.	� Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR Committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved by the Board are 
disclosed on the website of the Company :

	 Weblink for composition of CSR Committee is https://www.concordbiotech.com/social-responsibility-policy

	 Weblink for CSR Policy is https://www.concordbiotech.com/social-responsibility-policy

	 Weblink for CSR Projects as approved by the Board is https://www.concordbiotech.com/csr

4.	� Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 8 of the Companies 
(Corporate Social Responsibility) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the report) : N.A.	

5.	� Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of Rule 7 of the Companies (Corporate Social 
Responsibility) Rules, 2014, and amount required for set off for the financial year, if any	

Sr. No. Financial Year Amount available for set-off from 
preceding financial years (in `)

Amount required to be setoff for the 
financial year, if any (in `)

N.A.

6.	 Average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) : ` 24774.80 lakhs

7.	 (a)	 Two percent of average net profit of the Company as per Section 135(5) : 449.46 lakhs

	 (b)	 Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years : Nil

	 (c)	 Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any : Nil

	 (d)	 Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a + 7b - 7c) : 449.46 lakhs

https://www.concordbiotech.com/social-responsibility-policy
https://www.concordbiotech.com/social-responsibility-policy
https://www.concordbiotech.com/csr
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8.	 (a)	 CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:

Amount Unspent (In ` Lakhs)
Total Amount Spent 

for the Financial Year
(in ` Lakhs)

Total Amount transferred to Unspent 
CSR Account as per Section 135(6)

Amount transferred to any fund specified under Schedule VII 
as per second proviso to Section 135(5)

Amount (in ` Lakhs) Date of Transfer Name of the Fund Amount (in ` Lakhs) Date of Transfer
` 497.29 lakhs Nil Nil

	 (b)	 Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10) (11)
Sl 

No.
Name 
of the 

project

Item 
from 
list of 

activities 
in 

Schedule 
VII of the 

Act

Local 
Area 
(Yes/
No)

Location of the 
project

Project 
duration

Amt 
allocated 

for the 
project(in 

lakhs)

Amt 
spend 
in the 

current 
financial 
year (in 
Lakhs)

Amt transfer 
to unspent 

CSR account 
for the 

Project as 
per section 
135(6) (in 

Lakhs)

Mode of 
implemen-

tation – 
Direct 

(yes / No)

Mode of 
implementation 

through 
implementation 

agency
State District Name CSR 

registration 
number

N.A.

	 (c)	 Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:

(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) 
Sl.

No. 
Name of
the Project 

Item from 
the list of 

activities in 
schedule VII 
to the Act. 

Local 
area 
(Yes/ 
No). 

Location of the 
project. 

Amount
spent for 

the project
(in 

` Lakhs). 

Mode of 
implemen-
tation on 

- Direct 
(Yes/No). 

Mode of implementation - 
Through implementing agency. 

State. District. Name. CSR
registration number. 

1 Educational 135(ii) No Majorly 
Gujarat 

and Across 
India

N.A.  299.29 Direct N.A. N.A.

2 Medical 135(i) No Gujarat N.A. 105.34 Direct N.A. N.A.
3 Environmental 

sustainability
135(iv) No Gujarat N.A.  50.46 Direct N.A. N.A.

4 Rural Development 135(x) No Gujarat N.A. 16.50 Direct N.A. N.A.
5 Promoting Sports 135 (vii) No Gujarat N.A.  6.00 Direct N.A. N.A.
6 Cultural 135(v) No Gujarat N.A. 2.96 Direct N.A. N.A.

TOTAL 480.55

	 (d)	 Amount spent in Administrative Overheads : ` 16.74 lakhs

	 (e)	 Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable : N.A.

	 (f)	 Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) : ` 497.29 lakhs

	 (g)	 Excess amount for set off, if any:

Sl. 
No.

Particular Amount 
(in ` Lakhs)

(i) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5) 495.46
(ii) Total amount spent for the Financial Year 497.29
(iii) Excess amount spent for the financial year [(ii)-(i)] 1.83
(iv) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial years, if any Nil
(v) Amount available for set off in succeeding financial years [(iii)-(iv)] 1.83

9.	 (a)	 Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years:
Sr. 
No.

Preceding 
Financial Year

Amount Transferred 
to Unspent CSR 
Account  under 
Section 135(6) 

(` in Lakhs

Amount 
spent in the 
Reporting 

Financial Year 
(` in Lakhs)

Amount Spent to any Specified Fund 
mentioned in Schedule VII as per 

Section 135(6), if any

Amount remaining 
to be spent 

in remaining 
Financial Years 

(` in Lakhs) 
Name of the Fund Amount (`) in 

lakhs
Date of 

Transfer
1 2021-22  N.A. N. A.  N. A.   Nil  N.A.  N.A.
2 2020-21  N.A.  N. A.  N. A.  Nil  N.A.  N.A.
3 2019-20  N.A.  N. A.  N. A.  Nil  N.A.  N.A.
  TOTAL  N.A. N. A.   N. A.  Nil  N.A.  N.A.

	 (b)	 Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial year(s):

Sr. 
No.

Project ID Name of 
the Project

Financial Year 
in which the 
project was 
commenced

Project 
Duration

Total Amt 
allocated for 
the project 
(in ` Lakhs)

Amt spent on 
the project in 
the reporting 

financials year

Cumulative amt 
spent at the end 
of the reporting 

financial year

Status of 
the project - 
Completed / 

ongoing
N.A.

Total

10.	� In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created or acquired through CSR 
spent in the financial year (asset-wise details): N.A.

	 (a)	 Date of creation or acquisition of the capital asset(s)	

	 (b)	 Amount of CSR spent for creation or acquisition of capital asset	

	 (c)	� Details of the entity or public authority or beneficiary under whose name such capital asset is registered, their address, 
etc.	

	 (d)	� Provide details of the capital asset(s) created or acquired (including complete address and location of the capital 
asset)	

11.	 Specify the reason(s), if the Company has failed to spend two per cent of the average net profit as per Section 135(5) : N.A.

	 Sudhir Vaid	 Ankur Vaid
Place: Ahmedabad	 Managing Director	 Chairman of CSR Committee
Date: 1st July, 2023	 DIN-00055967	 DIN-01857225
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Members of Concord Biotech Limited

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying standalone financial 
statements of Concord Biotech Limited (“the Company”), which 
comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the 
Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other Comprehensive 
Income), the Cash Flow Statement and the Statement of Changes 
in Equity for the year then ended, and a summary of significant 
accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended, (“Ind AS”) and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the state of affairs of the Company 
as at March 31, 2023, and its profit, total comprehensive income, 
its cash flows and the changes in equity for the year ended on 
that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the standalone financial statements 
in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified 
under section 143(10) of the Act. Our responsibilities under those 
Standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibility 
for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements section 
of our report. We are independent of the Company in 
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) together with the ethical 
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the standalone 
financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the 
Rules made thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical 
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the 
ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence obtained 
by us is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit 
opinion on the standalone financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s 
Report Thereon

•	� The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Director’s report including 
annexures to Director’s report, but does not include the 
consolidated financial statements, standalone financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

•	� Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does 
not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

•	� In connection with our audit of the standalone financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and, in doing so, consider whether the other 

information is materially inconsistent with the standalone 
financial statements or our knowledge obtained during the 
course of our audit or otherwise appears to be materially 
misstated.

•	� If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that 
there is a material misstatement of this other information, 
we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to 
report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 
Governance for the Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 
matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the 
preparation of these standalone financial statements that 
give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial 
performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows 
and changes in equity of the Company in accordance with the 
Ind AS and other accounting principles generally accepted in 
India. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate 
accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act 
for safeguarding the assets of the Company and for preventing 
and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and 
application of appropriate accounting policies; making 
judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and 
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal 
financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring 
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, 
relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial 
statement that give a true and fair view and are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the standalone financial statements, management is 
responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or 
to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Company’s Board of Directors are also responsible for 
overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Standalone 
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about 
whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and 
to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
standalone financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	� Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of 
the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	� Obtain an understanding of internal financial control 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under 
section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for 
expressing our opinion on whether the Company has 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
standalone financial statements in place and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls.

•	� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by the management.

•	� Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use 
of the going concern basis of accounting and, based 
on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material 
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that 
may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to 
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material 
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our 
auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone 
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, 
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the 
audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s 
report. However, future events or conditions may cause the 
Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

•	� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the standalone financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the standalone financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the standalone 
financial statements that, individually or in aggregate, makes 
it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably 
knowledgeable user of the standalone financial statements 
may be influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and 
qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work 
and in evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the 
effect of any identified misstatements in the standalone financial 
statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance 
regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and 
timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any 
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during 
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1.	� As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit 
we report that:

	 a.	� We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit.

	 b.	� In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law have been kept by the Company so far as it 
appears from our examination of those books.

	 c.	� The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss 
including Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash 
Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity 
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the 
relevant books of account.

	 d.	� In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone 
financial statements comply with the Ind AS specified 
under Section 133 of the Act.

	 e.	� On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on 
record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors 
is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164(2) of 
the Act.

	 f.	� With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements of the Company and the operating 
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate 
Report in “Annexure A”. Our report expresses an 
unmodified opinion on the adequacy and operating 
effectiveness of the Company’s internal financial 
controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements.

	 g.	� With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements 
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended.

		�  In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Company to its directors 
during the year is in accordance with the provisions of 
section 197 of the Act.

	 h.	� With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given 
to us:

		  i.	� The Company has disclosed the impact of 
pending litigations on its financial position in its 
standalone financial statements.

		  ii.	� The Company did not have any long-term 
contracts including derivative contracts for 
which there were any material foreseeable losses.

		  iii.	� There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Company.
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		  iv.	 (a)	�  The Management has represented that, 
to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the note 43 to the standalone 
financial statements, no funds have been 
advanced or loaned or invested (either 
from borrowed funds or share premium 
or any other sources or kind of funds) by 
the Company to or in any other persons 
or entities, including foreign entities 
(“Intermediaries”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Intermediary shall, directly or 
indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

			   (b) 	� The Management has represented that, 
to the best of it’s knowledge and belief, 
as disclosed in note 43 to the standalone 
financial statements, no funds have been 
received by the Company from any persons 
or entities, including foreign entities 
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded writing or otherwise, that 
the Company shall, directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries.

			   (c) 	� Based on the audit procedures that 
has been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 
has come to our notice that has caused us 
to believe that the representations under 

sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as 
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain 
any material misstatement.

		  v.	� The final dividend proposed in the previous year, 
declared and paid by the Company during the 
year is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, 
as applicable.

			�   As stated in note 45(b) to the standalone 
financial statements, the Board of Directors of 
the Company has proposed final dividend for 
the year which is subject to the approval of 
the members at the ensuing Annual General 
Meeting. The dividend proposed is in accordance 
with section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

		  vi.	� Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account 
using accounting software which has a feature 
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is 
applicable to the Company w.e.f. April 1, 2023, 
and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is 
not applicable for the financial year ended March 
31, 2023.

2.	� As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in 
terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in “Annexure 
B” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 
and 4 of the Order.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No: 117365W)

Hardik Sutaria
(Partner)

Place: Ahmedabad� (Membership No. 116642)
Date: July 01, 2023� UDIN: 23116642BGWGCZ3998

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
standalone financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to 
standalone financial statements of Concord Biotech Limited (“the 
Company”) as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of 
the standalone Ind AS financial statements of the Company for 
the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management is responsible for establishing 
and maintaining internal financial controls with reference 
to standalone financial statements based on the internal 
control with reference to standalone financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. 
These responsibilities include the design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and 
efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to 
respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, 
the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s 
internal financial controls with reference to standalone 
financial statements of the Company based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
(the “Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of India and the Standards on Auditing prescribed 
under Section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent 
applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference 
to financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note 
require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone 
financial statements was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
with reference to standalone financial statements and their 

operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
with reference to standalone financial statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with 
reference to standalone financial statements, assessing the risk 
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the 
design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on 
the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to 
standalone financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
Standalone financial statements
A company’s internal financial control with reference to 
standalone financial statements is a process designed to provide 
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of standalone financial statements 
for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted 
accounting principles. A company’s internal financial control 
with reference to standalone financial statements includes those 
policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of 
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect 
the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; 
(2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded 
as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and 
that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made 
only in accordance with authorisations of management and 
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance 
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised 
acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could 
have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to Standalone financial statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
with reference to standalone financial statements, including the 
possibility of collusion or improper management override of 
controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur 
and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the 
internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial 
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the 
internal financial control with reference to financial statements 
may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or 
that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures 
may deteriorate.
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ANNEXURE “B” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

(Referred to in paragraph 2 under ‘Report on Other Legal and 
Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)
In terms of the information and explanations sought by us and 
given by the Company and the books of account and records 
examined by us in the normal course of audit and to the best 
of our knowledge and belief, we state that:
(i)	 (a)	  (A)	�  The Company has maintained proper records 

showing full particulars, including quantitative 
details and situation of Property, Plant and 
Equipment, capital work-in-progress and 
relevant details of right-of-use assets.

		   (B)	�  The Company has maintained proper records 
showing full particulars of intangible assets.

	 (b)	� Some of the Property, Plant and Equipment, capital 
work-in-progress, and right-of-use assets were 
physically verified during the year by the Management 
in accordance with programme of verification, which 
in our opinion provides for physical verification of all 
the Property, Plant and Equipment, capital work-
in-progress and right-of-use assets at reasonable 
intervals having regard to the size of the Company 
and the nature of its activities. According to the 
information and explanations given to us, no material 
discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

	 (c)	� Based on the examination of the registered sale deed 
/ transfer deed / conveyance deed provided to us, 
we report that, the title deeds, of all the immovable 
properties (other than immovable properties where 
the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements 
are duly executed in favour of the Company) disclosed 
in the financial statements included in Property, Plant 
and Equipment are held in the name of the Company 
as at the balance sheet date.

	 (d)	� The Company has not revalued any of its property, 
plant and equipment (including Right of Use assets) 
and intangible assets during the year.

	 (e)	� No proceedings have been initiated during the year 
or are pending against the Company as at March 
31, 2023 for holding any benami property under 
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 (as 
amended in 2016) and rules made thereunder.

(ii)	 (a)	� The inventories were physically verified during the 
year by the Management at reasonable intervals. In 
our opinion and according to the information and 
explanation given to us, the coverage and procedure 
of such verification by the Management is appropriate 
having regard to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its operations. No discrepancies of 10% or 
more in the aggregate for each class of inventories 
were noticed on such physical verification of 
inventories when compared with books of accounts.

	 (b)	� According to the information and explanations given 
to us, the Company has been sanctioned working 
capital limits in excess of `. 5 crores, in aggregate, at 

points of time during the year, from banks or financial 
institutions on the basis of security of current assets. 
In our opinion and according to the information 
and explanations given to us including the revised 
submissions made by the Company to its lead bankers 
based on closure of books of accounts at the year 
end, the revised quarterly returns or statements 
comprising stock statements, book debt statements, 
credit monitoring arrangement reports, statements 
on ageing analysis of the debtors/other receivables, 
and other stipulated financial information filed by the 
Company with such banks or financial institutions are 
in agreement with the unaudited books of account 
of the Company of the respective quarters and no 
material discrepancies have been observed.

(iii)	� The Company has not provided any guarantee or security 
or granted any loans or advances in the nature of loans, 
secured or unsecured, to companies, firms, Limited Liability 
Partnerships or any other parties during the year, and hence 
sub-clauses iii (a), (b), (c), (d), (e) and (f ) under clause (iii) of 
the Order are not applicable.

(iv)	� The Company has not granted any loans, made investments 
or provided guarantees or securities and hence reporting 
under clause (iv) of the Order is not applicable.

(v)	� According to the information and explanations given to 
us, the Company has not accepted any deposits during 
the year from public to which directives issued by Reserve 
Bank of India and the provisions of Section 73 to 76 or any 
other relevant provisions of the Act and the Companies 
(Acceptance of Deposits) Rules, 2014, as amended, would 
apply. Accordingly, the provisions of clause (v) of the Order 
are not applicable.

(vi)	� The maintenance of cost records has been specified by 
the Central Government under section 148 (1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013. We have broadly reviewed the 
books of account maintained by the Company pursuant 
to the Companies (Cost Records and Audit) Rules, 2014, 
as amended, prescribed by the Central Government for 
maintenance of cost records under Section 148(1) of the 
Companies Act, 2013, and are of the opinion that, prima 
facie, the prescribed cost records have been made and 
maintained by the Company. We have, however, not made 
a detailed examination of the cost records with a view to 
determine whether they are accurate or complete.

(vii)	 In respect of statutory dues:

	 (a)	� Undisputed statutory dues, including Goods and 
Service tax, Provident Fund, Employees’ State 
Insurance, Income-tax, duty of Custom, Professional 
Tax cess and other material statutory dues applicable 
to the Company have generally been regularly 
deposited by it with the appropriate authorities 
however there have been few delays in respect of 
remittance of Goods and service Tax, Tax deposit at 
source and Advance tax.

Opinion
In our opinion, to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all 
material respects, adequate internal financial controls with 
reference to standalone financial statements and such 
internal financial controls with reference to standalone 
financial statements were operating effectively as at March 

31, 2023, based on the criteria for internal financial control with 
reference to standalone financial statements established by 
the Company considering the essential components of internal 
control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial 
Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of India.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No: 117365W)

Hardik Sutaria
(Partner)

Place: Ahmedabad� (Membership No. 116642)
Date: July 01, 2023� UDIN: 23116642BGWGCZ3998 
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		�  There were no undisputed amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Income Tax, Customs Duty, Professional Tax, 
Goods & Service Tax, cess and other material statutory dues in arrears as at March 31, 2023 for a period of more than six 
months from the date they became payable.

	 (b)	� Details of statutory dues referred to in sub-clause (a) above which have not been deposited as on March 31, 2023 on 
account of disputes are given below:

Name of Statue Nature of the 
Dues

Amount 
involved (`. in 

lacs)

Amount 
unpaid (`. in 

lacs)

Period to which 
amount relates

Forum where dispute is 
pending

The Income tax Act, 1961 Income tax 9.43 -  A.Y.
2013-14

The Commissioner of Income 
tax (Appeals)

The Income tax Act, 1961 Income tax 8.36 8.36  A.Y.
2015-16

The Commissioner of Income 
tax (Appeals)

The Income tax Act, 1961 Income tax 15.11 15.11  A.Y.
2016-17

The Commissioner of Income 
tax (Appeals)

The Income tax Act, 1961 Income tax 48.57 42.74  A.Y.
2018-19

The Commissioner of Income 
tax (Appeals)

The Income tax Act, 1961 Income tax 930.67 930.67  A.Y.
2020-21

Assessing Officer of Income 
tax

The Income tax Act, 1961 Income tax 42.42 42.42  A.Y.
2020-21

The Commissioner of Income 
tax (Appeals)

The Central Excise Act, 
1944

Excise Duty 376.37 348.15 From January, 
2015 to June, 

2017

The Commissioner of 
Central Excise (Appeal)

(viii)	� There were no transactions relating to previously 
unrecorded income that were surrendered or disclosed as 
income in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 
1961 (43 of 1961) during the year.

(ix)	 (a)	� In our opinion, the Company has not defaulted in the 
repayment of loans or other borrowings or in the payment 
of interest thereon to any lender during the year.

	 (b)	� The Company has not been declared wilful defaulter 
by any bank or financial institution or government or 
any government authority.

	 (c)	� The Company has not taken any term loan during 
the year and there are no unutilised term loans at the 
beginning of the year and hence, reporting under 
clause (ix)(c) of the order is not applicable.

	 (d)	� On an overall examination of the financial statements 
of the Company, funds raised on short-term basis 
have, prima facie, not been used during the year for 
long-term purposes by the Company.

	 (e)	� On an overall examination of the financial statements 
of the Company, the Company has not taken any 
funds from any entity or person on account of or to 
meet the obligations of its joint ventures during the 
year and hence reporting under clause (ix) (e) of the 
order is not applicable.

	 (f )	� The Company has not raised loans during the year on 
the pledge of securities held in its joint ventures.

(x)	 (a)	� The Company has not raised moneys by way of initial 
public offer or further public offer (including debt 
instruments) during the year and hence reporting 
under clause (x)(a) of the Order is not applicable.

	 (b)	� During the year the Company has not made any 
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or 
convertible debentures (fully or partly or optionally) and 
hence reporting under clause (x)(b) of the Order is not 
applicable to the Company.

(xi)	 (a)	� To the best of our knowledge, no fraud by the 
Company and no material fraud on the Company has 
been noticed or reported during the year.

	 (b)	� To the best of our knowledge, no report under sub-
section (12) of section 143 of the Companies Act has 
been filed in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under rule 13 
of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with 
the Central Government, during the year and upto the 
date of this report.

	 (c)	� As represented to us by the Management, there 
were no whistle blower complaints received by the 
Company during the year and upto the date of this 
report.

(xii)	� The Company is not a Nidhi Company and hence reporting 
under clause (xii) of the Order is not applicable.

(xiii)	� In our opinion, the Company is in compliance with Section 
177 and 188 of the Companies Act, where applicable, for 
all transactions with the related parties and the details 
of related party transactions have been disclosed in the 
financial statements etc. as required by the applicable 
accounting standards.

(xiv)	 (a)	� In our opinion the Company has an adequate internal 
audit system commensurate with the size and the 
nature of its business.

	 (b)	� We have considered, the internal audit reports issued 
to the Company during the year and covering the 
period upto December 2022 and the final of the 
internal audit reports where issued after the balance 
sheet date covering the period January to March, 2023 
for the period under audit.

(xv)	� In our opinion during the year the Company has not 
entered into any non-cash transactions with its directors or 
persons connected with its directors and hence provisions 
of section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013 are not 
applicable to the Company.

(xvi)	 (a)	� The Company is not required to be registered under 
section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. 
Hence, reporting under clause (xvi)(a), (b) and (c) of 
the Order is not applicable.

	 (d) 	� The Group does not have any CIC as part of the group 
and accordingly reporting under clause (xvi)(d) of the 
Order is not applicable.

(xvii)	� The Company has not incurred cash losses during the 
financial year covered by our audit and the immediately 
preceding financial year.

(xviii)	� There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors of 
the company during the year.

(xix)	� On the basis of the financial ratios, ageing, expected dates 
of realization of financial assets and payment of financial 
liabilities, other information accompanying the financial 
statements and our knowledge of the Board of Directors 
and Management plans and based on our examination 
of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has 
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any 
material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report 
indicating that Company is not capable of meeting its 
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when 

they fall due within a period of one year from the balance 
sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance 
as to the future viability of the Company. We further state 
that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of 
the audit report and we neither give any guarantee nor any 
assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of 
one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged 
by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx)	� The Company has fully spent the required amount towards 
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) and there are no 
unspent CSR amount for the year requiring a transfer to 
a Fund specified in Schedule VII to the Companies Act 
or special account in compliance with the provision of 
sub-section (6) of section 135 of the said Act. Accordingly, 
reporting under clause (xx) of the Order is not applicable for 
the year.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No: 117365W)

Hardik Sutaria
(Partner)

Place: Ahmedabad� (Membership No. 116642)
Date: July 01, 2023� UDIN: 23116642BGWGCZ3998
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Standalone Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

 (` in Lakhs, except per share data) 
 Particulars  Notes As at  

31 March 2023
As at 

31 March 2022
Assets
I.	 Non-current assets

(a)	 Property, plant and equipment 5 (A) 59,252.26 56,803.05
(b) 	 Capital work-in-progress 5 (B) 17,269.71 7,415.52
(c) 	 Intangible assets 6 19.77 357.70
(d) 	 Right-of use assets 7 25.99 136.84
(e)	 Financial assets

(i)	 Investments 8 78.98 92.08
(ii)	 Others 9 1,019.51 249.56

(f )	 Other non-current assets 10 761.95 2,663.94
(g)	 Non-Current tax assets (Net) 20 (c) 266.52 360.45

Total non-current assets (A) 78,694.69 68,079.14
II. 	 Current assets 

(a)	 Inventories 11 21,231.47 19,511.79
(b) 	 Financial assets
 	 (i)	 Investments 8 13,693.01 7,347.33
	 (ii)	 Trade receivables 12 27,375.76 23,217.42
	 (iii)	 Cash and cash equivalents 13 (a) 349.92 66.69
	 (iv) 	 Other bank balances 13 (b) 3,994.77 8,826.48
	 (v) 	 Others 14 3,659.90 2,198.22
(c)	 Other current assets 15 2,465.18 2,098.76

Total current assets (B) 72,770.01 63,266.69
TOTAL ASSETS  (A) + (B) 1,51,464.70 1,31,345.83
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 

(a)	 Equity share capital 16 1,046.16 951.06
(b)	 Other equity 17 1,28,151.88 1,09,764.94

Total equity (A) 1,29,198.04 1,10,716.00
LIABILITIES 
I. 	 Non-current liabilities

(a)	 Financial liabilities
	 (i)	 Borrowings 18 623.56 3,124.86
	 (ii) 	 Lease liabilities 7 16.38 31.07
(b)	 Provisions 19 229.66 187.41
(c)	 Deferred tax liabilities (net) 20 (b) 2,343.90 2,097.08

Total non-current liabilities (B) 3,213.50 5,440.42
II. 	 Current liabilities

(a)	 Financial liabilities
	 (i)	 Borrowings 18 2,500.00 2,933.72
	 (ii)	 Lease liabilities 7 14.69 159.61
	 (iii)	 Trade payables 21
           		 Due to micro and small enterprise 1,702.27 896.88
          		  Due to other than micro and small enterprise 7,677.73 7,413.68
	 (iv)	 Others 22 3,134.35 2,163.89
(b)	 Provisions 19 2,747.57 174.77
(c)	 Other current liabilities 23 376.68 1,446.86
(d)	 Liabilities for Current tax 20 (c) 899.87 -

Total current liabilities (C) 19,053.16 15,189.41
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  (A) + (B) + (C) 1,51,464.70 1,31,345.83
See accompanying notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements 1 to 46

In terms of our report attached						    
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells	 For and on behalf of board of directors of 	 		
Chartered Accountants	 Concord Biotech Limited			 
	 CIN:U24230GJ1984PLC007440			 
						    
Hardik Sutaria	 Sudhir Vaid	 Ankur Vaid 	
Partner	 Chairman & Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director & CEO
	 DIN: 00055967	 DIN: 01857225 		
							     
	 Lalit Sethi	 Prakash Sajnani 	
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Asst. Vice President - Finance 
		  & Company Secretary “	
Place:  Ahmedabad	 Place:  Ahmedabad			 
Date: 1st July, 2023	 Date: 1st July, 2023			 

Standalone Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

 (` in Lakhs, except per share data) 

 Particulars  Notes  Year Ended  
31 March 2023 

 Year Ended  
31 March 2022 

Income

Revenue from operations 24 85,316.82 71,293.35

Other income 25 3,530.93 2,341.65

Total Income 88,847.75 73,635.00

Expenses

Cost of materials consumed 26 16,707.15 15,725.74

Purchases of stock-in-trade 2,876.87 3,073.34

Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 27 (1,563.20) (2,398.01)

Employee benefits expense 28 11,027.85 9,569.45

Finance costs 29 451.03 548.36

Depreciation and amortization expense 30 5,403.24 5,005.08

Other expenses 31 21,939.40 17,995.33

Total Expenses 56,842.34 49,519.29

Profit before tax 32,005.41 24,115.71

Tax expenses

Current tax 20 (a) 7,953.00 5,849.00

Deferred tax 20 (b) 238.16 370.53

Short / (excess) provision for tax of earlier years 1.61 39.40

Total tax expenses 8,192.77 6,258.93

Profit for the year 23,812.64 17,856.78

Other Comprehensive Income / (loss)

Items that will not be reclassified to the statement of Profit or Loss

	 Re-measurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plans 34.41 (74.57)

	 Income tax relating to re-measurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plans (8.66) 18.77

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS)  FOR THE YEAR 25.75 (55.80)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR 23,838.39 17,800.98

Earnings per share (Nominal value per equity share of ` 1 each)

Basic and diluted (Refer note 32) 22.76 17.07

See accompanying notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements 1 to 46

In terms of our report attached						    
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells	 For and on behalf of board of directors of 	 		
Chartered Accountants	 Concord Biotech Limited			 
	 CIN:U24230GJ1984PLC007440			 
						    
Hardik Sutaria	 Sudhir Vaid	 Ankur Vaid 	
Partner	 Chairman & Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director & CEO
	 DIN: 00055967	 DIN: 01857225 		
							     
	 Lalit Sethi	 Prakash Sajnani 	
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Asst. Vice President - Finance 
		  & Company Secretary “	
Place:  Ahmedabad	 Place:  Ahmedabad			 
Date: 1st July, 2023	 Date: 1st July, 2023			 
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Standalone Statement of Changes in Equity  for the year ended 31 March 2023

A.	 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

(` in Lakhs, except per share data)
Particulars As at  

31 March 2023
As at 

31 March 2022

Opening balance 951.06 951.06 
Changes during the year 95.10 - 
Closing Balance 1,046.16 951.06 

B.	 OTHER EQUITY

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Total Other 
EquityRetained 

Earnings
General 

Securities
Reserve 

Premium

Balance as at 1 April, 2021 87,802.05 2,921.79 8,292.20 99,016.04
Profit for the year 17,856.78 - - 17,856.78
Other comprehensive Income (Net of tax) (55.80) - - (55.80)
Total Comprehensive Income 17,800.98 - - 17,800.98
Dividends* (7,052.08) - - (7,052.08)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 98,550.95 2,921.79 8,292.20 109,764.94
Profit for the year 23,812.64 - - 23,812.64
Other comprehensive Income (Net of tax) 25.75 - - 25.75
Total Comprehensive Income 23,838.39 - - 23,838.39
Transactions recorded directly in equity -
Transfer to equity share capital on account of Bonus - - (95.10) (95.10)
Dividends** (5,356.35) - - (5,356.35)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 117,032.99 2,921.79 8,197.10 128,151.88

	 * Final Dividend of ` 74.15 per equity share for the FY 2020-21.	

	 **Final Dividend of ` 5.12 per equity share for the FY 2021-22.	

In terms of our report attached						    
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells	 For and on behalf of board of directors of 	 		
Chartered Accountants	 Concord Biotech Limited			 
	 CIN:U24230GJ1984PLC007440			 
						    
Hardik Sutaria	 Sudhir Vaid	 Ankur Vaid 	
Partner	 Chairman & Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director & CEO
	 DIN: 00055967	 DIN: 01857225 		
							     
	 Lalit Sethi	 Prakash Sajnani 	
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Asst. Vice President - Finance 
		  & Company Secretary “	
Place:  Ahmedabad	 Place:  Ahmedabad			 
Date: 1st July, 2023	 Date: 1st July, 2023			 

 (` in Lakhs, except per share data)
Particulars Year Ended  

31 March 2023
Year Ended 

 31 March 2022
(A)	 CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
	 Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 32,005.41 24,115.71
	 Adjustment for: - -
		  Depreciation and amortization 5,403.24 5,005.08
		  Interest Income (444.08) (478.74)
		  Finance Cost 451.03 548.36
		  Interest Subsidy Income (229.47) (293.66)
		  (Reversal) /Provision of doubtful debts, net 9.24 (34.63)
		  Export receivables and other receivables written off - 645.44
		  Excess provision no longer required written back (175.09) -
		  Provision against other receivables - 226.95
		  Net loss on sale of Property, plant & equipment 9.40 3.37
		  Net gain on sale of investments (299.36) (509.38)
		  Net gain on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (72.33) (13.58)
		  Net unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss 195.35 (183.58)
		  Loss Due to Fire 3.05 -
	 Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 36,856.39 29,031.34
	 Working Capital Changes:

(Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (1,722.73) (4,151.18)
(Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (4,309.71) (5,276.94)
(Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets (1,546.67) (642.76)
(Increase)/Decrease in other assets (366.43) 3,059.67
Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 2,649.46 11.71
Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 988.06 3,653.54
Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities 149.66 139.70
Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities (1,070.19) 1,000.75

(5,228.55) (2,205.51)
	 Cash generated from operations 31,627.84 26,825.83
	 Direct Taxes paid (Net of Income Tax refund) (7,027.66) (6,078.49)
	 Net cash generated from operating activities 24,600.18 20,747.34
(B)	 CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

Purchase of Property, plant & equipment and Intangible Assets (14,508.48) (15,550.42)
Proceeds from disposal of Property, plant & equipment 2.53 5.58
Purchase of Current Investments (64,309.92) (48,895.00)
Proceeds from sale of Current Investment 58,349.04 56,143.62
Interest received 558.49 413.96
Net Cashflow from Deposits (Other bank Balances) 4,113.33 (3,296.41)
Net cash used in investing activities (15,795.01) (11,178.67)

(C)	 CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Repayment of Long Term borrowings (2,500.00) (2,500.14)
Change in Short term borrowings (net) (433.72) (76.20)
Dividend Paid (5,356.35) (7,052.08)
Interest Paid (377.63) (531.45)
Interest Subsidy Received 323.56 308.90
Repayment towards Lease Liabilities (177.80) (165.43)

	 Net cash used in financing activities (8,521.94) (10,016.40)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A)+(B)+(C) 283.23 (447.73)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 66.69 514.42
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 349.92 66.69

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023
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 Particulars  As at  
31 March 2023 

 As at 
31 March 2022 

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash on hand 1.63 1.15
Balance with Banks 348.29 65.54
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet (Refer Note 13) 349.92 66.69

Reconciliation between opening and closing balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities as at March 31, 2023	

Particulars As at  
1 April 2022

Cash flows Non-cash 
Movement

As at  
31 March 2023

Borrowings (including current maturities) (Note - 18) 6,058.58 (2,933.72) (1.30) 3,123.56
Lease Liability (Note - 7) 190.68 (177.80) 18.19 31.07
Interest accrued but not paid (Note - 22) 36.32 (377.63) 367.28 25.97
Total liabilities from financing activities 6,285.58 (3,489.15) 384.17 3,180.60

Reconciliation between opening and closing balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities as at March 31, 2022	

Particulars As at  
1 April 2022

Cash flows Non-cash 
Movement

As at  
31 March 2022

Borrowings (including current maturities) (Note - 18) 8,634.92 (2,576.34) - 6,058.58
Lease Liability (Note - 7) 293.45 (165.43) 62.66 190.68
Interest accrued but not paid (Note - 22) 50.79 (531.45) 516.98 36.32
Total liabilities from financing activities 8,979.16 (3,273.22) 579.64 6,285.58

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 statement of cash flows.	
See accompanying notes forming part of the Standalone financial statements	

Standalone Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023 
Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with Financial Information 

In terms of our report attached						    
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells	 For and on behalf of board of directors of 	 		
Chartered Accountants	 Concord Biotech Limited			 
	 CIN:U24230GJ1984PLC007440			 
						    
Hardik Sutaria	 Sudhir Vaid	 Ankur Vaid 	
Partner	 Chairman & Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director & CEO
	 DIN: 00055967	 DIN: 01857225 		
							     
	 Lalit Sethi	 Prakash Sajnani 	
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Asst. Vice President - Finance 
		  & Company Secretary “	
Place:  Ahmedabad	 Place:  Ahmedabad			 
Date: 1st July, 2023	 Date: 1st July, 2023			 

1.	 Corporate Information
	� Concord Biotech Limited (the Company) is a public 

company incorporated and domiciled in India. The 
Company is engaged in research and development, 
manufacturing, marketing and selling of pharmaceutical 
products. The Company’s API manufacturing facilities are 
located at Dholka and Limbasi, and its formulations facility 
at Valthera in the state of Gujarat, India.

2.	 Statement of Compliance

	� The standalone financial statements comply in all material 
aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) notified 
under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) 
read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act. 

	� These standalone financial statements have been prepared 
for the Company as a going concern on the basis of relevant 
Ind AS that are effective at the Company’s annual reporting 
date, March 31, 2023. These standalone financial statements 
were authorised for issuance by the Company’s Board of 
Directors on 1 July 2023.

3.	 Basis of Preparation of Standalone financial statements 

	 3.1.	 Functional and Presentation Currency

		�  The standalone financial statements are presented in 
Indian Rupees, the currency of the primary economic 
environment in which the Company operates. All the 
amounts are rounded to the nearest rupee lakhs.

	 3.2.	 Basis of Measurement

		�  The standalone financial statements have been 
prepared on the historical cost basis (i.e on accrual 
basis), except for the following items:

		  •	� Certain financial assets and liabilities (including 
derivative instruments) are measured at fair 
value; and 

		  •	� Net defined benefit assets/(liability) are 
measured at fair value of plan assets, less present 
value of defined benefit obligations. 

	 3.3.	� Measurement of Fair Value

		�  Fair value i	s the price that would be received to sell 
an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date, regardless of whether that price 
is directly observable or estimated using another 
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an 
asset or a liability, the Company takes into account 
the characteristics of the asset or liability if the market 
participants would take those characteristics into 
account when pricing the asset or liability at the 
measurement date. Fair value measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in the financial statements 
is determined on such a basis except for leasing 
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116 
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities 
to fair value but are not fair value, such as net 
realisable value in Ind AS 2 Inventories. 

		�  In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair 
value measurements are categorized into Level 
1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs 
to the fair value measurements are observable 
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 
measurement in its entirety, which are described as 
follows:

		  •	� Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
that the entity can access at the measurement 
date;

		  •	� Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted 
prices included in Level 1, that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; 
and

		  •	� Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the 
asset or liability.

	 3.4.	 Use of estimates
		�  The preparation of the standalone financial 

statements in conformity with Ind AS requires 
Management to make estimates, judgements and 
assumptions. These estimates, judgements and 
assumptions affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 
the period. Accounting estimates could change from 
period to period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are 
made as management becomes aware of changes in 
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes 
in estimates are reflected in the financial statements 
in the period in which changes are made and, if 
material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the 
standalone financial statements.

		�  Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date 
of standalone financial statements, which may cause 
material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets 
and liabilities within the next financial year, is in 
respect of: 

		  •	� Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
(Refer note no. 4.1)

		  •	 Leases-Company as a lessee (Refer note no. 4.5)

		  •	 Valuation of Inventories (Refer note no. 4.6)

		  •	 Employee benefits (refer note no.4.8)

		  •	� Provisions & Contingent Liabilities (Refer note no. 
4.9)

		  •	� Valuation of deferred tax assets (Refer note no. 
4.12)

3.5.	 Current versus non-current classification:
	� All assets and liabilities have been classified as current 

or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating 
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III to the 
Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature of products and 
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the time between the acquisition of assets for processing 
and their realisation in cash and cash equivalents, the 
Company has ascertained its operating cycle as 12 months 
for the purpose of current – noncurrent classification of 
assets and liabilities.

	� All assets and liabilities are classified into current and non-
current.

	 Assets
	� An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of the 

following criteria:

	 -	� it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for sale 
or consumption in, the Company’s normal operating 
cycle;

	 -	 it is held for the purpose of being traded;

	 -	� it is expected to be realized within 12 months after the 
reporting date; or

	 -	� it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted from 
being exchanged or used to settle a liability for at least 
12 months after the reporting date. 

		�  Current assets include the current portion of non-
current assets / non-current financial assets. All other 
assets are classified as non-current. 

	 Liabilities
	� A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of the 

following criteria:

	 - 	� it is expected to be settled in the Company’s normal 
operating cycle;

	 - 	� it is held primarily for the purpose of being traded;

	 - 	� it is expected to be settled within 12 months after the 
reporting date; or

	 - 	� the Company does not have any unconditional right 
to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 
months after the reporting date.

		�  Current liabilities include the current portion of non-
current liabilities / non-current financial liabilities. All 	
other liabilities are classified as non-current. 

		�  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.

	 Operating cycle
	� Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of 

assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash 
equivalent. The operating cycle of the Company is less than 
12 months.

4.	 Significant accounting policies
	 4.1.	 Property, Plant and Equipment

		�  Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost 
of acquisition or construction less accumulated 
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 
The cost of Plant, Property & Equipment comprises 
of its purchase price, non-refundable taxes & levies, 
freight and other incidental expenses related to the 

acquisition and installation of the respective assets. 
Borrowing cost attributable to financing of acquisition 
or construction of the qualifying Property, Plant and 
Equipment is capitalized to respective assets when the 
time taken to put the assets to use is substantial.

		�  When major items of property, plant and equipment 
have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items of property, plant and equipment. 
The cost of replacement of any property, plant and 
equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of 
the item if it is probable that the future economic 
benefit associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and its cost can be measured reliably.

		�  Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of Property, 
Plant and Equipment that are not yet installed and 
ready for their intended use at the Balance sheet date.

		�  Pre-operative expenditure comprising of 
revenue expenses incurred in connection with 
project implementation during the period up to 
commencement of commercial production are treated 
as part of the project costs and are capitalized. Such 
expenses are capitalized only if the project to which 
they relate, involve substantial expansion of capacity 
or upgradation. 

		�  An item of property, plant and equipment is 
derecognized upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from its 
use. Difference between the sales proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset is recognized in profit 
and loss.

		�  Freehold land is carried at historical cost and not 
depreciated. Depreciation on Property, Plant and 
Equipment is provided using straight line method 
(except vehicles which have been depreciated 
based on written down value method) based as 
per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on assets added 
/ disposed off during the year is provided on pro-
rata basis with reference to month of addition / 
disposal. The estimated useful lives, residual values 
and depreciation method are reviewed at each 
financial year-end and changes in estimates, if any are 
accounted for on a prospective basis.

	 4.2.	 Intangible Assets 

		�  Intangible assets acquired separately are measured 
at cost of acquisition. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortization and impairment losses if any.

		�  Intangible assets are amortized over the estimated 
useful life of three years which reflects the manner 
in which the economic benefit is expected to be 
generated. The estimated useful life of amortizable 
intangibles is reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period and change in estimates if any are accounted 
for on a prospective basis.

	 4.3.	 Foreign currency Transaction and Translation
		�  Foreign currency transactions are recorded at 

exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 
transaction. The net gain or loss on account of 
exchange differences arising on settlement of foreign 
currency transactions are recognized as income or 
expense of the period in which they arise. Monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency 
as at the balance sheet date are translated at the 
closing rate. The resultant exchange rate differences 
are recognized in the statement of profit and loss. 
Non-monetary assets and liabilities are carried at the 
rates prevailing on the date of transaction. 

	 4.4.	 Financial Instruments

		  4.4.1. 	Financial assets

			   (a)	 Classification of financial assets:

				�    The Company classifies its financial assets in 
the following measurement categories: 

				    •	� those to be measured subsequently 
at fair value (either through other 
comprehensive income or through 
profit or loss) and

				    •	� those measured at amortised cost. 
The classification depends on the 
Company’s business model for 
managing the financial assets and the 
contractual cash flow characteristics of 
the financial assets.

			   (b)	 Initial measurement:

				�    Financial assets are initially measured at 
fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of 
financial assets (other than financial assets 
at fair value through profit or loss) are 
added to or deducted from the fair value 
of the financial assets, as appropriate, on 
initial recognition. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition or 
issue of financial assets at fair value through 
profit or loss are recognised immediately in 
profit or loss.

			   (c)	 Subsequent measurement: 

				    •	 Amortised Cost 

					     �Assets that are held for collection of 
contractual cash flows where those 
cash flows represent solely payments 
of principal and interest are measured 
at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a 
debt investment that is subsequently 
measured at amortised cost and is 
not part of a hedging relationship is 
recognised in profit or loss when the 
asset is derecognised or impaired. 
Interest income from these financial 
assets is included in finance income 
using the effective interest rate method. 

				    •	� Fair value through other 
comprehensive income (FVOCI):

					�     Assets that are held for collection 
of contractual cash flows and for 
selling the financial assets, where the 
assets’ cash flows represent solely 
payments of principal and interest, 
are measured at fair value through 
other comprehensive income (FVOCI). 
Movements in the carrying amount 
are taken through OCI, except for the 
recognition of impairment gains or 
losses, interest revenue and foreign 
exchange gains and losses which are 
recognised in profit and loss. When 
the financial asset is derecognised, 
the cumulative gain or loss previously 
recognised in OCI is reclassified from 
equity to profit or loss and recognised 
in other gains / (losses). Interest 
income from these financial assets 
is included in other income using 
the effective interest rate method. 
Foreign exchange gains and losses are 
presented in other gains and losses 
and impairment expenses in other 
expenses. 

				    •	� Fair value through profit or loss 
(FVTPL) 

					�     Assets that do not meet the criteria for 
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured 
at fair value through profit or loss. A 
gain or loss on a debt investment that 
is subsequently measured at fair value 
through profit or loss and is not part of 
a hedging relationship is recognised 
in profit or loss and presented net in 
the statement of profit and loss within 
other gains / (losses) in the period in 
which it arises. Interest income from 
these financial assets is included in 
other income.

			   (d)	 Derecognition of financial assets: 

				�    A financial asset (or, where applicable, a 
part of a financial asset or part of a group 
of similar financial assets) is primarily 
derecognised (i.e. removed from the 
Company’s balance sheet) when: 

				    •	� The rights to receive cash flows from 
the asset have expired, or

				    •	� The Company has transferred its rights 
to receive cash flows from the asset 

				�    When the Company has transferred an 
asset, the Company evaluates whether 
it has transferred substantially all risks 
and rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset. In such cases, the financial asset is 
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derecognised. Where the Company has 
not transferred substantially all risks and 
rewards of ownership of the financial asset, 
the financial asset is not derecognised.

				�    Where the Company has neither transferred 
a financial asset nor retains substantially all 
risks and rewards of ownership of financial 
asset, the financial asset is derecognised if 
the Company has not retained control over 
the financial asset. Where the Company 
retains control of the financial asset, the 
asset is continued to be recognised to the 
extent of continuing involvement in the 
financial asset.

			   (e)	 Income recognition: 
				�    Dividend is accounted when the right to 

receive payment is established.

			   (f)	 Cash and cash equivalents: 
				�    Cash and cash equivalents consists of 

cash on hand, short demand deposits and 
highly liquid investments that are readily 
convertible into known amounts of cash 
and which are subject to an insignificant 
risk of change in value. Short term means 
investments with original maturities / 
holding period of three months or less from 
the date of investments. Bank overdrafts 
that are repayable on demand and form 
an integral part of the Company’s cash 
management are included as a component 
of cash and cash equivalent for the purpose 
of statement of cash flow. 

			   (g)	 Investments: 
				�    Investments in mutual funds are primarily 

held for the Company’s temporary 
cash requirements and can be readily 
convertible in cash. These investments are 
initially recorded at fair value and classified 
as fair value through profit or loss. 

			   (h)	 Trade receivables: 
				�    Trade receivables are amounts due from 

customers for sale of goods or services 
performed in the ordinary course of 
business. Trade receivables are initially 
recognized at its transaction price which 
is considered to be its fair value and are 
classified as current assets as it is expected 
to be received within the normal operating 
cycle of the business.

		  4.4.2.	Financial liabilities
			�   The Company’s financial liabilities include trade 

payables, loans and borrowing and derivative 
financial instruments. 

			   (a)	 Classification: 
				�    All the Company’s financial liabilities, except 

for financial liabilities at fair value through 

profit or loss, are measured at amortized 
cost. 

			   (b)	 Initial measurement: 
				�    Financial liabilities are initially measured 

at fair value. Transaction costs that are 
directly attributable to the acquisition 
or issue of financial liabilities (other than 
financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss) are added to or deducted 
from the fair value of the financial liabilities, 
as appropriate, on initial recognition. 
Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of 
financial liabilities at fair value through 
profit or loss are recognised immediately in 
profit or loss. 

			   (c)	 Subsequent measurement: 
				�    Financial liabilities are subsequently 

measured 	at amortised cost using the 
Effective Interest Rate Method. The 
Effective Interest Rate Method is a method 
of calculating the amortised cost of a 
financial liability and of allocating interest 
expense over the relevant period. The 
effective interest rate is the rate that 
exactly discounts estimated future cash 
payments (including transaction costs and 
other premiums or discounts) through the 
expected life of the financial liability, or 
(where appropriate) a shorter period, to the 
net carrying amount on initial recognition. 

			   (d)	 Derecognition of financial liabilities: 

				�    The Company derecognises financial 
liabilities when, and only when, the 
Company’s obligations are discharged, 
cancelled or waived off or have expired. 
An exchange between the Company 
and the lender of debt instruments with 
substantially different terms is accounted 
for as an extinguishment of the original 
financial liability and the recognition of 
a new financial liability. The difference 
between the carrying amount of the 
financial liability derecognised and 
the consideration paid and payable is 
recognised in profit or loss. 

			   (e)	 Borrowings: 

				�    Borrowings are initially recorded at fair 
value and subsequently measured at 
amortized costs using effective interest 
rate method. Transaction costs are charged 
to statement of profit and loss as financial 
expenses over the term of borrowing. 

			   (f)	 Trade payables: 

				�    Trade payables are amounts due to vendors 
for purchase of goods or services acquired 
in the ordinary course of business and are 

classified as current liabilities to the extent 
it is expected to be paid within the normal 
operating cycle of the business

		  4.4.3.	Derivative Financial Instruments:

			�   The Company enters into derivative financial 
instruments to manage its foreign exchange rate 
risk. Derivatives are initially recognized at fair 
value at the date a derivative contract is entered 
into and are subsequently re-measured to their 
fair value at the end of each reporting period. 
The resulting gain or loss is recognized in profit 
or loss immediately. 

	 4.5	 Leases – Company as lessee

		�  At inception of a contract, the Company assesses 
whether a contract is or contains a lease. A contract 
is or contains a lease if the contract conveys the right 
to control the use of an identified assets for a period 
of time in exchange for consideration. To assess 
whether a contract conveys the right to control the 
use of an identified asset the Company assesses 
whether contract involves the use of an identified 
asset, the Company has a right to obtain substantially 
all of the economic benefits from the use of the asset 
throughout the period of use and the Company has 
the right to direct the use of the asset.

		�  At the inception date, right-of-use asset is recognised 
at cost which includes present value of lease payments 
adjusted for any payments made on or before the 
commencement of lease and initial direct cost, if any. 
It is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any 
and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease 
liability. Right-of-use asset is depreciated using the 
straight-line method from the commencement date 
over the earlier of useful life of the asset or the lease 
term. When the Company has purchase option available 
under lease and cost of right-ofuse assets reflects that 
purchase option will be exercised, right-of-use asset 
is depreciated over the useful life of underlying asset. 
Right-of-use assets are tested for impairment whenever 
there is any indication that their carrying amounts 
may not be recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is 
recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

		�  At the inception date, lease liability is recognised 
at present value of lease payments that are not 
made at the commencement of lease. Lease liability 
is subsequently measured by adjusting carrying 
amount to reflect interest, lease payments and 
remeasurement, if any.

		�  Lease payments are discounted using the incremental 
borrowing rate or interest rate implicit in the lease, if 
the rate can be determined.

		�  The Company has elected not to apply requirements 
of Ind AS 116 to leases that has a term of 12 months or 
less and leases for which the underlying asset is of low 
value. Lease payments of such lease are recognised as 
an expense on straight line basis over the lease term.

	 4.6.	 Inventories
		�  Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net 

realizable value.

		�  The cost incurred in bringing the inventory to their 
existing location and conditions are determined as 
follows: 

		  (a)	� Raw Material and Packing Material - Purchase 
cost of materials on FIFO basis.

		  (b)	� Finished Goods (Manufactured) and work in 
progress - Cost of purchase, conversion cost, and 
other costs attributable to inventories.

		  (c)	 Trading goods - Purchase cost on FIFO basis.

			�   The cost of purchase of inventories comprise 
the 	 purchase price, import duties and other 
taxes (other than those subsequently recovered 
by the Company from taxing authorities), and 
transport, handling and other costs directly 
attributable to the bringing the inventory to their 
existing location and conditions. Trade discounts, 
rebates and other similar items are deducted in 
determining the costs of purchase.

			�   Net realizable value is the estimated selling 
price in the ordinary course of business less the 
estimated costs of completion and the estimated 
costs necessary to make the sales.

	 4.7.	 Impairment of Assets
		  4.7.1.	Financial Assets 
			�   At each balance sheet date, the company 

assesses whether a financial asset is to be 
impaired. Ind AS 109 requires expected credit 
losses to be measured through loss allowance. 
The Company measures the loss allowance for 
financial assets at an amount equal to lifetime 
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that 
financial asset has increased significantly since 
initial recognition. If the credit risk on a financial 
asset has not increased significantly since initial 
recognition, the Company measures the loss 
allowance for financial assets at an amount equal 
to 12-month expected credit losses. 

		  4.7.2.	Non-financial Assets
			�   Property, plant and equipment and intangible 

assets with finite life are evaluated for 
recoverability whenever there is any indication 
that their carrying amounts may not be 
recoverable. If any such indication exists, the 
recoverable amount (i.e. higher of the fair 
value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) is 
determined on an individual asset basis unless 
the asset does not generate cash flows that 
are largely independent of those from other 
assets. In such cases, the recoverable amount is 
determined for the cash generating unit (CGU) to 
which the asset belongs. 

			�   If the recoverable amount of an asset (or 
CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying 
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amount, the carrying amount of the asset (or 
CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An 
impairment loss is recognized in the profit or 
loss to such extent. When an impairment loss 
subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of 
the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is increased 
to the revised estimate of its recoverable 
amount, such that the increase in the carrying 
amount does not exceed the carrying amount 
that would have been determined had no 
impairment loss been recognised for the asset 
(or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal 
of an impairment loss is recognised immediately 
in profit or loss. 

	 4.8.	 Employee Benefits
		  4.8.1.	Short term employee benefits
			�   Short term benefits payable before twelve 

months after the end of the reporting period in 
which the employees have rendered service are 
accounted as expense in profit and loss account. 

		  4.8.2.	Long term employment benefits
			   Defined Contribution Plans
			�   Contributions to defined contribution plans 

(provident fund and other social security 
schemes) are recognized as expense when 
employees have rendered services entitling them 
to such benefits. 

			   Defined Benefit Plans
		  	� The Company’s net obligation in respect of an 

approved gratuity plan, which is defined benefit 
plan, is calculated using the projected unit credit 
method and the same is carried out by qualified 
actuary. The current service cost and net interest 
on the net defined benefit liability (asset) is 
recognized in the statement of profit and loss. Past 
service cost are immediately recognized in the 
statement of profit and loss. Actuarial gains and 
losses net of deferred taxes arising from experience 
adjustment and changes in actuarial assumptions 
are recognized in other comprehensive income in 
the period in which they arise. 

			   Compensated absences and earned leaves
			�   The Company’s current policy permit eligible 

employees to accumulate compensated 
absences up to a prescribed limit and receive 
cash in lieu thereof in accordance with the 
terms of the policy. The Company measures the 
expected cost of accumulating compensated 
absences as the additional amount that the 
Company expects to pay as a result of unused 
entitlement that has accumulated as at the 
reporting date. The expected cost of these 
benefits is calculated using the projected 
unit credit method by qualified actuary every 
year. Actuarial gains and losses arising from 
experience adjustment and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognized in the statement of 
profit and loss in the period in which they arise. 

	 4.9.	� Contingent liabilities, contingent assets and 
provisions

		  (a)	 Contingent liabilities:
			�   A possible obligation that arises from past events 

and the existence of which will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the enterprise are disclosed 
as Contingent liability and not provided for. 
Such liability is not disclosed if the possibility of 
outflow of resources is remote.

		  (b)	 Contingent assets:
			�   A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises 

from past events and whose existence will 
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the 
entity. Contingent assets are not recognised 
and disclosed only when an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable.

		  (c)	 Provisions:
			�   A provision is recognized when as a result 

of a past event, the Company has a present 
obligation whether legal or constructive that can 
be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an 
outflow of economic benefits will be required to 
settle the obligation. If the obligation is expected 
to be settled more than 12 months after the end 
of reporting date or has no definite settlement 
date, the provision is recorded as non-current 
liabilities after giving effect for time value of 
money, if material. Where discounting is used, 
the increase in the provision due to the passage 
of time is recognized as a finance cost.

	 4.10.	Government Grant
		�  The Company recognises government grants at their 

fair value only when there is reasonable assurance 
that the conditions attached to them will be complied 
with, and the grants will be received. 

		�  Government grants received in relation to assets are 
recognised directly to respective assets for which it 
is received. Government grants, which are revenue in 
nature are either recognised as income or deducted in 
reporting the related expense based on the terms of 
the grant, as applicable.

	 4.11.	Revenue recognition
		�  Revenue is measured based on the transaction price 

adjusted for discounts and rebates, which is specified 
in a contract with customer. Revenue are net of 
estimated returns and taxes collected from customers. 

		�  Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point 
in time when control is transferred to the customer 
and it is probable that consideration will be collected. 
Control of goods is transferred upon the shipment of 
the goods to the customer or when goods is made 
available to the customer. 

		�  The transaction price is documented on the sales 
invoice and payment is generally due as per agreed 
credit terms with customer. 

		�  The consideration can be fixed or variable. Variable 
consideration is only recognised when it is highly 
probable that a significant reversal will not occur. 

		�  Sales return is variable consideration that is 
recognised and recorded based on historical 
experience, market conditions and provided for 
in the year of sale as reduction from revenue. The 
methodology and assumptions used to estimate 
returns are monitored and adjusted regularly in line 
with trade practices, historical trends, past experience 
and projected market conditions. 

		�  Revenue from services are recognised as the related 
services are performed, the contractual performance 
obligations are satisfied and there is no uncertainty 
related to the collection of the said revenue.

		�  Profit share earned through a collaboration partners is 
recognised as the underlying sales are recorded by the 
collaboration partners.

		  Export entitlements

		�  Export entitlements are recognised as income when 
right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme 
is established in respect of the exports made and 
where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the 
ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds. 

		  Interest Income

		�  Interest income is recognized using effective interest 
rate method.

		�  The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts 
through the expected life of financial instrument to:

		  -	� The gross carrying amount of the financial assets; 
or

		  -	 The amortized cost of the financial liabilities

		�  In calculating interest income and expense, the 
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying 
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. 
However, for financial assets that have become credit-
impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest 
income is calculated by applying the effective interest 
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the 
asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation 
of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

	 4.12.	Income Taxes
		�  Income tax expense comprises current and deferred 

tax expense. Income tax expenses are recognized in 
statement of profit or loss, except when they relates to 
items recognized in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity, in which case, income tax expenses 
are also recognized in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity respectively.

		�  Current tax is the tax payable on the taxable profit 
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of reporting period by the 
governing taxation laws, and any adjustment to tax 
payable in respect of previous periods. Current income 
tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount 
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities. Management periodically evaluates 
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to 
situations in which applicable tax regulations are 
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions 
where appropriate.

		�  Deferred taxes arising from deductible and taxable 
temporary differences between the tax base of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the 
standalone financial statements are recognized using 
substantively enacted tax rates and laws expected 
to apply to taxable income in the years in which the 
temporary differences are expected to be received or 
settled.

		�  Deferred tax asset are recognized only to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary 
differences can be utilized. The carrying amount of 
deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow 
all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be 
utilized. 

		�  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when the 
Company has a legally enforceable right to do the 
same.

	 4.13.	Earnings per share

		�  Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing 
profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of the 
Company by the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the period. Diluted EPS is 
determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable 
to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average 
number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effects 
of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. 
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	 4.14.	Research and development

		�  Revenue expenditure on research and development 
activities is recognized as expense in the period in 
which it is incurred.

	 4.15.	Borrowing cost 

		�  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the 
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of these 
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially 
ready for their intended use or sale. 

		�  All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or 
loss in the period in which they are incurred.

	 4.16.	Segment Reporting
		�  Operating segments are reported in a manner 

consistent with the internal reporting provided to the 
chief operating decision maker (CODM). The CODM of 
the Company is responsible for allocating resources 
and assessing performance of the operating segments 
and accordingly is identified as the Chief Operating 
Decision Maker (CODM). All operating segments’ 
operating results are reviewed regularly by the CODM 
to make decisions about resources to be allocated to 
the segments and assess their performance.

	 4.17.	Recent Accounting Pronouncements:
		�  On 31 March 2023, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

(MCA) has notified Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023. This notification 
has resulted into amendments in the following 
existing accounting standards which are applicable to 
company from 1 April 2023. 

		  i.	� Ind AS 101 – First-time Adoption of Indian 
Accounting Standards

		  ii	 Ind AS 102 – Share-based Payment

		  iii	 Ind AS 103 – Business Combinations

		  iv	 Ind AS 107 – Financial Instruments Disclosures

		  v	 Ind AS 109 – Financial Instruments

		  vi	� Ind AS 115 – Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers

		  vii	� Ind AS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements

		  viii	� Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors

		  ix	 Ind AS 12 – Income Taxes

		  x	 Ind AS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting

		�  Application of above standards are not expected to 
have any significant impact on the company’s financial 
statements.
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		  (iii)	� Additions to Property, Plant & Equipment during the year include capital expenditure on Research & Development 
related activities amounting to ` 231.17 Lakhs (Previous Year ` 135.22 Lakhs). The details of the same are as 
under:	

Particulars Year Ended 
31 March 2023

Year Ended  
31 March 2022

 Factory Building 64.95 - 
 Plant & Machinery 13.98 2.19 
 Laboratory Equipment 106.84 130.25 
 Computer 9.31 1.26 
 Office Equipment 3.28 0.21 
 Furniture & Fixtures 32.81 1.31 
 Total 231.17 135.22 

		  (iv)	� Details of property, plant and equipments which are hypothecated/mortgaged as security for borrowings are 
disclosed under note 18 (i).	

		  (v)	� The amount of capital commitments is disclosed in Note 34.	

		  (vi)	� During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has capitalized Interest on borrowings aggregating to ` 548.09 
lakhs in connection with borrowings used for construction / acquistion of qualifying assets. Further, an amount of 
` 1430.90 lakhs towards capital subsidy, ` 331.09 lakhs towards interest subsidy and ` 229.45 lakhs towards re-
imbursement of stamp duty charges have been adjusted towards the cost of such assets capitalized during the year 
ended 31 March 2021.	

	 (B)	 Capital work in progress:

Particulars As at  
31 March 2023

As at  
31 March 2022

Capital Work-In-Progress 17,269.71 7,415.52 
Total 17,269.71 7,415.52 

		  (i)	 Capital work in progress ageing schedule:			 
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total

Less than 1 
year

1 to 2 
years

2 to 3 
years

More than 
3 years

Projects in Progress 13,549.87 3,325.38 394.46 - 17,269.71 
As at 31 March 2023 13,549.87 3,325.38 394.46 - 17,269.71 
Projects in Progress 7,021.06 394.46 - - 7,415.52 
As at 31 March 2022 7,021.06 394.46 - - 7,415.52 

6	 Intangible Assets
	 As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Software Technical 
Know-How

Total

Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2022 117.59 1,042.20 1,159.79
Additions during the year - - -
Deductions during the year - - -
Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2023 117.59 1,042.20 1,159.79
Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2022 97.55 704.53 802.08
Amortisation for the year 13.89 324.05 337.94
Deductions during the year - - -

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2023 111.44 1,028.58 1,140.02
Carrying value as at 31 March 2023 6.15 13.62 19.77

	 As at 31 March 2022

Particulars Software Technical 
Know-How

Total

Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2021 102.91 1,001.31 1,104.22
Additions during the year 14.68 40.89 55.57
Deductions during the year - - -
Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2022 117.59 1,042.20 1,159.79
Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2021 82.06 380.48 462.54
Amortisation for the year 15.49 324.05 339.54
Deductions during the year - - -

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2022 97.55 704.53 802.08
Carrying value as at 31 March 2022 20.04 337.67 357.71

7	 Right-of use assets	

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Right-of use Assets (RoU) 25.99 136.84
Total 25.99 136.84

	 Lease Liabilities
Particulars As at 

31 March 2023
As at 

31 March 2022
Lease Liabilities-Current 14.69 159.61
Lease Liabilities- Non Current 16.38 31.07
Total 31.07 190.68

	 A.	� The Company has taken Office building and other warehouse on lease. Disclosures as per Ind AS 116 - Leases are as 
follows:	

		�  The changes in the carrying value of ROU assets for the year ended on 31 March 2023 are as follows :	

Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Opening Balance 97.57 39.27 136.84

Additions during the year - - -
Amortisation (97.57) (13.28) (110.85)
Balance at the end of the year 0.00 25.99 25.99

		  The changes in the carrying value of ROU assets for the year ended on 31 March 2022 are as follows :	

Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Opening Balance 195.13 20.20 215.33
Additions during the year - 31.29 31.29
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year - - -
Amortisation (97.56) (12.22) (109.78)
Balance at the end of the year 97.57 39.27 136.84

		�  The aggregate amortisation expense on ROU assets is included under amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.	

	 B.	 The movement in lease liabilities for the year ended on 31 March 2023 are as follows :	

Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Opening Balance 146.14 44.54 190.68
Additions during the year - - -
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year - - -

Finance cost accrued during the year 14.47 3.72 18.19
Payment of lease labilities (160.61) (17.19) (177.80)
Balance at the end of the year 0.00 31.07 31.07
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		  The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as on 31 March 2023 is as under :	

Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Current - 14.69 14.69
Non Current - 16.38 16.38
Total - 31.07 31.07

		  The movement in lease liabilities for the year ended on 31 March 2022 are as follows :		
Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Opening Balance 269.55 23.90 293.45
Additions during the year - 31.29 31.29
Deletions during the year - - -
Finance cost accrued during the year 26.69 4.68 31.37
Payment of lease labilities (150.10) (15.33) (165.43)
Balance at the end of the year 146.14 44.54 190.68

		  The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as on 31 March 2022 is as under :	

Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Current 146.14 13.46 159.61
Non Current 0.00 31.07 31.07
Total 146.14 44.53 190.68

	 C.	� The details of contractual maturities of lease liabilities as on 31 March 2023 on undiscounted basis are as 
follows:	

Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Less than one year - 17.22 17.22
One to five years - 18.34 18.34
Total - 35.56 35.56

		�  The details of contractual maturities of lease liabilities as on 31 March 2022 on undiscounted basis are as 
follows:	

Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Less than one year 160.61 17.19 177.80
One to five years - 35.56 35.56
Total 160.61 52.75 213.36

	 D.	� The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are 
sufficient to meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.	

	 E.	 The amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 are as follows:	

Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Amortisation expense of RoU (Refer Note 30) 97.57 13.28 110.85
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Refer Note 29) 14.47 3.72 18.19
Rent expense* 0.71 - 0.71
Total 112.75 17.00 129.75

		  *Rent expenses for short-term leases and leases of low value assets (Refer Note 31)	

		  The amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2022 are as follows:	

Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Amortisation expense of RoU (Refer Note 30) 97.56 12.22 109.78
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Refer Note 29) 26.69 4.68 31.37
Rent expense* 0.15 - 0.15
Total 124.40 16.90 141.30

		  *Rent expenses for short-term leases and leases of low value assets (Refer Note 31)	

8	 Investments	
Particulars No. of share / units 

as at 31 March 2023
No. of share / units 

as at 31 March 2022
As at 

31 March 2023
As at  

31 March 2022
(a)	 Non-Current
	 (i)	 Unquoted equity instruments

In Joint Venture Company at cost:
Concord Biotech Japan K.K. [CY. 200 Shares (PY. 200 
Shares)]

200 200 66.52 66.52

Total Investment at cost Non current 66.52 66.52
	 (ii)	� Investments in Mutual Funds measured at 

FVTPL
Aditya Birla Sun Life Credit Risk Fund Growth 
Regular
(Formerly Known as Aditya Birla Sun Life Corporate 
Bond) Segregated Portfolio 1

- 6,056,568 - 9.85

Franklin India Short Term Income Plan - Retail Plan 
Segregated Portfolio 2

13,340 17,876 12.46 15.71

Franklin India Short Term Income Plan - Retail Plan 
Segregated Portfolio 3

21,282 21,282 - -

Total Investments at FVTPL- Non Current 12.46 25.56
Total Non-current Investments 78.98 92.08
Aggregate carrying value of unquoted investments 66.52 66.52
Aggregate carrying value of quoted investments 12.46 25.56
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 12.46 25.56

(b)	 Current
	 (i)	� Investments in Mutual Funds measured at 

FVTPL
Edelweiss Arbitrage Fund - Regular Plan Growth - 10,167,384 - 1,597.50
Aditya Birla Sun Life Banking & PSU Debt Fund 156,941 - 500.00 -
HDFC Banking & PSU Debt Fund 2,497,216 - 500.00 -
Kotak Mahindra Banking & PSU Debt Fund 879,152 - 500.00 -
SBI Banking & PSU Fund 18,018 - 500.00 -
Aditya Birla Sun Life Overnight Fund - 35,043 - 401.20
Nippon India Overnight Fund - 422,073 - 480.11
Axis Strategic Bond Fund - Growth 1,161,353 1,161,353 270.88 259.15
Franklin India Short Term Income Plan - Retail Plan 1,292 1,822 63.89 85.87
ICICI Prudential Saving Fund - Growth 296,506 296,506 1,365.65 1,292.76
Kotak Low Duration Fund Standard Growth 
(Regular Plan)

18,324 18,324 523.32 499.43

Reliance Prime Debt Fund - Growth Plan - Growth 
Option

536,413 536,413 268.53 256.24

Nippon India Floting Rate Fund 1,771,457 - 700.00 -
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund 130,887 - 470.93 -
Axis Liquid Fund 13,312 - 330.69 -
ICICI PrudentiaL Lquid Fund 293,760 - 971.33 -
Nippon India Money Market Fund 4,036 - 141.78 -
SBI Liquid Fund 38,677 - 1,352.18 -
HDFC Low Duration Fund - Direct Growth 1,590,086 1,590,086 835.12 791.68
HDFC Ultra Short Term Fund -Direct 4,231,052 4,231,052 554.52 525.19
Trust Banking & PSU fund 50,000 50,000 544.19 528.02
SBI Overnight Fund - Growth - 18,398 630.18
Aditya Birla Sun Life Short Term Fund 701,471 - 300.00 -
Axis Short Term Fund 2,141,030 - 600.00 -
ICICI Prudetial Short Term Fund 1,103,584 - 600.00 -
Kotak Bond Fund Short Term Fund 1,257,245 - 600.00 -
Nippon India Short Term Fund 1,260,923 - 600.00 -
SBI Short Term Debt Fund 2,104,886 - 600.00 -
Total Investments at FVTPL- Current 13,693.01 7,347.33
Aggregate carrying value of quoted investments 13,693.01 7,347.33
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 13,693.01 7,347.33
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9	 Other financial assets

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Non- current
Security deposits  132.81  102.18 
Term deposits with maturity more than 12 months (Refer note i below)  796.57  78.20 
Interest accrued but not due on deposits  22.74  3.87 
Other receivables
Considered Good  67.39  65.31 
Considered Doubtful  226.95  226.95 
Less: Provision on other receivables (Refer note ii below)  (226.95)  (226.95)
Net other receivable  67.39  65.31 
Total  1,019.51  249.56 

	 Notes:	
	 (i)	� Out of total term deposits of ` 796.57 lakhs, term deposits amounting to ` 16.57 lakhs ( as at 31 March 2022 ` 78.20 lakhs ) 

are lodged as margin money against Bank Guarantees and other Commitments.				  

	 (ii)	 Provision of ` 226.95 lakhs is made for incentive receivable under Market Access Initiative Scheme( MAI scheme).	

10	 Other non current assets	

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Capital advances  761.95  2,663.94 
Total  761.95  2,663.94 

11	 Inventories

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

(At lower of Cost and Net Realizable Value)
(a)	 Raw materials - Including Goods in transit (C.Y. Nil Lakhs, P.Y. 19.15)  8,042.87  8,080.81 
(b)	 Work-in-progress  11,319.82  9,018.04 
(c)	 Finished goods - Including Goods in transit (C.Y. 115.88 Lakhs , P.Y. 427.99 Lakhs)  548.49  1,027.07 
(d)	 Fuel  78.91  72.74 
(e)	 Stores & Spares  309.68  121.43 
(f )	 Stock in Trade  931.70  1,191.70 
Total  21,231.47  19,511.79 

	 (i)	 Inventories are given as security for borrowings as disclosed under note 18(ii).	

	 (ii)	� Inventory write down are accounted, considering the nature of inventory, ageing and net realisable value ` 503.34 Lakhs 
(March, 2022 ` 141.43 Lakhs). The changes in write downs are recognised as an expense in the statement of Profit and 
loss.	

12	 Trade receivables

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Unsecured, Considered good  27,375.76  23,217.42 
Trade receivables Credit impaired  87.30  78.06 
Less:- Allowance for doubtful trade receivables  87.30  78.06 
Total  27,375.76  23,217.42 

	 (i)	 The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risk, and loss allowances are disclosed in Note 38.	

	 (ii)	 Includes receivables from related parties [refer note 39 (c) ].					   

	 (iii)	 Trade Receivables are given as security for borrowings as disclosed under note 18(ii).				  

	 (iv)	 Movements in the expected credit loss allowance:							     

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Opening balance  78.06  112.69 
Add / (less) : Provision made / (reversed) during the year  9.24  (34.63)
Less: Provision used during the year  -    -   
Closing balance  87.30  78.06 

	 (v)	 Trade receivables Ageing Schedule:	

Particulars Not Due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than  
6 months

6 months  
to 1 year

1 to 2  
years

2 to 3  
years

More than  
3 years

(i)	� Undisputed Trade receivables  
- considered good

 18,434.53  7,203.27  1,331.87  377.59  28.50  -    27,375.76 

(ii)	� Undisputed Trade Receivables
	 - credit impaired

- - -  18.15  6.91  62.24  87.30 

As at 31 March 2023  18,434.53  7,203.27  1,331.87  395.74  35.41  62.24  27,463.06 
(i)	� Undisputed Trade receivables   

- considered good
 14,249.45  8,024.98  912.53  30.45  -    -    23,217.42 

(ii)	� Undisputed Trade Receivables   
- credit impaired

 -    -    -    5.81  5.15  67.10  78.06 

As at 31 March 2022  14,249.45  8,024.98  912.53  36.26  5.15  67.10  23,295.48 

13	 Cash and Bank Balances

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

(a)	 Cash and cash equivalents
	 Cash on hand  1.63  1.15 
	 Balance with Banks

	 In Current accounts  348.29  65.54 
	 In Exchange Earners' Foreign Currency (EEFC) account  -    -   
	 Total cash and cash equivalents  349.92  66.69 
(b)	 Other bank balances

	 Term Deposits with Maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months [Refer note below]  3,994.77  8,826.48 
	 Total other bank balances  3,994.77  8,826.48 

	 (i)	� Out of total term deposits of ` 3,994.77 Lakhs, Term deposits amounting to ` 936.77 Lakhs (P.Y. ` 101.48 Lakhs) are lodged 
as margin money against Bank Guarantees and other Commitments.		

14	 Other financials assets
Particulars As at 

31 March 2023
As at 

31 March 2022
Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Current

Subsidy receivable [Refer Note (i) below]  124.37  1,819.25 
Interest Accrued but not due on deposits  78.88  212.17 
Derivative financial instruments  25.00  49.83 
Insurance claims  73.89  38.28 
Security Deposit  31.65  48.05 
Product Linked Incentive Receivable [Refer Note (ii) below]  1,591.17  -   
IPO expense reimbursement receivable [Refer Note (iii) below]  1,268.16  -   
Other Receivables [Refer Note (iv) below]  466.78  30.64 
Total  3,659.90  2,198.22 

	 (i)	� Company is eligible to get various incentive namely – Capital subsidy, interest subsidy, power subsidy, employment 
generation incentive subsidy etc. from GSBTM (Gujarat State Biotechnology Mission) under Biotechnology Policy of Gujarat 
for establishing new API Plant at Limbasi. Company has received claims of subsidies on timely manner from GSBTM. The 
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Company has received Capital subsidy pertianing for the claim of the GSBTM in FY 2022-2023. As at 31 March 2023, the 
Company has outstanding receivable on account of various subsidies as follows - Interest Subsidy ` 46.12 Lakhs for interest 
paid on term loan, Power Tariff Subsidy ` 65.62 Lakhs, Employment Generation Incentive ` 12.62 Lakhs (as at 31 March 
2022 Capital Subsidy ` 1430.90 lakhs, Interest Subsidy ` 140.20 lakhs for interest paid on term loan, Power Tariff Subsidy ` 
106.53 lakhs , Employment Generation Incentive ` 24.48 lakhs and Electricity Duty ` 117.14 lakhs)

	 (ii)	� The Company is eligible for claiming benefits under the Production Linked Incentive [PLI] Scheme of the Government of 
India.  Based on the Claims Submitted by PLI department, the Company has recognised the PLI Income.	

	 (iii)	� Expenses incurred in relation to IPO that will be recovered by the Company from the selling shareholder upon completion 
of IPO process as per offer agreement.	

	 (iv)	 Other receivable includes `. 461.72 lakhs of amount recoverable from customer towards bank guarantees invoked.	
	

15	 Other current assets	

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Advance to Supplier  130.97  251.61 
Balances with indirect tax authorities  1,398.35  736.20 
Prepaid expenses  551.85  476.05 
Returnable assets  71.16  -   
Export Incentive Receivable  306.13  627.06 
Advances to Employees  6.72  7.84 
Total  2,465.18  2,098.76 

16	 Equity Share Capital	

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Authorised
110,000,000 (Previous Year - 10,000,000) equity shares of ` 1/- each(as on 31 March, 2022 ` 10/-) 
(Refer note below)

 1,100.00  1,000.00 

 1,100.00  1,000.00 
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up
104,616,204 (Previous Period - 9,510,564 ) equity shares of ` 1/- (Previous Period ` 10/- ) each fully 
paid up [Refer Note (v) below]

 1,046.16  951.06 

 1,046.16  951.06 

	� The Authorized Share Capital of the Company was increased from ` 10,00,00,000 (consisting of 1,00,00,000 equity shares of face 
value of ` 10 each) to ` 11,00,00,000 (consisting of 11,00,00,000 equity shares of face value of ` 1 each) through an ordinary 
resolution passed by the Shareholders of the Company in Extra Ordinary General Meeting of Company held on 8 July 2022.

	 (i)	 Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:	

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of Shares ` in Lakhs Number of Shares ` in Lakhs

As at the beginning of the year  9,510,564  951.06  9,510,564  951.06 
Add: Issued on account of Split off of shares during 
the period [refer Note (v) below]

 85,595,076  -   

Add: Issued on account of Bonus shares during the 
period [refer Note (v) below]

 9,510,564  95.10  -    -   

Outstanding at the end of the year  104,616,204  1,046.16  9,510,564  951.06 

	 (ii)	 Terms/rights attached to equity shares with voting rights:	
		�  The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 1 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 

to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive 
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The dividend proposed by the Board 
of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuring Annual General Meeting.			 
		

					   

	 (iii)	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding

Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid
Mr.  Sudhir Jairam Vaid  30,169,524 28.84%  2,742,684 28.84%

Helix Investment Holdings Pte Limited, Singapore  20,925,652 20.00%  1,902,332 20.00%

Mrs. Manju Sudhir Vaid  9,987,384 9.55%  907,944 9.55%

Nishtha Jhunjhunwal Disc Trust  8,399,732 8.03%  763,612 8.03%

Aryavir Jhunjhunwal Disc Trust  8,399,754 8.03%  763,614 8.03%

Aryaman Jhunjhunwal Disc Trust  8,399,754 8.03%  763,614 8.03%

M/s. Ontario Inc.  5,640,536 5.39%  512,776 5.39%

	 (iv)	 Shares held by Promoters & Promoters group at the end of the Year:

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 % of change 
during the 

year
No. of shares % of total 

Shares
No. of shares % of total 

Shares
Promoters
Mr. Sudhir Vaid  30,169,524 28.84%  2,742,684 28.84%  -   
Mr. Ankur Vaid  586,520 0.56%  53,320 0.56%  -   
Promoters Group
Mrs. Manju Sudhir Vaid  9,987,384 9.55%  907,944 9.55%  -   
Mrs. Megha Vaid  547,008 0.52%  49,728 0.52%  -   
Mrs. Sonal Kumra  73,920 0.07%  6,720 0.07%  -   
Sudman Consultants LLP  4,752,000 4.54%  432,000 4.54%  -   

	 (v)	� Pursuant to the approval of the shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 8 July 2022, 
each equity share of face value of ` 10/- per share was sub-divided into 10 equity shares of face value of ` 1/- per share and 
approved the issuance of 1 bonus shares of face value ` 1 each for every 10 existing fully paid-up equity share of face value 
` 1 each and accordingly 95,10,564 bonus shares were issued and allotted on 20 July 2022 out of securities premium.

17	 Other Equity

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Reserve and Surplus
Retained Earnings  117,032.99  98,550.95 
General Reserve  2,921.79  2,921.79 
Securities premium [Refer note 16(v)]  8,197.10  8,292.20 
Total  128,151.88  109,764.94 

	 Nature and purpose of reserves:

	 (i)	 General reserve:
		�  The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. There 

is no policy of regular transfer. Items included under General Reserve shall not be reclassified back into the Statement of 
Profit & Loss .	

	 (ii)	 Retained Earnings:
		�  Retained Earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date less any transfer to general reserve, dividends and 

other distributions to shareholder.		

	 (iii)	 Securities Premium:

		  This reserves represents Security Premium received at the time of issuance of Equity Shares.	
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18	 Borrowings

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Non-current
Secured
Term Loan (Refer Note i below)  3,123.56  5,624.86 
Less: Current maturities of term Loan  (2,500.00)  (2,500.00)
Total  623.56  3,124.86 
Current borrowing
Secured
Cash Credit Facility (Refer Note ii below)  -    433.72 
Current maturities of long term liabilities  2,500.00  2,500.00 
Total  2,500.00  2,933.72 

	 (i)	� The Company has availed Term Loan from State Bank of India. Term Loan of ` 10,000 lakhs (outstanding amounting as at 
31 March 2023 ` 3123.56 lakhs  31 March 2022 ` 5624.86 lakhs) is secured by  first charge on Factory Land & Building and 
Plant & Machinery of Unit-III at Limbasi, Dist. Kheda, (Survey No. 666,667,668 and 84 at Village Malavada and Survey No. 
94A,94B,119,120,126,135 and 136 at Ranasar ) and charge on the same has been created. Interest rate is 3 months MCLR + 
0.20% p.a and loan is repayable in 16 quarterly instalments of ` 625 lakhs each starting from October,2020

	 (ii)	� Short term Borrowings from banks are in nature of working capital facilities which are secured by first pari passu charge on 
entire current assets of the Company.  Interest rate is MCLR + 0.05% and this borrowing is repayable on demand	

	 (iii) 	� The Company has Fund-based and Non-fund-based limits of Working Capital from Banks. For the said facility, the revised 
submissions made by the Company to its bankers based on closure of books of accounts at the respective year end, the 
revised quarterly returns or statements comprising stock statements, book debt statements, statements on ageing analysis 
of the debtors, and other stipulated financial information filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions 
are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective quarters and no material 
discrepancies have been observed.	

19	 Provisions

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Non-current
Provisions for compensated absences  229.66  187.41 
Total  229.66  187.41 
Current
Provision for Compensated Absences  147.85  81.32 
Provision for Sales Return [Refer note 24(c) and i below]  2,542.05  -   
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note : 36)  57.67  93.45 
Total  2,747.57  174.77 

	 Note:	

	 (i)	 Provision for Sales Returns:
		�  One of the distributor based out at America has terminated exclusive distribution and supply agreement with effect from 

the date of 180 days from the letters for products supplied by the Company vide termination notice dated 5 August 2022 
and 14 December 2022. As per the Agreement, the Company is required to purchase the remaining unsold inventory based 
on mutual understanding between the Parties. Provision is made for inventory lying with distributor  of all the terminated 
products. Out of total sales return provision Goods amounting to ` 2163.70 lakhs which are expected to be received are 
primarily in nature of expired or near expiry products. The Company has also made additional provision for expected sales 
return on the basis of evaluation of the contractual terms with other customers, trade practices with customers, market 
conditions and historical experience.

		�  Further, the Company has also made additional provision on the basis of evaluation of the contractual terms with the 
customers, trade practices with customers, market conditions and historical experience.		

		

		

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Opening Balance
Add: Provision made during the period  3,843.54  -   
Less: Provision utilised during the period  (1,301.49)  -   
Closing Balance  2,542.05  -   

20	 Income taxes	
	 The major component of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are as follows:

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Statement of Profit and Loss
Current tax  7,953.00  5,849.00 
Short / (excess) provision related to earlier years  1.61  39.40 
Deferred tax expense  238.16  370.53 
Income tax expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss  8,192.77  6,258.93 
Statement to Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Tax expense related to items recognised in OCI during the year  8.66  (18.77)
Income tax credit recognised in OCI  8.66  (18.77)

	 (a)	� Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate for the year ended 31st March, 
2023 and 31st March, 2022.	

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Accounting profit before tax  32,005.41  24,115.71 
Tax Rate 25.168% 25.168%
Current tax expenses on Profit before tax expenses at the enacted income tax rate in India  8,055.12  6,069.44 
Adjustment
	 Tax impact in income charged under capital gain  (22.35)  (46.82)
	 (Excess) / Short tax provision related to earlier year  1.61  39.40 
	 Expenditure not deductible under tax  142.15  113.15 
	 Changes in temporary differences of earlier years  12.30  67.68 
	 Others  3.94  16.08 
Total Income tax expense  8,192.77  6,258.93 
Effective tax rate  25.60  25.95 

	 (b)	 Deferred tax:
		�  The Company has accrued amounts of deferred tax. Components of Deferred tax (assets) & liabilities recognized in the 

financial statements of the Company as follows:	

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  2,387.06  2,134.76 
Fair Valuation of Investments  175.17  156.97 
Leases  -    -   
Total  2,562.23  2,291.73 
Deferred tax assets
Employee benefit obligations  116.45  88.03 
Allowances for doubtful debts & other receivables  79.09  76.76 
Other disallowable expenses  21.51  16.31 
Leases  1.28  13.55 
Total  218.33  194.65 
Deferred Tax liabilities (Net)  2,343.90  2,097.08 
Total  2,343.90  2,097.08 
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		  Movement of deferred tax liabilities / (assets) during the year:

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Deferred tax liabilities / (assets) in relation to:
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets  252.29  336.19 
Fair Valuation of Investments  18.20  151.54 
Leases  12.27  (14.79)
Employee benefit obligations  (28.42)  (46.02)
Allowances for doubtful debts & other receivables  (2.33)  (65.69)
Other disallowable expenses  (5.20)  (9.47)
Deferred tax expense  246.82  351.76 

		  (i)	� There are certain income-tax related legal proceedings which are pending against the Company. Potential liabilities, 
if any have been adequately provided for, and the Company does not currently estimate any probable material 
incremental tax liabilities in respect of these matters. Refer note 34 (b).	

		  (ii)	� The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the 
same tax authority.	

		  (iii)	� The Tax rate used for Financial Year 2022-23 and 2021-22 , in reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate of 25.168% 
payable by corporate entity in India on taxable profits under the Indian Tax Law.	

	 (c)	 Non-Current tax asset / (Current tax Liabilities)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Provision for Income Tax  (19,355.26)  (18,907.40)
Advance payment of Tax  18,721.90  19,267.85 
Net Non-Current tax asset / (Current tax Liabilities)  (633.36)  360.45 

21	 Trade Payables	

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Due to micro and small enterprise ('MSME') (Refer note : 42)  1,702.27  896.88 
Due to others  7,677.73  7,413.68 
Total  9,380.00  8,310.56 

	 (a)	 Trade Payables Ageing Schedule:

Particulars Not Due Outstanding for following periods 
from due date of payment

Total

Less than  
1 Year

1 to 2  
years

2 to 3  
years

More than  
3 years

(i)	� MSME  1,488.55  213.17  0.33  -    0.22  1,702.27 
(ii)	� Others  5,550.31  1,889.40  141.83  37.83  58.36  7,677.73 
As at 31 March 2023  7,038.86  2,102.57  142.16  37.83  58.58  9,380.00 
(i)	� MSME  433.35  432.35  27.30  3.33  0.55  896.88 
(ii)	� Others  2,731.52  3,999.33  400.08  173.76  108.99  7,413.68 
As at 31 March 2022  3,164.87  4,431.68  427.38  177.09  109.54  8,310.56 

22	 Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  25.97  36.32 
Payables for employee benefits  1,009.21  884.56 
Security Deposits  10.00  10.00 
Derivative financial instruments  0.00  3.16 
Payable on purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment  2,089.17  1,229.85 
Total  3,134.35  2,163.89 

23	 Other current liabilities

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Payable to Statutory and other authorities  221.17  218.84 
Advance from customers  155.51  1,228.02 
Total  376.68  1,446.86 

24	 Revenue From Operations

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Sale of products - (Refer Note Below)  83,045.34  70,398.60 
Sale of Services  17.88  445.41 

 83,063.22  70,844.01 
Other Operating Income
Export benefits  662.43  449.34 
Product Linked Incentive Income [Refer note 14 (ii)]  1,591.17  -   

 2,253.60  449.34 
Total  85,316.82  71,293.35 

	 (a)	 Disaggregate revenues from contracts with customers based on geography for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Domestic  43,213.41  33,919.67 
Exports  42,103.41  37,373.68 
Total  85,316.82  71,293.35 

	 (b)	 Disaggregate revenues from contracts with customers based on products:

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

API  76,131.40  57,490.76 
Formulations  9,185.42  13,802.59 
Total  85,316.82  71,293.35 

	 (c)	 Reconciliation of Revenue from operations with contract price:

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Contract Price  89,172.52  72,605.47 
Less : Adjustment made to contract price on account of:
Sales Return  (3,843.54)  (1,303.77)
Others - rate difference  (12.16)  (8.35)
Total  85,316.82  71,293.35 

25	 Other Income

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Interest income
From Bank  444.08  478.74 
Net gain on sale of investments  299.36  509.38 
Net gain on FV of investments in mutual fund  72.33  13.58 
Net foreign exchange gain  1,022.15  635.89 
Subsidy income  832.38  541.82 
Insurance claim Received  65.10  30.35 
Miscellaneous income  158.72  97.26 
Receivables from Bank Guarantee  461.72  -   
Excess provision no longer required written back  175.09  -   
Reversal / (Provision) of doubtful debts, net  -    34.63 
Total  3,530.93  2,341.65 
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26	 Cost of materials consumed

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Opening Stock  8,080.81  6,463.41 
Add: Purchases  16,669.21  17,343.14 

 24,750.02  23,806.55 
Less: Closing stock  8,042.87  8,080.81 
Total  16,707.15  15,725.74 

27	 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade:	

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Opening stock
Finished goods  1,027.07  1,034.38 
Stock-in-trade  1,191.70  972.47 
Work-in-progress  9,018.04  6,831.95 

 11,236.81  8,838.80 
Less : Closing stock
Finished goods  548.49  1,027.07 
Stock-in-trade  931.70  1,191.70 
Work-in-progress  11,319.82  9,018.04 

 12,800.01  11,236.81 
Net (increase) in stock  (1,563.20)  (2,398.01)

28	 Employee benefits expense:

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Salaries, wages and bonus  10,314.23  8,840.48 
Contribution to provident and other funds  523.82  572.43 
Staff welfare expenses  189.80  156.54 
Total  11,027.85  9,569.45 

29	 Finance costs

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Interest expense on borrowings  365.98  516.99 
Interest on Income tax  66.86  -   
Interest Expense on lease liabilities (Refer Note 7)  18.19  31.37 
Total  451.03  548.36 

30	 Depreciation and amortization

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Depreciation for the year on tangible assets(Refer Note 5)  4,954.45  4,555.76 
Amortization for the year on intangible assets (Refer Note 6)  337.94  339.54 
Amortization for the year on right of use assets (Refer Note 7)  110.85  109.78 
Total  5,403.24  5,005.08 

31	 Other expenses

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Power & Fuel Consumed  9,765.37  7,164.47 

Consumption of stores and spare parts  1,305.77  919.16 

Laboratory Charges & Testing Expenses  2,158.59  1,856.61 

Repairs & Maintenance  1,187.48  790.75 

Rent Expense (Refer Note 7)  0.71  0.15 

Rates & Taxes  589.09  500.74 

Royalty Expenses  380.08  472.03 

Insurance Expense  295.51  257.36 

Bank Charges  67.42  65.06 

Travelling and conveyance  897.04  754.01 

Communication, IT and Stationery Expenses  243.33  219.33 

Payment to Auditors (Refer Note-33)  25.46  28.14 

Legal & Professional Fees  485.89  553.32 

Directors Sitting Fee  16.70  4.80 

Selling, Distribution and Advertisement Expenses  2,369.85  2,143.64 

Loss due to Fire  3.05  - 

Net loss on sale of Property, plant & equipment  9.40  3.37 

Bad Debt written off  -    -   

Export incentive receivables written off  -    645.44 

Provision for doubtful debts  9.24  -   

Provision against other receivables  -    226.95 

Corporate Social Responsibilities Expense (Refer Note-35)  497.30  449.49 

Donation  -    0.03 

Bank Guarantee Expense (Refer Note 14(iv))  461.72  -   

Miscellaneous Expenses  1,170.40  940.48 

Total  21,939.40  17,995.33 

32	 Earnings per share (EPS)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Basic and Diluted EPS
(A)	� Net profit after tax before other comprehensive income as per consolidated statement of 

profit and loss (` in lakhs) (A)
23,812.64 17,856.78

(B)	� Weighted average number of equity shares considered after split of shares into ` 1 each (Refer 
Note 16)

9,51,05,640 9,51,05,640

(C)	 Bonus shares issued subsequent to 31 March 2022 (Refer Note 16) 95,10,564 95,10,564
(D)	 Weighted average number of equity shares considered for calcuation of EPS (B + C) 10,46,16,204 10,46,16,204
(E)	 Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share (`) (A/D) 22.76 17.07
(F)	 Nominal Value of equity share 1.00 1.00

	� The impact of split of shares and issue of bonus shares are retrospectively considered for the computation of EPS as per the 
requirement of Ind AS 33.	

33	 Auditors Remuneration

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Audit Fees  18.11  14.00 
Certification fees  5.50  9.64 
Other fees  -    4.50 
Reimbursement of expense  1.85  -   
Total  25.46  28.14 

	� Company has paid fees of `. 144.20 lakhs for issuing various reports and certificates in connection with the proposed 
initial public offering (IPO).  This expenses are recoverable from the selling shareholders and are not included in the above 
information.	
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34	 (a)	 Commitments and Contingencies

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided 
for in respect of the Property, Plant & Equipment (Net of Advances)

 1,228.39  7,838.46 

Total  1,228.39  7,838.46 

	 (b)	 Contingent liabilities

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Claims against the company / disputed liabilities not acknowledged as debts:
Disputed demand of Excise duty for which an appeal has been preferred  376.37  376.37 
-	� The Company has preferred Appeal to ITAT against order received from Assessing officer 

in respect of short payment of Excise duty, non reversal of input credit
Disputed demand of Income Tax in which company has preferred Appeal or filed 
rectification with Department :

1,054.56 955.45

-	� The Company has preferred Appeal to CIT(A) against order received from Assessing 
officer in respect of disallowance of additional depreciation in A.Y. 2013-14

-	� The Company has preferred Appeal to CIT(A) against order received from Assessing 
officer in respect of Penalty imposed u/s 271(1)(C ) in A.Y. 2015-16 & 2016-17

-	� The Company has preferred Appeal to CIT(A) against order received from Assessing 
officer in respect of disallowance of Purchase of Raw Material in A.Y. 2016-17

-	� The Company has preferred Appeal to CIT(A) against order received from Assessing 
officer in respect of disallowance of u/s 35(2)(AB) and Rule 8D r.w.s 14A in A.Y. 2018-19

-	� The Company has filed rectification with Assessing officer against intimation received 
from CPC regarding payment of Dividend Distribution Tax for A.Y. 2020-21. The 
Company has also filed Appeal to CIT(A) against order received from Assessing officer in 
respect of disallowance u/s Rule 8D r.w.s 14A in A.Y. 2020-21 and regarding not granting 
credit of payment of Dividend Distribution Tax.

Total 1,430.93 1,331.82

		  (i)	� It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending 
litigations of the respective proceedings.	

		  (ii)	 The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.	

		  (iii)	� The Company believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the 
Company’s financial position and results of operations. These demands are with respect to income tax and service tax 
matters for which appeals have been filed.	

35	 Corporate Social responsibilities	
	 Amount spent towards CSR activities during the year are as follows:

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

(i)	 Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 495.46 448.03
(ii)	 Amount of expenditure incurred 497.30 449.49
(iii)	 Excess / (Shortfall) at the end of the year 1.84 1.46
(iv)	 Total of previous years shortfall - -
(v)	 Reason for shortfall NA NA
(vi)	 Nature of CSR activities Medical, 

Educational, 
Environmental 

sustainability, 
Promoting sports, 

Social, Rural 
Development

Medical, 
Educational, 

Environmental 
sustainability, 

Promoting sports, 
Social, Rural 

Development
(vii)	� details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the company in 

relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard
NA NA

(viii)	� where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual 
obligation, the movements in the provision during the year shall be shown separately.

NA NA

36	 Employee benefits plans:	
	 (a)	 Defined contribution plans:	
		�  The Company makes contributions towards provident fund, a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying 

employees. The provident fund is operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The Company recognized 
` 425.67 Lakhs (Previous Year `  385.90 Lakhs) for provident fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The 
contributions payable to these plans by the company are at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.

	 (b)	 Defined benefit plans:	

		�  The Company makes annual contributions to the Employee’s Group Gratuity cash accumulation scheme of the LIC, 
a funded defined benefit plan for qualifying employees. The Scheme provides for payment to vested employees at 
retirement/death while in employment or on termination of employment as per the provisions of the Gratuity Act, 1972. 
Vesting occurs on completion of 5 years of service. The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related 
current service cost are measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method as per actuarial valuation carried out at the 
balance sheet date. 	

	 Characteristics of Defined Benefit Plans and risk associated with them:	

	� Valuation  of defined benefit plan are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory 
framework, which may vary over time. Thus, Company is exposed to various risks in providing the above benefit plans which are 
as follows:			

	 (i)	 Interest rate risk:

		�  The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the 
ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (i.e. value of 
defined benefit obligation).	

	 (ii)	 Salary escalation risk:
		�  The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan particulars 

in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to 
determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan’s liability.	

	 (iii)	 Demographic risk:
		�  The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to 

the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumptions.	

	� The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan as required under Ind AS-19 and the amounts recognized in the 
Company’s financial statements as at 31 March 2023:	

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

i.	 Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of defined benefit obligation:
	 Liability at the beginning of the Year  689.81  493.90 
	 Current Service Cost  122.51  107.44 
	 Interest Cost  47.60  34.33 
	 Benefits paid  (59.84)  (16.71)
	 Net Actuarial losses / (gain) Recognized  (39.93)  70.85 
	 Liability at the end of the Year  760.15  689.81 
ii.	 Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of the Fair value of Plan assets:
	 Plan assets at the beginning of the Year, at Fair value  596.36  471.77 
	 Expected return on plan assets  41.13  32.79 
	 Contributions  130.35  112.23 
	 Benefit paid  (59.84)  (16.71)
	 Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets  (5.52)  (3.72)
	 Plan assets at the end of the Year, at Fair Value  702.48  596.36 
iii.	 Present value of defined benefit obligation and Fair value of plan assets:
	 Obligations at the end of the Year  760.15  689.81 
	 Plan assets at the end of the Year, at Fair value  702.48  596.36 
	 Liability recognized in balance sheet at the end of the Year  57.67  93.45 
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36	 Employee benefits plans: (Continued…)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

iv.	 Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year
	 Current Service Cost  122.51  107.44 
	 Interest Cost  47.60  34.33 
	 Expected returns on plan assets  (41.13)  (32.79)
	 Total  128.98  108.98 
v.	 Expense recognised in the other comprehensive income for the year
	 Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation for the period  (39.93)  70.85 
	 Return on planned asset, excluding Interest Income  5.52  3.72 
	 Total  (34.41)  74.57 
vi.	 Actuarial Assumptions
	 Discount Rate (per annum) 7.35% 6.90%
	 Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.35% 6.90%
	 Salary Escalation 9.00% 9.00%
	 Attrition Rate 12.00% 10.00%
	 Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 6 Years 7 Years
	 Retirement Age  58 Years  58 Years 
	 Mortality Rate Indian Assured 

Lives Mortality 
(2012-14) Urban

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2012-14) Urban

	� * The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of government of India securities as at the balance sheet date for the 
estimated term of the obligations.

	 **Expected rate of return on plan assets is determined based on the nature of assets and prevailing economic scenario.

	� *** The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other 
relevant factors.	

	 vii.	 Sensitivity Analysis for each significant actuarial assumption:
		�  The significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligations are discount rate and 

expected salary increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of 
the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions  760.14  689.79 
Impact of increase in discount rate by 1 %  (37.56)  (39.29)
Impact of decrease in discount rate by 1 %  41.76  44.24 
Impact of increase in salary escalation rate by 1 %  38.24  40.30 
Impact of decrease in salary escalation rate by 1 %  (35.18)  (36.81)
Impact of increase in employee turnover rate by 1 %  (5.25)  6.54 
Impact of decrease in employee turnover rate by 1 %  5.57  7.01 

		�  The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligations 
as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be 
correlated.	

		�  Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligations has been 
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in 
calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.	

	 viii.	 Investment details of plan assets:
		�  The plan assets are managed by Insurance Company viz Life Insurance Corporation of India who has invested the funds 

substantially as under:	

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Insurance Fund - investment in LIC policy 702.48 596.36
Total 702.48 596.36

36	 Employee benefits plans: (Continued…)	
	 ix.	 Maturity Profile

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

1st Following Year  99.24  87.26 
2nd Following Year  79.27  58.79 
3rd Following Year  104.79  72.50 
4th Following Year  85.57  82.86 
5th Following Year  80.07  65.22 
Sum of Years 6 to 10  351.87  305.99 
Sum of Years 11 and above  422.00  485.49 

	 x.	 Expected contribution during the next annual reporting period	
		  The Company’s best expected contribution during the next year is ` 177.55 Lakhs.	

	 (c)	 Compensated absences:	
		�  Actuarial Valuation for Compensated Absences is done as at the year end and the provision is made based on leave 

balances derived as per Company’s Rules with corresponding charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss amounting to 
` 144.71 lakhs ( Previous Year ` 48.98 Lakhs) and it covers all regular employees. Major drivers in actuarial assumptions, 
typically, are years of service and employee compensation.	

37	� The Company has taken various derivatives to hedge its risk associated with foreign exchange fluctuations. These transactions 
have been undertaken to act as economic hedges for the Company’s exposures to various risks in foreign exchange markets. 
Forward exchange contracts (being derivative instruments), which are not intended for trading or speculative purposes but for 
hedge purposes are entered, which are available at the settlement date of certain payables and receivables.	

Particular As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Amount (in Lakhs) Amount (` in Lakhs) Amount (in Lakhs) Amount (` in Lakhs)

Hedging of Trade Receivables 
Forward Contracts  USD 50.55  4,153.69  USD 80.40  6,093.72 

	 The details of foreign currency exposures not hedged by derivative instruments are as under:

Particular As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Amount (in Lakhs) Amount (` in Lakhs) Amount (in Lakhs) Amount (` in Lakhs)

Trade Receivables  USD 66.40  5,460.20  USD 47.12  3,572.50 
 EURO 6.19  553.93  EURO 6.35  535.52 

 JPY 2002.00  1,233.23  JPY 2310.00  1,435.72 
Other Current Assets  USD 5.62  461.72  -    -   
Trade Payables  USD 41.82  3,436.26  USD  23.40  1,773.54 
Other Current Financial Liability  USD 4.50  369.70  -    -   

38	 Financial Instruments: Fair Value and Risk Management	
	 (i)	 Categories of Financial instruments: Financial assets and liabilities

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Financial Assets :
Amortised cost
Trade receivables  27,375.76  23,217.42 
Cash and cash equivalents  349.92  66.69 
Term deposits other than cash and cash equivalent  3,994.77  8,826.48 
Others  4,654.40  2,397.95 
Fair value through profit or loss
Non-current Investment - Investments in Mutual Funds  12.46  25.56 
Current Investment - Investments in Mutual Funds  13,693.01  7,347.33 
Derivative instruments  25.00  49.83 
Total  50,105.32  41,931.26 
Financial Liabilities :
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Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Amortised cost
Borrowings (including current maturities)  3,123.56  6,058.58 
Lease Liability  31.07  190.68 
Trade payables  9,380.00  8,310.56 
Other Financial Liabilities  3,134.35  2,160.74 
Fair value through profit or loss
Derivative instruments  0.00  3.16 
Total  15,668.98  16,723.72 

	 (ii)	 Fair value hierarchy :	
		�  The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are determined based on the price that would be received to sell an 

asset or paid to transfer a liability at the reporting date considering the fair value hierarchy as under:	

		�  Level 1: It includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments that have 
quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing 
price as at the reporting period.	

		�  Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the 
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely 
as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, 
the instrument is included in level 2.	

		�  Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 
3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

		  Fair value hierarchy	
		�  The following tables categorise the financial assets and liabilities held at fair value by the valuation methodology applied in 

determining their fair value.

As at 31 March 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets :
Investment in Mutual Funds  13,705.46  -    -    13,705.46 
Derivative financial assets  -    25.00  -    25.00 
Financial liability:
Derivative financial liability  -    0.00  -    0.00 
As at 31 March 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets :
Investment in Mutual Funds  7,372.89  -    -    7,372.89 
Derivative financial assets  -    49.83  -    49.83 
Financial liability:
Derivative financial liability  -    3.16  -    3.16 

		  Determination of fair values:	
		�  Basis of assumptions used to estimated the fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on 

recurring basis :	

		  �Investment in Mutual Funds:  The fair values represent net asset value as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units 
in the published statements. Net asset values represent the price at which the issuer will issue further units in the mutual 
fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors.	

	 	� Derivative instruments: For forward contracts, future cash flows are estimated based on forward exchange rates and 
forward interest rates (from observable forward exchange rates / yield curves at the end of the reporting period) and 
contract forward exchange rates and forward interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of various 
counterparties.	

 	 (iii)	 Financial Risk Management	

		  �The Company’s activities are exposed to variety of financial risks. These risks include market risk (including foreign exchange 
risk and interest rate risks), credit risks and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management program seeks to minimize 
potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company through established policies and processes which are 
laid down to ascertain the extent of risks, setting appropriate limits, controls, continuous monitoring and its compliance.	

A	 Market Risk :	

			�   Market risk refers to the possibility that changes in the market rates may have impact on the Company’s profits or the 
value of its holding of financial instruments. The Company is exposed to market risks on account of foreign exchange 
rates, interest rates and underlying equity prices.	

		  A1	 Foreign currency exchange rate risk :	

			�   The Company’s foreign currency risk arises from its foreign currency transactions and foreign currency borrowings. 
The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the income statement and equity, 
where any transaction references more than one currency or where assets/liabilities are denominated in a currency 
other than the functional currency of the company.

			�   The overall objective of the foreign currency risk management is to minimize the short term currency impact on its 
revenue and cash-flow in order to improve the predictability of the financial performance.	

			�   The major foreign currency exposures for the Company are denominated in USD. Additionally, there are transactions 
which are entered into in other currencies and are not significant in relation to the total volume of the foreign 
currency exposures. The Company hedges some trade receivables and future cash flows upto a maximum of 6 
months forward based on historical trends, budgets and monthly sales estimates.	

			   The following table sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure:	 (` in Lakhs)
As at 31 March 2023 US Dollars Others* Total
Assets :
Trade and other receivables  10,075.61  1,787.16  11,862.77 
Total  10,075.61  1,787.16  11,862.77 
Liabilities :
Trade and other payables  3,805.96  -    3,805.96 
Total  3,805.96  -    3,805.96 
Net Balance (Assets - Liabilities)  6,269.65  1,787.16  8,056.81 

(` in Lakhs)
As at 31 March 2023 US Dollars Others* Total
Assets :
           Cash and cash equivalents  -    -    -   
           Trade and other receivables  9,666.22  1,971.24  11,637.46 
Total  9,666.22  1,971.24  11,637.46 
Liabilities :
Trade and other payables  1,773.54  -    1,773.54 
Total  1,773.54  -    1,773.54 
Net Balance (Assets - Liabilities)  7,892.68  1,971.24  9,863.92 

			   *Others mainly includes currencies namely Euro and Japanese Yen.	

			   Foreign currency sensitivity 
			�   The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD rates to the functional 

currency of entity, with all other variables held constant. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for 
all other currencies is not material. The impact on the Company’s profit after tax is due to changes in the fair value of 
monetary assets and liabilities.

Particulars Changes in 
USD rate

Effect on 
profit and loss

As at 31 March 2023 +2% 93.83
-2% (93.83)

As at 31 March 2022 +2% 118.12
-2% (118.12)
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		  A2	 Interest rate risk :
			�   Interest rate risk refers to the possibility that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of changes in market interest rate. The Company is exposed to fluctuations in interest rates in respect of term 
loan carrying a floating rate of interest. In respect of term loan, the Company has outstanding borrowing of ` 3123.56 
lakhs as at 31 March, 2023 (As at 31 March 2022: ` 5624.86 lakhs ) The following table demostrates the sensitivity to 
a reasonable possible change on interest rates on that postion of borrowing afffected. with all other variables held 
constant, the Company’s profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate of borrowing as follows:

Particulars Effect on Profit before tax
Year ended 

31 March 2023
Year ended 

31 March 2022
Increase by 50 basis points  (15.62)  (28.12)
Decrease by 50 basis points  15.62  28.12 

		  B	 Credit Risk :	
			�   Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer 

contract, leading to financial loss. The credit risk arises principally from its operating activities (primarily trade 
receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other 
financial instruments.	

			�   The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of 
trade receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at reporting date is from trade receivables amounting to ` 
87.30 Lakhs (March 31, 2022: 78.06 Lakhs). The movement in allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables 
during the year was as follows: 

Allowance for Impairment As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Opening Balance  78.06  112.69 
Add: Impairment Loss (reversed) / recognised (Net)  9.24  (34.63)
Less: Impairment Loss Recognised  -    -   
Closing Balance  87.30  78.06 

			�   Receivable from the customer of the Company more than 10 percent of the Company’s total trade receivables as at 31 
March 2023 is Nil (March 31, 2022 one customer – ` 2,585.60 Lakhs). Refer note 12 for ageing of trade receivables.

		  C	 Liquidity Risk :	

			�   Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with 
its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The objective of liquidity risk 
management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The 
Company generates cash flows from operations to meet its financial obligations, maintains adequate liquid assets 
in the form of cash & cash equivalents and has undrawn short term line of credits from banks to ensure necessary 
liquidity.	

			   Contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities are as below:	

As at 31 March 2023 Due in Year 0 to 1 Due in Year 1 to 2 Due in Year 2 to 5 Due after Year 5 Total
Borrowings  2,500.00  623.56  -    -    3,123.56 
Lease Liabilities  14.69  7.84  8.54  -    31.07 
Trade payables  9,380.00  -    -    -    9,380.00 
Other financial 
Liabilities

 3,134.35  -    -    -    3,134.35 

Total  15,029.04  631.40  8.54  -    15,668.98 

As at 31 March 2022 Due in Year 0 to 1 Due in Year 1 to 2 Due in Year 2 to 5 Due after Year 5 Total
Borrowings  2,933.72  2,500.00  624.86  -    6,058.58 
Lease Liabilities  159.61  14.69  16.38  -    190.68 
Trade payables  8,310.56  -    -    -    8,310.56 
Other financial 
Liabilities

 2,163.89  -    -    -    2,163.89 

Total  13,567.78  2,514.69  641.24  -    16,723.71 

	 (iv)	 Capital Management	
		�  The capital structure of the Company consists of equity and debt. The Company’s objective for capital management is to 

maintain the capital structure which will support the Company’s strategy to maximize shareholder’s value, safeguarding 
the business continuity and help in supporting the growth of the Company.	

		�  The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt (total debt less cash and bank balance) divided by 
total capital plus net debt.	

		  Gearing Ratio	

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Total borrowings (refer note 18)  3,123.56  6,058.58 
Less: Cash & Bank Balances (refer note 13)  349.92  66.69 
Net Debt (A)  2,773.64  5,991.89 
Total Equity (B)  129,198.04  110,716.00 
Total Equity & Net Debt (C = A+B)  131,971.68  116,707.89 
Gearing Ratio (D=A/C) 2.10% 5.13%

39	 Related party transactions	
	 (a)	 List of related parties and relationship	
		  Key Management Personnel (KMP):	
		  Mr. Sudhir Vaid, Chairman & Managing Director	 Mr. Amitabh Thakore, Independent Director

		  Mr. Ankur Vaid, Joint Managing Director & CEO	 Mrs. Bharti Khanna, Independent Director

		  Mr. Utpal Sheth, Non-executive Director	 Mr. Anil Katyal, Independent Director	

		�  Mr. Amit Varma, Non-executive Director	 Mr. Rajeev Agrawal, Independent Director (Upto 30 May 2022 

		  Mr. Rajiv Ambrish Agarwal, Non-executive Director	 Mr. Arvind Agarwal, Independent Director (W.e.f 24 May 2022)

		  Mr. Ravi Kapoor, Non-executive Director	 Mr. Jayaram Easwaran, Independent Director (W.e.f. 14 June 2022)

		  Mr. Lalit Sethi, Chief Financial Officer 	 Mr. Mandayam Chakravarthy Sriraman, Independent

		  (W.e.f. 14 March 2022)			   Director (W.e.f. 14 June 2022)

		  Mr. Prakash Sajnani, 

		  AVP - Finance & Company Secretary							     

		  Relative of Key Management Personnel:	
		  Mrs. Manju Vaid					    Mrs. Megha Vaid	

		  Col. S. K. Vaid					     Mrs. Sonal Kumra	

		  Enterprises controlled by / under significantly influenced by Directors and/or their relatives:	
		  Sudman Consultants LLP			   Ravi Kapoor & Associates	

		  Joint Venture:	
		  Concord Biotech Japan K.K.	
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023	 Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023	
(` in Lakhs, except per share data) (` in Lakhs, except per share data)

40	 Segment reporting	
	� The chief operational decision maker monitors the operating results of its Business segment separately for the purpose of 

making decision about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or 
loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. Operating segment have been identified on the 
basis of nature of products and other quantitative criteria specified in the Ind AS 108.	

	� Bulk Drug business is identified as single operating segment for the purpose of making decision on allocation of resources and 
assessing its performance.	

	 Geographical segment	
	� Geographical segment is considered based on sales within India and outside India. In outside India, company separately 

disclosed sales to America and Others.

Particulars Year Ended 
31 March 2023

Year Ended 
31 March 2022

i)	 Segment Revenue
	 Revenue from Operations
	 (a)	 Within India  43,213.41  33,919.67 
	 (b)	 Outside India
		  (i)	 America  14,725.14  13,145.04 
		  (ii)	 Others  27,378.27  24,228.63 
	 Total Revenue from Operations  85,316.82  71,293.34 
ii)	 Non Current operating assets [*]:
	 (a)	 Within India  77,329.68  67,737.50 
	 (b)	 Outside India  -    -   
		  (i)	 America  -    -   
		  (ii)	 Others  -    -   
	 (c)	 Unallocable  66.52  66.52 
	 Total Non Current operating assets  77,396.20  67,804.02 

	 [*] Other than Financial Assets	

	 Information about major customers:	
	� Revenue from major export and domestic customers is Nil (Previous year Nil  Lakhs). Revenue from other individual customer is 

less than 10% of total revenue.	

41	 Research & Development	
	� The Company’s facility is approved for Research & Development by Department of Science & Industrial Research (DSIR). The 

company has incurred expenditure of revenue nature on Research & Development, details of which are as under:

Particulars Year Ended 
31 March 2023

Year Ended 
31 March 2022

Cost of Materials Consumed  610.04  381.19 
Salaries & Wages        1,046.42  955.51 
Power & Fuel  66.18  76.61 
Depreciation  182.98  183.59 
Others  1,053.28  987.75 
Total  2,958.90  2,584.65 

42	 Disclosure in respect of Micro and Small Enterprises:

Particulars Year Ended 
31 March 2023

Year Ended 
31 March 2022

(i)	� Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to each supplier at the end 
of each accounting year (but within due date as per the MSMED Act)

	 Principal amount due to micro and small enterprise  1,594.47  832.12 
	 Interest due on above  43.04  34.25 
(ii)	� Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium 

Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along-with the amount of the payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day during the period.

- -

(iii)	� Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid 
but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding interest specified under 
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006.

- -

(iv)	 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. 107.80 64.76
(v)	� Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the 

interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises.
- -

	� Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of 
information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.	

43	 Disclosure requirement as per Schedule III	
	 (i)	 The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the 

Company for holding any Benami property.	

	 (ii)	 The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory 
period.	

	 (iii)	 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.	

	 (iv)	 The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any 
guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.	

	 (v)	 The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the 
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) 
or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

	 (vi)	 The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or 
any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

	 (vii)	 The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 
2013) or consortium thereof or other lender in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India.

	 (viii)	 The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) during the year.

	 (ix)	 The Company doesn’t have any co-owned properties or the properties (including properties for which the lease agreement 
executed and disclosed as ‘Right-of-Use Assets’ in restated consolidated financial information) title deed of which are held 
by the others.

	 (x)	 The Company has not granted any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related 
parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person.

	 (xi)	 The Company has used the borrowings from the banks for its intended purpose during the financial year.

	 (xii)	 The Company did not have any transaction with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or 
Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the current and previous financial year.	
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Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023	 Notes to the Standalone Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023	
(` in Lakhs, except per share data) (` in Lakhs, except per share data)

	 (xiii)	 Ratio Analysis	

Name Numerator Denominator Year Ended 31 
March 2023

Year Ended 31 
March 2022

% 
Variance

Reason

(a)	� Current Ratio
	 (in times)

Total current assets Total current 
liabilities

 3.82  4.17 -8.30% NA

(b)	� Debt-Equity 
Ratio  (in 
times)

Debt consists of 
borrowings

Total equity  0.02  0.05 -55.82% Debt reduced as term loan 
quarterly instalments are 
paid and increase in other 
equity

(c)	� Debt Service 
Coverage 
Ratio (DSCR) 
(in times)

Earning for Debt 
Service = Net 
Profit after taxes 
+ Depreciation 
and Amortisation 
expenses + 
Interest 

"Debt service = 
Interest and lease 
payments + 
Principal 
repayments"

 10.25  7.26 41.23% DSCR Increased due to 
Increase in profitability due 
to increase in revenue from 
Operation which includes 
Incentives

(d)	� Return on 
Equity Ratio/ 
Return on 
Networth 
Ratio (in %)

Profit for the year Average total 
equity

19.85% 16.95% 17.11% NA

(e)	� Inventory 
turnover 
ratio (in 
times)

Cost of goods sold Average inventory  0.88  0.94 -5.96% NA

(f )	� Trade 
Receivables 
turnover 
ratio

	 (in times)

Revenue from 
operations

Average trade 
receivables

 3.28  3.46 -5.06% NA

(g)	� Trade 
payables 
turnover 
ratio

	 (in times)

Purchases of 
materials and  & 
purchase of stock-
in-trade

Average trade 
payables

 2.21  3.15 -29.92% Purchases reduced 
compared to the previous 
year financial year

(h)	� Net capital 
turnover 
ratio (in 
times) less 
Total current 
liabilities)

Revenue from 
operations

Average working 
capital (i.e. Total 
current assets 
less Total current 
liabilities)

 1.59  1.48 7.11% NA

(i)	� Net profit 
ratio (in %)

Profit for the year Revenue from 
operations

27.91% 25.05% 11.43% NA

(j)	� Return on 
Capital 
employed (in 
%)

Profit before tax 
and finance costs 
(excl. Interest 
expense on lease 
liabilities)

Capital employed = 
Tangible Net worth 
+ Total Borrowings 
+ Deferred tax 
liabilities

24.09% 20.78% 15.89% NA

(k)	� Return on 
investment 
(in %)

Income generated 
from invested 
funds

Average invested 
funds in treasury 
investments

4.41% 6.16% -28.40% Negative impact is 
pertaining to Capital 
Expenditure at New Facility

44	 Other Notes:	
	� The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company 

towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment had released draft rules for the Code on Social 
Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under consideration by the Ministry. 
The Company will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are notified. The Company will give appropriate 
impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the 
financial impact are published.

45	 Interest in Joint Venture
	� The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 1 July 2023, proposed a final equity dividend of ` 6.83 per equity share of ` 1 

each fully paid up for the financial year 2022-23.	

46	� Previous period figures have been re-grouped/ re-classified wherever necessary, to confirm to current period’s classification in 
order to comply with the requirements of the amended Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 effective from April 1, 2021.

	 For and on behalf of board of directors of
	 Concord Biotech Limited			 
	 CIN:U24230GJ1984PLC007440			 

	 Sudhir Vaid	 Ankur Vaid 	
	 Chairman & Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director & CEO
	 DIN: 00055967	 DIN: 01857225 		

	 Lalit Sethi	 Prakash Sajnani 	
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Asst. Vice President -  
		  Finance & Company Secretary
	 Place:  Ahmedabad			 
	 Date: 1st July, 2023
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To The Members of Concord Biotech Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial 
statements of Concord Biotech Limited (”the Parent”) and 
the share of profit in its joint venture, which comprise the 
Consolidated Balance Sheet as at March 31, 2023, and the 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other 
Comprehensive Income), the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement 
and the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the 
year then ended, and a summary of significant accounting 
policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid consolidated 
financial statements give the information required by the 
Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”) in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the Indian 
Accounting Standards prescribed under section 133 of the Act 
read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 
2015, as amended (‘Ind AS’), and other accounting principles 
generally accepted in India, of the consolidated state of affairs 
of the Parent and its joint venture as at March 31, 2023, and their 
consolidated profit, their consolidated total comprehensive 
income, their consolidated cash flows and their consolidated 
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) 
specified under section 143 (10) of the Act. Our responsibilities 
under those Standards are further described in the Auditor’s 
Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial 
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the 
Parent and its joint venture in accordance with the Code of 
Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India 
(ICAI) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant 
to our audit of the consolidated financial statements under the 
provisions of the Act and the Rules made thereunder, and we 
have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
these requirements and the ICAI’s Code of Ethics. We believe that 
the audit evidence obtained by us is sufficient and appropriate 
to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s 
Report Thereon
•	� The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the 

other information. The other information comprises the 
information included in the Directors’ report, but does not 
include the consolidated financial statements, standalone 
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

•	� Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does 
not cover the other information and we do not express any 
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

•	� In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial 
statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information, compare with the financial statements of 
the joint venture furnished to us by the management, to 
the extent it relates to this entity and consider whether 
the other information is materially inconsistent with the 
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge 
obtained during the course of our audit or otherwise 
appears to be materially misstated. Other information so 
far as it relates to the joint venture, is traced from their 
unaudited financial statements furnished to us by the 
management.

•	� If, based on the work we have performed on the other 
information that we obtained prior to the date of this 
auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material 
misstatement of this other information, we are required to 
report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with 
Governance for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Parent’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters 
stated in section 134(5) of the Act with respect to the preparation 
of these consolidated financial statements that give a true and 
fair view of the consolidated financial position, consolidated 
financial performance including other comprehensive income, 
consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of 
the Parent and its joint venture in accordance with the Ind AS 
and other accounting principles generally accepted in India. The 
respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the 
Parent and its joint venture are responsible for maintenance of 
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions 
of the Act for safeguarding the assets of the Parent and its 
joint venture and for preventing and detecting frauds and 
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate 
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that 
are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation 
and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, 
that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the 
preparation and presentation of the financial statements that 
give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, which have been used for the 
purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements 
by the Directors of the Parent, as aforesaid.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Board of 
directors of the Parent and its joint venture are responsible for 
assessing the ability of the respective entities to continue as a 
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going 
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless 
the respective Board of Directors either intends to liquidate their 
respective entities or to cease operations, or has no realistic 
alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors of the Parent and its joint venture are also 
responsible for overseeing the financial reporting process of the 
Company and of its joint venture.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of the Consolidated 
Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether 
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from 
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to 
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable 
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that 
an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will always detect a 
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise 
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or 
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence 
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these 
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise 
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism 
throughout the audit. We also:

•	� Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the 
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud 
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive 
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The 
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting 
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as 
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

•	� Obtain an understanding of internal financial control 
relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures 
that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 
143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing 
our opinion on whether the Parent has adequate internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements in place and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls.

•	� Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used 
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and 
related disclosures made by the management.

•	� Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of 
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the 
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty 
exists related to events or conditions that may cast 
significant doubt on the ability of the Parent and its joint 
venture to continue as a going concern. If we conclude 
that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw 
attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in 
the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures 
are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are 
based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our 
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may 
cause the Parent and its joint venture to cease to continue 
as a going concern.

•	� Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content 
of the consolidated financial statements, including the 
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and 
events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

•	� Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding 
the financial information of the Parent and its joint 
venture to express an opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, 
supervision and performance of the audit of the financial 

statements of such entities or business activities included in 
the consolidated financial statements of which we are the 
independent auditors. We remain solely responsible for our 
audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the 
consolidated financial statements that, individually or in 
aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a 
reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial 
statements may be influenced. We consider quantitative 
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of 
our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and 
(ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the 
consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the 
Parent of which we are the independent auditors regarding, 
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the 
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant 
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a 
statement that we have complied with relevant ethical 
requirements regarding independence, and to communicate 
with them all relationships and other matters that may 
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where 
applicable, related safeguards.

Other Matters
(a)	� The consolidated financial statements include the share 

of net profit of ` 195.93 lacs for the year ended March 
31, 2023, as considered in the consolidated financial 
statements, in respect of a joint venture, whose financial 
statements have not been audited by us. These financial 
statements are unaudited and have been furnished to us 
by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated 
financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts 
and disclosures included in respect of this joint venture, is 
based solely on such unaudited financial statements. In our 
opinion and according to the information and explanations 
given to us by the Management, these financial statements 
are not material.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements above and 
our report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements below, 
is not modified in respect of the above matter with respect to the 
financial statements certified by the Management.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.	� As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit 

we report, to the extent applicable that:

	 a)	 We have sought and obtained all the information and 
explanations which to the best of our knowledge and 
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit of 
the aforesaid consolidated financial statements.

	 b)	 In our opinion, proper books of account as required 
by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid 
consolidated financial statements have been kept so 
far as it appears from our examination of those books 
and returns.

	 c)	 The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated 
Statement of Profit and Loss including Other 
Comprehensive Income, the Consolidated Cash 
Flow Statement and the Consolidated Statement 

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
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of Changes in Equity dealt with by this Report are 
in agreement with the relevant books of account 
maintained for the purpose of preparation of the 
consolidated financial statements.

	 d)	 In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial 
statements comply with the Ind AS specified under 
Section 133 of the Act.

	 e)	 On the basis of the written representations received 
from the directors of the Parent as on March 31, 
2023 taken on record by the Board of Directors of 
the Company, none of the directors of the Parent 
is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being 
appointed as a director in terms of Section 164 (2) of 
the Act.

	 f )	 With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements and the operating effectiveness of such 
controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure A” 
which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Parent 
to whom internal financial controls is applicable. 
Our report expresses an unmodified opinion on the 
adequacy and operating effectiveness of internal 
financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements of the Parent.

	 g)	 With respect to the other matters to be included in the 
Auditor’s Report in accordance with the requirements 
of section 197(16) of the Act, as amended.

		  In our opinion and to the best of our information 
and according to the explanations given to us, the 
remuneration paid by the Parent to its directors during 
the year is in accordance with the provisions of section 
197 of the Act.

	 h)	 With respect to the other matters to be included 
in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule 11 
of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, 
as amended in our opinion and to the best of our 
information and according to the explanations given 
to us:

		  i)	 The consolidated financial statements disclose 
the impact of pending litigations on the 
consolidated financial position of the Parent and 
its joint venture.

		  ii)	 The Parent and its joint venture did not have 
any long-term contracts including derivative 
contracts for which there were any material 
foreseeable losses.

		  iii)	 There were no amounts which were required 
to be transferred to the Investor Education and 
Protection Fund by the Parent.

		  iv)	 (a)	� The Management of the Parent which is 
a company incorporated in India, whose 
financial statements have been audited 
under the Act, have represented to us 
that, to the best of their knowledge and 
belief, as disclosed in the note 43 to the 
consolidated financial statements, no 
funds have been advanced or loaned or 

invested (either from borrowed funds or 
share premium or any other sources or 
kind of funds) by the Parent to or in any 
other person(s) or entity(ies), including 
foreign entities (“Intermediaries”), with the 
understanding, whether recorded in writing 
or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, 
directly or indirectly lend or invest in other 
persons or entities identified in any manner 
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Parent 
(“Ultimate Beneficiaries”) or provide any 
guarantee, security or the like on behalf of 
the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

			   (b)	� The Management of the Parent which is 
a company incorporated in India, whose 
financial statements have been audited 
under the Act, have represented to us that, 
to the best of their knowledge and belief, as 
disclosed in the note 43 to the consolidated 
financial statements, no funds have been 
received by the Parent from any person(s) 
or entity(ies), including foreign entities 
(“Funding Parties”), with the understanding, 
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, 
that the Parent shall, directly or indirectly, 
lend or invest in other persons or entities 
identified in any manner whatsoever by or 
on behalf of the Funding Party (“Ultimate 
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, 
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate 
Beneficiaries.

			   (c)	� Based on the audit procedures performed 
that have been considered reasonable and 
appropriate in the circumstances, nothing 
has come to our notice that has caused us 
to believe that the representations under 
sub-clause (i) and (ii) of Rule 11(e), as 
provided under (a) and (b) above, contain 
any material misstatement.

		  v)	� The final dividend proposed in the previous year, 
declared and paid by the Parent during the year 
is in accordance with section 123 of the Act, as 
applicable.

			�   As stated in note 47 to the consolidated financial 
statements, the Board of Directors of the Parent, 
have proposed final dividend for the year which 
is subject to the approval of the members of the 
Parent at the ensuing Annual General Meeting. 
Such dividend proposed is in accordance with 
section 123 of the Act, as applicable.

		  vi)	� Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies (Accounts) 
Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account 
using accounting software which has a feature 
of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is 
applicable w.e.f. April 1, 2023 to the Parent, 
and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of 
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is 
not applicable for the financial year ended March 
31, 2023.

2.	� With respect to the matters specified in Clause (xxi) of paragraph 3 and paragraph 4 of the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 
2020 (“the Order”) issued by the Central Government in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, according to the information and 
explanations given to us, and based on the audit report under section 143 issued by us, we report that Order is applicable 
only to the Parent and not to any other company included in the consolidated financial statements. We have not reported any 
qualification or adverse remark in the Order report of the Parent.

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117365W)

Hardik Sutaria
Partner

Place: Ahmedabad	 (Membership No. 116642)
Date: July 01, 2023	 UDIN: 23116642BGWGDA5030
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Report on the Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements under Clause (i) of Sub-
section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated Ind AS financial 
statements of the Company as of and for the year ended March 
31, 2023, we have audited the internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements of Concord 
Biotech Limited (hereinafter referred to as “Parent”) being the 
only company to which requirements of the Act are applicable, 
as of that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Board of Directors of the Parent, is responsible for 
establishing and maintaining internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements based on 
the internal control with reference to consolidated financial 
statements criteria established by the Company considering the 
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance 
Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial 
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants 
of India (“the ICAI”). These responsibilities include the design, 
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial 
controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly 
and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence 
to the Parent’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the 
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy 
and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely 
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under 
the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditor’s Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Parent’s 
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our 
audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal 
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note”) 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India and 
the Standards on Auditing, prescribed under Section 143(10) of 
the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of 
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial 
statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that 
we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the 
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate 
internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements was established and maintained and if such 
controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit 
evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls 
with reference to consolidated financial statements and their 
operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls 
with reference to consolidated financial statements included 
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements, assessing the 
risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating 
the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based 
on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the 
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of 
material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due 
to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained, is 
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion 
on the Parent’s internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements
A company’s internal financial control with reference to 
consolidated financial statements is a process designed to 
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial 
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external 
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting 
principles. A company’s internal financial control with reference 
to consolidated financial statements includes those policies and 
procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, 
in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions 
and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide 
reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary 
to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance 
with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts 
and expenditures of the company are being made only in 
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of 
the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding 
prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, 
or disposition of the company’s assets that could have a material 
effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with 
reference to consolidated financial statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls 
with reference to consolidated financial statements, including 
the possibility of collusion or improper management override 
of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may 
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation 

of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated 
financial statements to future periods are subject to the risk 
that the internal financial control with reference to consolidated 
financial statements may become inadequate because of 
changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the 
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion
In our opinion to the best of our information and according 
to the explanations given to us, the Parent, has, in all material 

respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to 
consolidated financial statements and such internal financial 
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were 
operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal 
control with reference to consolidated financial statements 
criteria established by the Company considering the essential 
components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on 
Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting 
issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

ANNEXURE “A” TO THE INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(Referred to in paragraph (f ) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even date)

For Deloitte Haskins and Sells
Chartered Accountants

(Firm’s Registration No. 117365W)

Hardik Sutaria
Partner

Place: Ahmedabad	 (Membership No. 116642)
Date: July 01, 2023	 UDIN: 23116642BGWGDA5030
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Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March 2023

 (` in Lakhs, except per share data) 
 Particulars  Notes As at  

31 March 2023
As at 

31 March 2022
Assets
I.	 Non-current assets

(a)	 Property, plant and equipment 5 (A)  59,252.26  56,803.05 
(b) 	 Capital work-in-progress 5 (B)  17,269.71  7,415.52 
(c) 	 Intangible assets 6  19.77  357.70 
(d) 	 Right-of use assets 7  25.99  136.84 
(e)	 Financial assets
	 (i)	 Investments 8  12.46  25.56 
	 (ii)	 Others 9  1,019.51  249.56 
(f )	 Other non-current assets 10  761.95  2,663.94 
(g)	 Non-Current tax assets (Net) 20 (c)  266.52  360.45 
Total non-current assets (A)  78,628.17  68,012.62 

II.	 Current assets 
(a)	 Inventories 11  21,231.47  19,511.79 
(b) 	 Financial assets
 	 (i)	 Investments 8  13,693.01  7,347.33 
	 (ii)	 Trade receivables 12  27,375.76  23,217.42 
	 (iii)	 Cash and cash equivalents 13 (a)  349.92  66.69 
	 (iv) 	 Other bank balances 13 (b)  3,994.77  8,826.48 
	 (v) 	 Others 14  3,659.90  2,198.22 
(c)	 Other current assets 15  2,465.18  2,098.76 
Total current assets (B)  72,770.01  63,266.69 
TOTAL ASSETS  (A) + (B)  1,51,398.18  1,31,279.31 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 
(a)	 Equity share capital 16  1,046.16  951.06 
(b)	 Other equity 17  1,27,954.09  1,09,371.22 
Total equity (A)  1,29,000.25  1,10,322.28 
LIABILITIES 
I.	 Non-current liabilities
	 (a)	 Financial liabilities
		  (i)	 Borrowings 18  623.56  3,124.86 
		  (ii) 	 Lease liabilities 7  16.38  31.07 
	 (b)	 Provisions 19  229.66  187.41 
	 (c)	 Deferred tax liabilities (net) 20 (b)  2,343.90  2,097.08 
	 Total non-current liabilities (B)  3,213.50  5,440.42 
II.	 Current liabilities	
	 (a)	 Financial liabilities
		  (i)	 Borrowings 18  2,500.00  2,933.72 
		  (ii)	 Lease liabilities 7  14.69  159.61 
		  (iii)	 Trade payables 21
	            		 Due to micro and small enterprise  1,702.27  896.88 
	           		  Due to other than micro and small enterprise  7,677.73  7,413.68 
		  (iv)	 Others 22  3,134.35  2,163.89 
	 (b)	 Provisions 19  2,747.57  174.77 
	 (c)	 Other current liabilities 23  507.95  1,774.06 
	 (d)	 Liabilities for Current tax 20 (c)  899.87  -   
	 Total current liabilities (C)  19,184.43  15,516.61 
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES  (A) + (B) + (C)  1,51,398.18  1,31,279.31 
See accompanying notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements 1 to 48

In terms of our report attached	 For and on behalf of board of directors of
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells	 Concord Biotech Limited			 
Chartered Accountants	 CIN:U24230GJ1984PLC007440			 

Hardik Sutaria	 Sudhir Vaid	 Ankur Vaid 	
Partner	 Chairman & Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director & CEO
	 DIN: 00055967	 DIN: 01857225 		

	 Lalit Sethi	 Prakash Sajnani 	
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Asst. Vice President -  
		  Finance & Company Secretary
Place:  Ahmedabad	 Place:  Ahmedabad			 
Date: 1st July, 2023	 Date: 1st July, 2023			 

In terms of our report attached	 For and on behalf of board of directors of
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells	 Concord Biotech Limited			 
Chartered Accountants	 CIN:U24230GJ1984PLC007440			 

Hardik Sutaria	 Sudhir Vaid	 Ankur Vaid 	
Partner	 Chairman & Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director & CEO
	 DIN: 00055967	 DIN: 01857225 		

	 Lalit Sethi	 Prakash Sajnani 	
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Asst. Vice President -  
		  Finance & Company Secretary
Place:  Ahmedabad	 Place:  Ahmedabad			 
Date: 1st July, 2023	 Date: 1st July, 2023			 

Consolidated Statement of Profit and loss for the year ended 31 March 2023

 (` in Lakhs, except per share data) 

 Particulars  Notes  Year Ended  
31 March 2023 

 Year Ended  
31 March 2022 

Income
Revenue from operations 24  85,316.82  71,293.35 
Other income 25  3,530.93  2,341.65 
Total Income  88,847.75  73,635.00 
Expenses
Cost of materials consumed 26  16,707.15  15,725.74 
Purchases of stock-in-trade  2,876.87  3,073.34 
Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade 27  (1,563.20)  (2,398.01)
Employee benefits expense 28  11,027.85  9,569.45 
Finance costs 29  451.03  548.36 
Depreciation and amortization expense 30  5,403.24  5,005.08 
Other expenses 31  21,939.40  17,995.33 
Total Expenses  56,842.34  49,519.29 
PROFIT BEFORE TAX AND SHARE OF PROFIT / (LOSS) OF JOINT VENTURE  32,005.41  24,115.71 
Share of Profit / (loss) of Joint venture accounted using Equity method (Refer note 8 (a) (i))  195.93  (363.77)
Profit before tax  32,201.34  23,751.94 
Tax expenses
Current tax 20 (a)  7,953.00  5,849.00 
Deferred tax 20 (b)  238.16  370.53 
Short / (excess) provision for tax of earlier years  1.61  39.40 
Total tax expenses  8,192.77  6,258.93 
Profit for the year  24,008.57  17,493.01 
Other Comprehensive Income / (loss)
Items that will not be reclassified to the statement of Profit or Loss
	 Re-measurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plans  34.41  (74.57)
	 Income tax relating to re-measurement gain/ (loss) on defined benefit plans  (8.66)  18.77 
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME / (LOSS)  FOR THE YEAR  25.75  (55.80)

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE YEAR  24,034.32  17,437.21 
Profit for the year attributable to:
	 Owners of the Company  24,008.57  17,493.01 

 24,008.57  17,493.01 
Total Other Comprehensive Income / (Expense) for the year attributable to:
	 Owners of the Company  25.75  (55.80)

 25.75  (55.80)
Total Comprehensive Income for the year attributable to:
	 Owners of the Company  24,034.32  17,437.21 

 24,034.32  17,437.21 
Earnings per share (Nominal value per equity share of ` 1 each)
Basic and diluted (Refer note 32)  22.95  16.72 
See accompanying notes forming part of the Standalone Financial Statements 1 to 48
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2023

(` in Lakhs, except per share data)

A.	 EQUITY SHARE CAPITAL

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Opening balance 951.06 951.06 
Changes during the year 95.10 - 
Closing Balance 1,046.16 951.06 

B.	 OTHER EQUITY

Particulars Reserves and Surplus Total Other 
EquityTotal Other 

Equity
General 
Reserve

Securities 
Premium 

Balance as at 1 April, 2021 87,772.10 2,921.79 8,292.20 98,986.09
Profit for the year 17,493.01 - - 17,493.01
Other comprehensive Income (Net of tax) (55.80) - - (55.80)
Total Comprehensive Income 17,437.21 - - 17,437.21
Dividends* (7,052.08) - - (7,052.08)
Balance as at March 31, 2022 98,157.23 2,921.79 8,292.20 1,09,371.22
Profit for the year 24,008.57 - - 24,008.57
Other comprehensive Income (Net of tax) 25.75 - - 25.75
Total Comprehensive Income 24,034.32 - - 24,034.32
Transfer to equity share capital on account of Bonus - - (95.10) (95.10)
Dividends** (5,356.35) - - (5,356.35)
Balance as at March 31, 2023 1,16,835.20 2,921.79 8,197.10 1,27,954.09

	 * Final Dividend of ` 74.15 per equity share for the FY 2020-21.	

	 **Final Dividend of ` 5.12 per equity share for the FY 2021-22.	

In terms of our report attached	 For and on behalf of board of directors of
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells	 Concord Biotech Limited			 
Chartered Accountants	 CIN:U24230GJ1984PLC007440			 

Hardik Sutaria	 Sudhir Vaid	 Ankur Vaid 	
Partner	 Chairman & Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director & CEO
	 DIN: 00055967	 DIN: 01857225 		

	 Lalit Sethi	 Prakash Sajnani 	
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Asst. Vice President -  
		  Finance & Company Secretary
Place:  Ahmedabad	 Place:  Ahmedabad			 
Date: 1st July, 2023	 Date: 1st July, 2023			 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

(` in Lakhs, except per share data)

Particulars Year Ended 
31 March 2023

Year Ended 
31 March 2022

(A)	 CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

	 Profit before tax as per Statement of Profit and Loss 32,201.34 23,751.94

	 Adjustment for:
	 Share of Loss/(profit) from Joint Venture (195.93) 363.77

	 Depreciation and amortization 5,403.24 5,005.08

	 Interest Income (444.08) (478.74)

	 Finance Cost 451.03 548.36

	 Bad Debt Written Off - -

	 (Reversal) / Provision of doubtful debts, net 9.24 (34.63)

	 Export receivables and other receivables written off - 645.44

	 Excess provision no longer required written back (175.09) -

	 Provision for doubtful debts -

	 Net loss on sale of Property, plant & equipment 9.40 3.37

	 Net gain on sale of investments (299.36) (509.38)

	 Net gain on financial assets measured at fair value through profit or loss (72.33) (13.58)

	 Net unrealised foreign exchange (gain) / loss 195.35 (183.58)

	 Loss Due to Fire 3.05 -

	 Operating Profit before Working Capital Changes 36,856.39 29,031.34
	 Working Capital Changes:
	 (Increase)/Decrease in Inventories (1,722.73) (4,151.18)

	 (Increase)/Decrease in trade receivables (4,309.71) (5,276.94)

	 (Increase)/Decrease in other financial assets (1,546.67) (642.76)

	 (Increase)/Decrease in other assets (366.43) 3,059.67

	 Increase/(Decrease) in provisions 2,649.46 11.71

	 Increase/(Decrease) in trade payables 988.06 3,653.54

	 Increase/(Decrease) in other financial liabilities 149.66 139.70

	 Increase/(Decrease) in other liabilities (1,070.19) 1,000.74

(5,228.55) (2,205.52)
	 Cash generated from operations 31,627.84 26,825.82

	 Direct Taxes paid (Net of Income Tax refund) (7,027.66) (6,078.49)

	 Net cash generated from operating activities 24,600.18 20,747.33
(B)	 CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 

	 Purchase of Property, plant & equipment and Intangible Assets (14,508.48) (15,550.41)

	 Proceeds from disposal of Property, plant & equipment 2.53 5.58

	 Purchase of Current Investments (64,309.92) (48,895.00)

	 Proceeds from sale of Current Investment 58,349.04 56,143.62

	 Interest received 558.49 413.96

	 Net Cashflow from Deposits (Other bank Balances) 4,113.33 (3,296.41)

	 Net cash used in investing activities (15,795.01) (11,178.66)
(C)	 CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

	 Repayment of Long Term borrowings (2,500.00) (2,500.14)

	 Proceeds of Long Term borrowings - -

	 Dividend Paid (5,356.35) (7,052.08)

	 Interest Paid (377.63) (531.45)

	 Interest Subsidy Received 323.56 308.90

	 Repayment towards Lease Liabilities (177.80) (165.43)

	 Net cash used in financing activities (8,521.94) (10,016.40)
NET INCREASE / (DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (A)+(B)+(C) 283.23 (447.73)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 66.69 514.42
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF THE YEAR 349.92 66.69
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 2023

(` in Lakhs, except per share data)

Reconciliation of Cash and cash equivalents with Financial Information

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Cash and Cash Equivalents:
Cash on hand 1.63 1.15
Balance with Banks 348.29 65.54
Cash and cash equivalents as per Balance Sheet (Refer Note 13) 349.92 66.69

Reconciliation between opening and closing balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities as at March 31, 2023

Particulars As at 
1 April 2022

Cash flows Non-cash 
Movement

As at 
31 March 2023

Borrowings (including current maturities) (Note - 18) 6,058.58 (2,933.72) (1.30) 3,123.56
Lease Liability (Note - 7) 190.68 (177.80) 18.19 31.07
Interest accrued but not paid (Note - 22) 36.32 (377.63) 367.28 25.97
Total liabilities from financing activities 6,285.58 (3,489.15) 384.17 3,180.60

Reconciliation between opening and closing balance sheet for liabilities arising from financing activities as at March 31, 2022

Particulars As at 
1 April 2022

Cash flows Non-cash 
Movement

As at 
31 March 2023

Borrowings (including current maturities) (Note - 18)  8,634.92  (2,576.34)  -    6,058.58 
Lease Liability (Note - 7)  293.45  (165.43)  62.66  190.68 
Interest accrued but not paid (Note - 22)  50.79  (531.45)  516.98  36.32 
Total liabilities from financing activities  8,979.16  (3,273.22)  579.64  6,285.58 

The cash flow statement has been prepared under the indirect method as set out in Ind AS 7 statement of cash flows.	

See accompanying notes forming part of the Consolidated financial statements

In terms of our report attached	 For and on behalf of board of directors of
For Deloitte Haskins & Sells	 Concord Biotech Limited			 
Chartered Accountants	 CIN:U24230GJ1984PLC007440			 

Hardik Sutaria	 Sudhir Vaid	 Ankur Vaid 	
Partner	 Chairman & Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director & CEO
	 DIN: 00055967	 DIN: 01857225 		

	 Lalit Sethi	 Prakash Sajnani 	
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Asst. Vice President -  
		  Finance & Company Secretary
Place:  Ahmedabad	 Place:  Ahmedabad			 
Date: 1st July, 2023	 Date: 1st July, 2023			 

1.	 Corporate Information
	 Concord Biotech Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the 

Company” or “Concord”), and the joint venture (‘JV’) is 
engaged in research and development, manufacturing, 
marketing and selling of pharmaceutical products. The 
Company is a public company incorporated and domiciled 
in India. The Company’s API manufacturing facilities are 
located at Dholka and Limbasi, and its formulations facility 
at Valthera in the state of Gujarat, India.

2.	 Statement of Compliance
	 The Consolidated financial statements comply in all 

material aspects with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) 
notified under Section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (the 
Act) [Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015] 
and other relevant provisions of the Act.

	 These Consolidated financial statements have been 
prepared for the Company as a going concern on the 
basis of relevant Ind AS that are effective at the Company’s 
annual reporting date, March 31, 2023. These Consolidated 
financial statements were authorised for issuance by the 
Company’s Board of Directors on 1 July 2023.

3.	� Basis of Preparation of Consolidated financial 
statements

	 3.1.	 Functional and Presentation Currency
		  The Consolidated financial statements are presented 

in Indian Rupees, the currency of the primary 
economic environment in which the Company 
operates. All the amounts are rounded to the nearest 
rupee lakhs.

	 3.2.	 Basis of Measurement
		  The Consolidated financial statements have been 

prepared on the historical cost basis (i.e on accrual 
basis), except for the following items:

		  •	� Certain financial assets and liabilities (including 
derivative instruments) are measured at fair 
value; and

		  •	� Net defined benefit assets/(liability) are 
measured at fair value of plan assets, less present 
value of defined benefit obligations.

	 3.3.	 Measurement of Fair Value
		  Fair value is the price that would be received to sell 

an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly 
transaction between market participants at the 
measurement date, regardless of whether that price 
is directly observable or estimated using another 
valuation technique. In estimating the fair value of an 
asset or a liability, the Company takes into account 
the characteristics of the asset or liability if the market 
participants would take those characteristics into 
account when pricing the asset or liability at the 
measurement date. Fair value measurement and/
or disclosure purposes in the financial statements 
is determined on such a basis except for leasing 
transactions that are within the scope of Ind AS 116 
Leases, and measurements that have some similarities 

to fair value but are not fair value, such as net 
realisable value in Ind AS 2 Inventories.

		  In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair 
value measurements are categorized into Level 
1, 2 or 3 based on the degree to which the inputs 
to the fair value measurements are observable 
and the significance of the inputs to the fair value 
measurement in its entirety, which are described as 
follows:

		  •	� Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in 
active markets for identical assets or liabilities 
that the entity can access at the measurement 
date;

		  •	� Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted- 
prices included in Level 1, that are observable for 
the asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; 
and

		  •	� Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the 
asset or liability.

	 3.4.	 Basis of Consolidation
		  The Company’s interests in equity accounted investees 

comprise interests in a joint venture.

		  A joint venture is an arrangement in which the 
Company has joint control and has rights to the net 
assets of the arrangement, rather than rights to its 
assets and obligations for its liabilities.

		  Interests in a joint venture is accounted for using the 
equity method. It is initially recognised at cost which 
includes transaction costs. Subsequent to initial 
recognition, the Consolidated Financial statements 
include the company’s share of profit or loss and other 
comprehensive income (OCI) of equity - accounted 
investees until the date on which significant influence 
or joint control ceases.

		  The carrying amount of such the Investment is tested 
for impairment at each reporting date.

	 3.5.	 Use of estimates
		�  The preparation of the Consolidated financial 

statements in conformity with Ind AS requires 
Management to make estimates, judgements and 
assumptions. These estimates, judgements and 
assumptions affect the application of accounting 
policies and the reported amounts of assets and 
liabilities, the disclosures of contingent assets and 
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and 
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during 
the period. Accounting estimates could change from 
period to period. Actual results could differ from 
those estimates. Appropriate changes in estimates are 
made as management becomes aware of changes in 
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes 
in estimates are reflected in the financial statements 
in the period in which changes are made and, if 
material, their effects are disclosed in the notes to the 
Consolidated financial statements.



124 125ANNUAL REPORT
2022-23

CONCORD BIOTECH LIMITEDPOISED FOR

GROWTH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023 Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023

		�  Key source of estimation of uncertainty at the date 
of Consolidated financial statements, which may 
cause material adjustment to the carrying amount of 
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, is in 
respect of:

		  •	� Useful lives of property, plant and equipment 
(Refer note no. 4.1)

		  •	 Leases-Company as a lessee (Refer note no. 4.5)

		  •	 Valuation of Inventories (Refer note no. 4.6)

		  •	 Employee benefits (refer note no.4.8)

		  •	� Provisions & Contingent Liabilities (Refer note no. 
4.9)

		  •	� Valuation of deferred tax assets (Refer note no. 
4.12)

	 3.6.	 Current versus non-current classification:
		�  All assets and liabilities have been classified as current 

or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating 
cycle and other criteria set out in the Schedule III 
to the Companies Act, 2013. Based on the nature 
of products and the time between the acquisition 
of assets for processing and their realisation in cash 
and cash equivalents, the Company has ascertained 
its operating cycle as 12 months for the purpose 
of current – noncurrent classification of assets and 
liabilities.

		�  All assets and liabilities are classified into current and 
non-current.

		  Assets
		�  An asset is classified as current when it satisfies any of 

the following criteria:

		  -	� it is expected to be realized in, or is intended for 
sale or consumption in, the Company’s normal 
operating cycle;

		  -	 it is held for the purpose of being traded;

		  -	� it is expected to be realized within 12 months 
after the reporting date; or

		  -	� it is cash or cash equivalent unless it is restricted 
from being exchanged or used to settle a liability 
for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

		�  Current assets include the current portion of non-
current assets / non-current financial assets. All other 
assets are classified as non-current.

		  Liabilities
		�  A liability is classified as current when it satisfies any of 

the following criteria:

		  -	� it is expected to be settled in the Company’s 
normal operating cycle;

		  -	� it is held primarily for the purpose of being 
traded;

		  -	� it is expected to be settled within 12 months 
after the reporting date; or

		  -	� the Company does not have any unconditional 
right to defer settlement of the liability for at 
least 12 months after the reporting date.

		�  Current liabilities include the current portion of non-
current liabilities / non-current financial liabilities. All 
other liabilities are classified as non-current.

		�  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-
current assets and liabilities.

		  Operating cycle
		�  Operating cycle is the time between the acquisition 

of assets for processing and their realization in cash or 
cash equivalent. The operating cycle of the Company 
is less than 12 months.

4.	 Significant accounting policies
	 4.1.	 Property, Plant and Equipment
		�  Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost 

of acquisition or construction less accumulated 
depreciation and any accumulated impairment losses. 
The cost of Plant, Property & Equipment comprises 
of its purchase price, non-refundable taxes & levies, 
freight and other incidental expenses related to the 
acquisition and installation of the respective assets. 
Borrowing cost attributable to financing of acquisition 
or construction of the qualifying Property, Plant and 
Equipment is capitalized to respective assets when the 
time taken to put the assets to use is substantial.

		�  When major items of property, plant and equipment 
have different useful lives, they are accounted for as 
separate items of property, plant and equipment. 
The cost of replacement of any property, plant and 
equipment is recognized in the carrying amount of 
the item if it is probable that the future economic 
benefit associated with the item will flow to the 
Company and its cost can be measured reliably.

		�  Capital work-in-progress comprises cost of Property, 
Plant and Equipment that are not yet installed and 
ready for their intended use at the Balance sheet date.

		�  Pre-operative expenditure comprising of 
revenue expenses incurred in connection with 
project implementation during the period up to 
commencement of commercial production are treated 
as part of the project costs and are capitalized. Such 
expenses are capitalized only if the project to which 
they relate, involve substantial expansion of capacity 
or upgradation.

		�  An item of property, plant and equipment is 
derecognized upon disposal or when no future 
economic benefits are expected to arise from its 
use. Difference between the sales proceeds and the 
carrying amount of the asset is recognized in the 
consolidated statement of profit and loss.

		�  Freehold land is carried at historical cost and not 
depreciated. Depreciation on Property, Plant and 
Equipment is provided using straight line method 
(except vehicles which have been depreciated 
based on written down value method) based as 

per the useful life prescribed in Schedule II to the 
Companies Act, 2013. Depreciation on assets added 
/ disposed off during the year is provided on pro-
rata basis with reference to month of addition / 
disposal. The estimated useful lives, residual values 
and depreciation method are reviewed at each 
financial year-end and changes in estimates, if any are 
accounted for on a prospective basis.

	 4.2.	 Intangible Assets
		�  Intangible assets acquired separately are measured 

at cost of acquisition. Following initial recognition, 
intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated 
amortization and impairment losses, if any.

		�  Intangible assets are amortized over the estimated 
useful life of three years which reflects the manner 
in which the economic benefit is expected to be 
generated. The estimated useful life of amortizable 
intangibles is reviewed at the end of each reporting 
period and change in estimates if any are accounted 
for on a prospective basis.

	 4.3.	 Foreign currency Transactions and Translation
		�  Foreign currency transactions are recorded at 

exchange rates prevailing on the date of the 
transaction. The net gain or loss on account of 
exchange differences arising on settlement of foreign 
currency transactions are recognized as income or 
expense of the period in which they arise. Monetary 
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currency 
as at the balance sheet date are translated at the 
closing rate. The resultant exchange rate differences 
are recognized in the consolidated statement of 
profit and loss. Non-monetary assets and liabilities 
are carried at the rates prevailing on the date of 
transaction.

	 4.4.	 Financial Instruments
	 4.4.1.Financial assets
		  (a)	 Classification of financial assets:
			�   The Company and its joint venture classifies its 

financial assets in the following measurement 
categories:

			   •	� those to be measured subsequently at fair 
value (either through other comprehensive 
income or through profit or loss) and

			   •	� those measured at amortised cost. The 
classification depends on the Company 
and its joint venture’s business model for 
managing the financial assets and the 
contractual cash flow characteristics of the 
financial assets.

		  (b)	 Initial measurement:
			�   Financial assets are initially measured at 

fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of 
financial assets (other than financial assets at 
fair value through profit or loss) are added to 
or deducted from the fair value of the financial 

assets, as appropriate, on initial recognition. 
Transaction costs that are directly attributable 
to the acquisition or issue of financial assets at 
fair value through profit or loss are recognised 
immediately in consolidated statement of profit 
and loss.

	 (c)	 Subsequent measurement:
		  •	 Amortised Cost

			�   Assets that are held for collection of contractual 
cash flows where those cash flows represent 
solely payments of principal and interest are 
measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a 
debt investment that is subsequently measured 
at amortised cost and is not part of a hedging 
relationship is recognised in profit or loss when 
the asset is derecognised or impaired. Interest 
income from these financial assets is included in 
finance income using the effective interest rate 
method.

		  •	� Fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVOCI):

			�   Assets that are held for collection of contractual 
cash flows and for selling the financial assets, 
where the assets’ cash flows represent solely 
payments of principal and interest, are measured 
at fair value through other comprehensive 
income (FVOCI). Movements in the carrying 
amount are taken through OCI, except for the 
recognition of impairment gains or losses, 
interest revenue and foreign exchange gains 
and losses which are recognised in consolidated 
statement of profit and loss. When the financial 
asset is derecognised, the cumulative gain or 
loss previously recognised in OCI is reclassified 
from equity to profit or loss and recognised 
in other gains / (losses). Interest income from 
these financial assets is included in other income 
using the effective interest rate method. Foreign 
exchange gains and losses are presented in other 
gains and losses and impairment expenses in 
other expenses.

		  •	 Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

			�   Assets that do not meet the criteria for amortised 
cost or FVOCI are measured at fair value 
through profit or loss. A gain or loss on a debt 
investment that is subsequently measured at 
fair value through profit or loss and is not part 
of a hedging relationship is recognised in profit 
or loss and presented net in the Consolidated 
statement of profit and loss within other gains / 
(losses) in the period in which it arises. Interest 
income from these financial assets is included in 
other income.

	 (d)	 Derecognition of financial assets:
		�  A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a 

financial asset or part of a group of similar financial 
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assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e. removed from 
the Company’s balance sheet) when:

		  •	� The rights to receive cash flows from the asset 
have expired, or

		  •	� The Company has transferred its rights to receive 
cash flows from the asset

			�   When the company and its joint venture has 
transferred an asset, the company and its joint 
venture evaluates whether it has transferred 
substantially all risks and rewards of ownership 
of the financial asset. In such cases, the financial 
asset is derecognised. Where the company and 
its joint venture has not transferred substantially 
all risks and rewards of ownership of the financial 
asset, the financial asset is not derecognised.

			�   Where the company and its joint venture 
has neither transferred a financial asset nor 
retains substantially all risks and rewards of 
ownership of financial asset, the financial 
asset is derecognised if the company and its 
joint venture has not retained control over the 
financial asset. Where the company and its joint 
venture retains control of the financial asset, the 
asset is continued to be recognised to the extent 
of continuing involvement in the financial asset.

		  (e)	 Income recognition:
			�   Dividend is accounted when the right to receive 

payment is established.

		  (f)	 Cash and cash equivalents:
			�   Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash on 

hand, short demand deposits and highly liquid 
investments that are readily convertible into 
known amounts of cash and which are subject 
to an insignificant risk of change in value. Short 
term means investments with original maturities 
/ holding period of three months or less from 
the date of investments. Bank overdrafts that 
are repayable on demand and form an integral 
part of the company and its joint venture’s cash 
management are included as a component of 
cash and cash equivalent for the purpose of 
statement of cash flow.

		  (g)	 Investments:
			�   Investments in mutual funds are primarily held 

for the company and its joint venture’s temporary 
cash requirements and can be readily convertible 
in cash. These investments are initially recorded 
at fair value and classified as fair value through 
profit or loss.

		  (h)	 Trade receivables:
			�   Trade receivables are amounts due from 

customers for sale of goods or services 
performed in the ordinary course of business. 
Trade receivables are initially recognized at its 
transaction price which is considered to be its 
fair value and are classified as current assets as 

it is expected to be received within the normal 
operating cycle of the business.

	 4.4.2.Financial liabilities
		�  The Company and its joint venture’s financial liabilities 

include trade payables, loans and borrowing and 
derivative financial instruments.

		  (a)	 Classification:
			�   All the Company and its joint venture’s financial 

liabilities, except for financial liabilities at fair 
value through profit or loss, are measured at 
amortized cost.

		  (b)	 Initial measurement:
			�   Financial liabilities are initially measured at 

fair value. Transaction costs that are directly 
attributable to the acquisition or issue of 
financial liabilities (other than financial liabilities 
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to 
or deducted from the fair value of the financial 
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. 
Transaction costs that are directly attributable to 
the acquisition or issue of financial liabilities at 
fair value through profit or loss are recognised 
immediately in profit or loss.

		  (c)	 Subsequent measurement:
			�   Financial liabilities are subsequently measured at 

amortised cost using the Effective Interest Rate 
Method. The Effective Interest Rate Method is a 
method of calculating the amortised cost of a 
financial liability and of allocating interest expense 
over the relevant period. The effective interest 
rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated 
future cash payments (including transaction costs 
and other premiums or discounts) through the 
expected life of the financial liability, or (where 
appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying 
amount on initial recognition.

		  (d)	 Derecognition of financial liabilities:
			�   The Company and its joint venture derecognises 

financial liabilities when, and only when, the 
Company’s obligations are discharged, cancelled 
or waived off or have expired. An exchange 
between the company and its joint venture and 
the lender of debt instruments with substantially 
different terms is accounted for as an 
extinguishment of the original financial liability 
and the recognition of a new financial liability. 
The difference between the carrying amount 
of the financial liability derecognised and the 
consideration paid and payable is recognised in 
profit or loss.

		  (e)	 Borrowings:
			�   Borrowings are initially recorded at fair value and 

subsequently measured at amortized costs using 
effective interest rate method. Transaction costs 
are charged to Consolidated statement of profit 
and loss as financial expenses over the term of 
borrowing.

		  (f)	 Trade payables:
			�   Trade payables are amounts due to vendors for 

purchase of goods or services acquired in the 
ordinary course of business and are classified as 
current liabilities to the extent it is expected to 
be paid within the normal operating cycle of the 
business

	 4.4.3.Derivative Financial Instruments:
		�  The company and its joint venture enters into derivative 

financial instruments to manage its foreign exchange 
rate risk. Derivatives are initially recognized at fair value 
at the date a derivative contract is entered into and are 
subsequently re-measured to their fair value at the end 
of each reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is 
recognized in profit or loss immediately.

	 4.5	 Leases – Company as lessee

		�  At inception of a contract, the company and its joint 
venture assesses whether a contract is or contains 
a lease. A contract is or contains a lease if the 
contract conveys the right to control the use of an 
identified assets for a period of time in exchange for 
consideration. To assess whether a contract conveys 
the right to control the use of an identified asset 
the company and its joint venture assesses whether 
contract involves the use of an identified asset, the 
company and its joint venture has a right to obtain 
substantially all of the economic benefits from the 
use of the asset throughout the period of use and the 
company and its joint venture has the right to direct 
the use of the asset.

		�  At the inception date, right-of-use asset is recognised 
at cost which includes present value of lease payments 
adjusted for any payments made on or before the 
commencement of lease and initial direct cost, if any. 
It is subsequently measured at cost less accumulated 
depreciation, accumulated impairment losses, if any 
and adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease 
liability. Right-of-use asset is depreciated using the 
straight-line method from the commencement date 
over the earlier of useful life of the asset or the lease 
term. When the company and its joint venture has 
purchase option available under lease and cost of 
right-ofuse assets reflects that purchase option will 
be exercised, right-of-use asset is depreciated over 
the useful life of underlying asset. Right-of-use assets 
are tested for impairment whenever there is any 
indication that their carrying amounts may not be 
recoverable. Impairment loss, if any, is recognised in 
the Consolidated statement of profit and loss.

		�  At the inception date, lease liability is recognised 
at present value of lease payments that are not 
made at the commencement of lease. Lease liability 
is subsequently measured by adjusting carrying 
amount to reflect interest, lease payments and 
remeasurement, if any.

		�  Lease payments are discounted using the incremental 
borrowing rate or interest rate implicit in the lease, if 
the rate can be determined.

		�  The company and its joint venture has elected not to 
apply requirements of Ind AS 116 to leases that has 
a term of 12 months or less and leases for which the 
underlying asset is of low value. Lease payments of 
such lease are recognised as an expense on straight 
line basis over the lease term.

	 4.6.	 Inventories
		�  Inventories are carried at the lower of cost and net 

realizable value.

		�  The cost incurred in bringing the inventory to their 
existing location and conditions are determined as 
follows:

		  (a)	� Raw Material and Packing Material - Purchase 
cost of materials on FIFO basis.

		  (b)	� Finished Goods (Manufactured) and work in 
progress - Cost of purchase, conversion cost, and 
other costs attributable to inventories.

		  (c)	 Trading goods - Purchase cost on FIFO basis.

		�  The cost of purchase of inventories comprise the 
purchase price, import duties and other taxes (other 
than those subsequently recovered by the company 
and its joint venture from taxing authorities), 
and transport, handling and other costs directly 
attributable to the bringing the inventory to their 
existing location and conditions. Trade discounts, 
rebates and other similar items are deducted in 
determining the costs of purchase.

		�  Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in 
the ordinary course of business less the estimated 
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary 
to make the sales.

	 4.7.	 Impairment of Assets
	 4.7.1.Financial Assets

		�  At each balance sheet date, the company and its joint 
venture assesses whether a financial asset carried 
at cost is to be impaired. Ind AS 109 – “Financial 
Instruments” requires expected credit losses to be 
measured through loss allowance. The company 
and its joint venture measures the loss allowance 
for financial assets at an amount equal to lifetime 
expected credit losses if the credit risk on that 
financial asset has increased significantly since initial 
recognition. If the credit risk on a financial asset has 
not increased significantly since initial recognition, 
the company and its joint venture measures the loss 
allowance for financial assets at an amount equal to 
12-month expected credit losses.

	 4.7.2. Non-financial Assets
		�  Property, plant and equipment and intangible 

assets with finite life are evaluated for recoverability 
whenever there is any indication that their carrying 
amounts may not be recoverable. If any such 
indication exists, the recoverable amount (i.e. higher 
of the fair value less cost to sell and the value-in-use) 
is determined on an individual asset basis unless the 
asset does not generate cash flows that are largely 
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independent of those from other assets. In such cases, 
the recoverable amount is determined for the cash 
generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs.

		�  If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is 
estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the 
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its 
recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized 
in the profit or loss to such extent. When an 
impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying 
amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is 
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable 
amount, such that the increase in the carrying amount 
does not exceed the carrying amount that would 
have been determined had no impairment loss been 
recognised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) 
in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is 
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

	 4.8.	 Employee Benefits
	 4.8.1.Short term employee benefits
		�  Short term benefits payable before twelve months 

after the end of the reporting period in which the 
employees have rendered service are accounted as 
expense in profit and loss account.

	 4.8.2.Long term employment benefits
		  Defined Contribution Plans
		�  Contributions to defined contribution plans 

(provident fund and other social security schemes) 
are recognized as expense when employees have 
rendered services entitling them to such benefits.

		  Defined Benefit Plans
		�  The company and its joint venture’s net obligation 

in respect of an approved gratuity plan, which is a 
defined benefit plan, is calculated using the projected 
unit credit method and the same is carried out by 
qualified actuary. The current service cost and net 
interest on the net defined benefit liability (asset) is 
recognized in the Consolidated statement of profit 
and loss. Past service cost are immediately recognized 
in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss. 
Actuarial gains and losses net of deferred taxes arising 
from experience adjustment and changes in actuarial 
assumptions are recognized in other comprehensive 
income in the period in which they arise.

		  Compensated absences and earned leaves
		�  The company and its joint venture’s current 

policy permits eligible employees to accumulate 
compensated absences up to a prescribed limit 
and receive cash in lieu thereof in accordance with 
the terms of the policy. The company and its joint 
venture measures the expected cost of accumulating 
compensated absences as the additional amount that 
the company and its joint venture expects to pay as 
a result of unused entitlement that has accumulated 
as at the reporting date. The expected cost of these 
benefits is calculated using the projected unit credit 
method by qualified actuary every year. Actuarial 
gains and losses arising from experience adjustment 

and changes in actuarial assumptions are recognized 
in the Consolidated statement of profit and loss in the 
period in which they arise.

	 4.9.	� Contingent liabilities, contingent assets and 
provisions

		  (a)	 Contingent liabilities:
			�   A possible obligation that arises from past events 

and the existence of which will be confirmed 
only by the occurrence or nonoccurrence of 
one or more uncertain future events not wholly 
within the control of the enterprise are disclosed 
as Contingent liability and not provided for. 
Such liability is not disclosed if the possibility of 
outflow of resources is remote.

		  (b)	 Contingent assets:
			�   A contingent asset is a possible asset that arises 

from past events and whose existence will 
be confirmed only by the occurrence or non-
occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events not wholly within the control of the 
entity. Contingent assets are not recognised 
and disclosed only when an inflow of economic 
benefits is probable.

		  (c)	 Provisions:
			�   A provision is recognized when as a result of a 

past event, the company and its joint venture has 
a present obligation whether legal or constructive 
that can be estimated reliably, and it is probable 
that an outflow of economic benefits will be 
required to settle the obligation. If the obligation 
is expected to be settled more than 12 months 
after the end of reporting date or has no definite 
settlement date, the provision is recorded as non-
current liabilities after giving effect for time value 
of money, if material. Where discounting is used, 
the increase in the provision due to the passage of 
time is recognized as a finance cost.

	 4.10.	Government Grant
		�  The company and its joint venture recognises 

government grants at their fair value only when there 
is reasonable assurance that the conditions attached 
to them will be complied with, and the grants will be 
received.

		�  Government grants received in relation to assets are 
recognised directly to respective assets for which it 
is received. Government grants, which are revenue in 
nature are either recognised as income or deducted in 
reporting the related expense based on the terms of 
the grant, as applicable.

	 4.11.	Revenue recognition
		�  Revenue is measured based on the transaction price 

adjusted for discounts and rebates, which is specified 
in a contract with customer. Revenue are net of 
estimated returns and taxes collected from customers.

		�  Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point 
in time when control is transferred to the customer 

and it is probable that consideration will be collected. 
Control of goods is transferred upon the shipment of 
the goods to the customer or when goods is made 
available to the customer.

		�  The transaction price is documented on the sales 
invoice and payment is generally due as per agreed 
credit terms with customer.

		�  The consideration can be fixed or variable. Variable 
consideration is only recognised when it is highly 
probable that a significant reversal will not occur.

		�  Sales return is recognised and recorded based on 
historical experience, market conditions and provided 
for in the year of sale as reduction from revenue. The 
methodology and assumptions used to estimate 
returns are monitored and adjusted regularly in line 
with trade practices, historical trends, past experience 
and projected market conditions.

		�  Revenue from services are recognised as the related 
services are performed, the contractual performance 
obligations are satisfied and there is no uncertainty 
related to the collection of the said revenue.

		�  Profit share earned through a collaboration partners is 
recognised as the underlying sales are recorded by the 
collaboration partners.

		  Export entitlements
		�  Export entitlements are recognised as income when 

right to receive credit as per the terms of the scheme 
is established in respect of the exports made and 
where there is no significant uncertainty regarding the 
ultimate collection of the relevant export proceeds.

		  Interest Income
		�  Interest income is recognized using effective interest 

rate method.

		�  The ‘effective interest rate’ is the rate that exactly 
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts 
through the expected life of financial instrument to:

		  -	� The gross carrying amount of the financial assets; 
or

		  -	 The amortized cost of the financial liabilities

		�  In calculating interest income and expense, the 
effective interest rate is applied to the gross carrying 
amount of the asset (when the asset is not credit-
impaired) or to the amortised cost of the liability. 
However, for financial assets that have become credit-
impaired subsequent to initial recognition, interest 
income is calculated by applying the effective interest 
rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset. If the 
asset is no longer credit-impaired, then the calculation 
of interest income reverts to the gross basis.

	 4.12.	Income Taxes
		�  Income tax expense comprises current and deferred 

tax expense. Income tax expenses are recognized in 
statement of profit or loss, except when they relate to 
items recognized in other comprehensive income or 

directly in equity, in which case, income tax expenses 
are also recognized in other comprehensive income or 
directly in equity respectively.

		�  Current tax is the tax payable on the taxable profit 
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantively 
enacted by the end of reporting period by the 
governing taxation laws, and any adjustment to tax 
payable in respect of previous periods. Current income 
tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount 
expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation 
authorities. Management periodically evaluates 
positions taken in the tax returns with respect to 
situations in which applicable tax regulations are 
subject to interpretation and establishes provisions 
where appropriate.

		�  Deferred taxes arising from deductible and taxable 
temporary differences between the tax base of 
assets and liabilities and their carrying amount in the 
Consolidated financial statements are recognized 
using substantively enacted tax rates and laws 
expected to apply to taxable income in the years in 
which the temporary differences are expected to be 
received or settled.

		�  Deferred tax asset are recognized only to the extent 
that it is probable that future taxable profit will be 
available against which the deductible temporary 
differences can be utilized. The carrying amount of 
deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date 
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable 
that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow 
all or part of the deferred income tax assets to be 
utilized.

		�  Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when 
the company and its joint venture has a legally 
enforceable right to do the same.

	 4.13.	Earnings per share
		�  Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing 

profit or loss attributable to equity shareholders of 
the company and its joint venture by the weighted 
average number of equity shares outstanding during 
the period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting 
the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders 
and the weighted average number of ordinary shares 
outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential 
ordinary shares.

	 4.14.	Research and development
		�  Revenue expenditure on research and development 

activities is recognized as expense in the period in 
which it is incurred.

	 4.15.	Borrowing cost
		�  Borrowing costs directly attributable to the 

acquisition, construction or production of qualifying 
assets, which are assets that necessarily take a 
substantial period of time to get ready for their 
intended use or sale, are added to the cost of these 
assets, until such time as the assets are substantially 
ready for their intended use or sale.
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		�  All other borrowing costs are recognised in 
Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss in the 
period in which they are incurred.

	 4.16.	Segment Reporting
		�  Operating segments are reported in a manner 

consistent with the internal reporting provided to the 
chief operating decision maker (CODM). The CODM 
of the company and its joint venture is responsible 
for allocating resources and assessing performance of 
the operating segments and accordingly is identified 
as the Chief Operating Decision Maker (CODM). All 
operating segments’ operating results are reviewed 
regularly by the CODM to make decisions about 
resources to be allocated to the segments and assess 
their performance.

	 4.17.	Recent Accounting Pronouncements:
		�  On 31 March 2023, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs 

(MCA) has notified Companies (Indian Accounting 
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023. This notification 
has resulted into amendments in the following 
existing accounting standards which are applicable to 
company from 1 April 2023.

		  i.	� Ind AS 101 – First-time Adoption of Indian 
Accounting Standards

		  ii	 Ind AS 102 – Share-based Payment

		  iii	 Ind AS 103 – Business Combinations

		  iv	 Ind AS 107 – Financial Instruments Disclosures

		  v	 Ind AS 109 – Financial Instruments

		  vi	� Ind AS 115 – Revenue from Contracts with 
Customers

		  vii	 Ind AS 1 – Presentation of Financial Statements

		  viii	� Ind AS 8 - Accounting Policies, Changes in 
Accounting Estimates and Errors

		  ix	 Ind AS 12 – Income Taxes

		  x	 Ind AS 34 - Interim Financial Reporting

	 Application of above standards are not expected to 
have any significant impact on the company’s financial 
statements.
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		  (iii)	� Additions to Property, Plant & Equipment during the year include capital expenditure on Research & Development 
related activities amounting to ` 231.17 Lakhs (Previous Year ` 135.22 Lakhs). The details of the same are as 
under:	

Particulars Year Ended 
31 March 2023

Year Ended  
31 March 2022

 Factory Building  64.95  -   
 Plant & Machinery  13.98  2.19 
 Laboratory Equipment  106.84  130.25 
 Computer  9.31  1.26 
 Office Equipment  3.28  0.21 
 Furniture & Fixtures  32.81  1.31 
 Total  231.17  135.22 

		  (iv)	� Details of property, plant and equipments which are hypothecated/mortgaged as security for borrowings are 
disclosed under note 18 (i).	

		  (v)	� The amount of capital commitments is disclosed in Note 34.	

		  (vi)	� During the year ended 31 March 2021, the Company has capitalized Interest on borrowings aggregating to ` 548.09 
lakhs in connection with borrowings used for construction / acquistion of qualifying assets. Further, an amount of 
` 1430.90 lakhs towards capital subsidy, ` 331.09 lakhs towards interest subsidy and ` 229.45 lakhs towards re-
imbursement of stamp duty charges have been adjusted towards the cost of such assets capitalized during the year 
ended 31 March 2021.	

	 (B)	 Capital work in progress:

Particulars As at  
31 March 2023

As at  
31 March 2022

Capital Work-In-Progress  17,269.71  7,415.52 
Total  17,269.71  7,415.52 

		  (i)	 Capital work in progress ageing schedule:			 
Particulars Amount in CWIP for a period of Total

Less than 
1 year

1 to 2 
years

2 to 3 
years

More than 
3 years

Projects in Progress  13,549.87  3,325.38  394.46  -    17,269.71 
As at 31 March 2023  13,549.87  3,325.38  394.46  -    17,269.71 
Projects in Progress  7,021.06  394.46  -    -    7,415.52 
As at 31 March 2022  7,021.06  394.46  -    -    7,415.52 

6	 Intangible Assets
	 As at 31 March 2023

Particulars Software Technical 
Know-How

Total

Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2022  117.59  1,042.20  1,159.79 
Additions during the year  -    -    -   
Deductions during the year  -    -    -   
Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2023  117.59  1,042.20  1,159.79 
Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2022  97.55  704.53  802.08 
Amortisation for the year  13.89  324.05  337.94 
Deductions during the year  -    -    -   

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2023  111.44  1,028.58  1,140.02 
Carrying value as at 31 March 2023  6.15  13.62  19.77 

	 As at 31 March 2022

Particulars Software Technical 
Know-How

Total

Gross carrying amount as at 1 April 2021  102.91  1,001.31  1,104.22 
Additions during the year  14.68  40.89  55.56 
Deductions during the year  -    -    -   
Gross carrying amount as at 31 March 2022  117.59  1,042.20  1,159.78 
Accumulated depreciation as at 1 April 2021  82.06  380.48  462.54 
Amortisation for the year  15.49  324.05  339.54 
Deductions during the year  -    -    -   

Accumulated depreciation as at 31 March 2022  97.55  704.53  802.08 
Carrying value as at 31 March 2022  20.04  337.67  357.70 

7	 Right-of use assets

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Right-of use Assets (RoU) 25.99 136.84
Total 25.99 136.84

	 Lease Liabilities
Particulars As at 

31 March 2023
As at 

31 March 2022
Lease Liabilities-Current  14.69  159.61 
Lease Liabilities- Non Current  16.38  31.07 
Total  31.07  190.68 

	 A.	� The Company has taken Office building and other warehouse on lease. Disclosures as per Ind AS 116 - Leases are as 
follows:	

		�  The changes in the carrying value of ROU assets for the year ended on 31 March 2023 are as follows :	
Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Opening Balance  97.57  39.27  136.84 
Additions during the year  -    -    -   
Amortisation  (97.57)  (13.28)  (110.85)
Balance at the end of the year  0.00  25.99  25.99 

		  The changes in the carrying value of ROU assets for the year ended on 31 March 2022 are as follows :	
Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Opening Balance  195.13  20.20  215.33 
Additions during the year  -    31.29  31.29 
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year  -    -    -   
Amortisation  (97.56)  (12.22)  (109.78)
Balance at the end of the year  97.57  39.27  136.84 

		�  The aggregate amortisation expense on ROU assets is included under amortisation expense in the Statement of Profit and 
Loss.	

	 B.	 The movement in lease liabilities for the year ended on 31 March 2023 are as follows :	
Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Opening Balance  146.14  44.54  190.68 
Additions during the year  -    -    -   
Deletions/cancellation/modification during the year  -    -    -   

Finance cost accrued during the year  14.47  3.72  18.19 
Payment of lease labilities  (160.61)  (17.19)  (177.80)
Balance at the end of the year  0.00  31.07  31.07 



134 135ANNUAL REPORT
2022-23

CONCORD BIOTECH LIMITEDPOISED FOR

GROWTH

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(₹ in Lakhs, except per share data)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements for the year ended 31 March 2023
(₹ in Lakhs, except per share data)

		  The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as on 31 March 2023 is as under :	

Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Current - 14.69 14.69
Non Current - 16.38 16.38
Total - 31.07 31.07

		  The movement in lease liabilities for the year ended on 31 March 2022 are as follows :		
Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Opening Balance  269.55  23.90  293.45 
Additions during the year  -    31.29  31.29 
Deletions during the year  -    -    -   
Finance cost accrued during the year  26.69  4.68  31.37 
Payment of lease labilities  (150.10)  (15.33)  (165.43)
Balance at the end of the year  146.14  44.54  190.68 

		  The break-up of current and non-current lease liabilities as on 31 March 2022 is as under :	

Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Current  146.14  13.46  159.61 
Non Current  0.00  31.07  31.07 
Total  146.14  44.53  190.68 

	 C.	� The details of contractual maturities of lease liabilities as on 31 March 2023 on undiscounted basis are as 
follows:	

Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Less than one year  -    17.22  17.22 
One to five years  -    18.34  18.34 
Total  -    35.56  35.56 

		�  The details of contractual maturities of lease liabilities as on 31 March 2022 on undiscounted basis are as 
follows:	

Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Less than one year  160.61  17.19  177.80 
One to five years  -    35.56  35.56 
Total  160.61  52.75  213.36 

	 D.	� The Company does not face a significant liquidity risk with regard to its lease liabilities as the current assets are sufficient to 
meet the obligations related to lease liabilities as and when they fall due.	

	 E.	 The amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2023 are as follows:	

Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Amortisation expense of RoU (Refer Note 30)  97.57  13.28  110.85 
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Refer Note 29)  14.47  3.72  18.19 
Rent expense*  0.71  -    0.71 
Total  112.75  17.00  129.75 

		  *Rent expenses for short-term leases and leases of low value assets (Refer Note 31)	

		  The amount recognised in the statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 March 2022 are as follows:	

Particulars Office Building Warehouse Total
Amortisation expense of RoU (Refer Note 30)  97.56  12.22  109.78 
Interest expense on lease liabilities (Refer Note 29)  26.69  4.68  31.37 
Rent expense*  0.15  -    0.15 
Total  124.40  16.90  141.30 

		  *Rent expenses for short-term leases and leases of low value assets (Refer Note 31)	

8	 Investments	

Particulars No. of share / units 
as at 31 March 2023

No. of share / units 
as at 31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2023

As at  
31 March 2022

(a)	 Non-Current
	 (i)	 Unquoted equity instruments

In Joint Venture Company at cost:
Concord Biotech Japan K.K.
[CY. 200 Shares (PY. 200 Shares)]

200 200 66.52 66.52

Add: Share of (Loss) from Joint Venture  (197.79)  (393.72)
Net Investment / (Deferred Income)  (131.27)  (327.20)
Less: Deferred Income transferred to other 
current liability (Refer note 23)

 131.27  327.20 

Total Investment at cost Non current  -    -   
		�  Note: The net loss related to current year is 

mainly on account of unrealised profit of 
inventory lying with Concord Biotech Japan K.K.

		�  Reconciliation of closing balance of 
cumulative share of profit in Joint venture 
with Concord Biotech Japan K.K.:

		  Opening balance (a)  (393.72)  (29.95)
		  Share of Profit of current year (b)  166.55  81.11 
		�  Add/Less: Unrealised profit on closing stock and 

reversal of Unrealised profit on opening stock 
(net) (C)

 29.38  (444.88)

		�  Share of Profit/ (loss) of Joint venture as per 
equity method for the year end (d = b + c)

 195.93  (363.77)

		  Closing balance (e = a + d)  (197.79)  (393.72)
	 (ii)	� Investments in Mutual Funds measured at 

FVTPL
Aditya Birla Sun Life Credit Risk Fund Growth 
Regular (Formerly Known as Aditya Birla Sun Life 
Corporate Bond) Segregated Portfolio 1

 -    60,56,568  -    9.85 

Franklin India Short Term Income Plan - Retail 
Plan Segregated Portfolio 2

 13,340  17,876  12.46  15.71 

Franklin India Short Term Income Plan - Retail 
Plan Segregated Portfolio 3

 21,282  21,282  -    -   

Total Investments at FVTPL- Non Current  12.46  25.56 
Total Non-current Investments  12.46  25.56 
Aggregate carrying value of quoted investments  12.46  25.56 
Aggregate market value of quoted investments 12.46 25.56

(b)	 Current
	 (i)	� Investments in Mutual Funds measured at 

FVTPL
Edelweiss Arbitrage Fund - Regular Plan Growth  -    1,01,67,384  -    1,597.50 
Aditya Birla Sun Life Banking & PSU Debt Fund  1,56,941  -    500.00  -   
HDFC Banking & PSU Debt Fund  24,97,216  -    500.00  -   
Kotak Mahindra Banking & PSU Debt Fund  8,79,152  -    500.00  -   
SBI Banking & PSU Fund  18,018  -    500.00  -   
Aditya Birla Sun Life Overnight Fund  -    35,043  -    401.20 
Nippon India Overnight Fund  -    4,22,073  -    480.11 
Axis Strategic Bond Fund - Growth  11,61,353  11,61,353  270.88  259.15 
Franklin India Short Term Income Plan - Retail 
Plan

 1,292  1,822  63.89  85.87 

ICICI Prudential Saving Fund - Growth  2,96,506  2,96,506  1,365.65  1,292.76 
Kotak Low Duration Fund Standard Growth 
(Regular Plan)

 18,324  18,324  523.32  499.43 

Reliance Prime Debt Fund - Growth Plan - 
Growth Option

 5,36,413  5,36,413  268.53  256.24 

Nippon India Floting Rate Fund  17,71,457  -    700.00  -   
Aditya Birla Sun Life Liquid Fund  1,30,887  -    470.93  -   
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Particulars No. of share / units 
as at 31 March 2023

No. of share / units 
as at 31 March 2022

As at 
31 March 2023

As at  
31 March 2022

Axis Liquid Fund  13,312  -    330.69  -   
ICICI PrudentiaL Lquid Fund  2,93,760  -    971.33  -   
Nippon India Money Market Fund  4,036  -    141.78  -   
SBI Liquid Fund  38,677  -    1,352.18  -   
HDFC Low Duration Fund - Direct Growth  15,90,086  15,90,086  835.12  791.68 
HDFC Ultra Short Term Fund -Direct  42,31,052  42,31,052  554.52  525.19 
Trust Banking & PSU fund  50,000  50,000  544.19  528.02 
SBI Overnight Fund - Growth  -    18,398  630.18 
Aditya Birla Sun Life Short Term Fund  7,01,471  -    300.00  -   
Axis Short Term Fund  21,41,030  -    600.00  -   
ICICI Prudetial Short Term Fund  11,03,584  -    600.00  -   
Kotak Bond Fund Short Term Fund  12,57,245  -    600.00  -   
Nippon India Short Term Fund  12,60,923  -    600.00  -   
SBI Short Term Debt Fund  21,04,886  -    600.00  -   
Total Investments at FVTPL- Current  13,693.01  7,347.33 
Aggregate carrying value of quoted investments  13,693.01  7,347.33 
Aggregate market value of quoted investments  13,693.01  7,347.33 

9	 Other financial assets

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Non- current
Security deposits 132.81 102.18
Term deposits with maturity more than 12 months (Refer note i below) 796.57 78.20
Interest accrued but not due on deposits 22.74 3.87
Other receivables
Considered Good 67.39 65.31
Considered Doubtful 226.95 226.95
Less: Provision on other receivables (Refer note ii below) (226.95) (226.95)
Net other receivable 67.39 65.31
Total 1,019.51 249.56

	 Notes:	
	 (i)	� Out of total term deposits of ` 796.57 lakhs term deposits amounting to ` 16.57 lakhs ( as at 31 March 2022 ` 78.20 lakhs) 

are lodged as margin money against Bank Guarantees and other Commitments.	

	 (ii)	 Provision of ` 226.95 lakhs is made for incentive receivable under Market Access Initiative Scheme( MAI scheme).	

10	 Other non current assets	

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Capital advances 761.95 2,663.94
Total 761.95 2,663.94

11	 Inventories

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

(At lower of Cost and Net Realizable Value)
(a)	 Raw materials - Including Goods in transit (C.Y. Nil Lakhs, P.Y. 19.15) 8,042.87 8,080.81
(b)	 Work-in-progress 11,319.82 9,018.04
(c)	 Finished goods - Including Goods in transit (C.Y. 115.88 Lakhs , P.Y. 427.99 Lakhs) 548.49 1,027.07
(d)	 Fuel 78.91 72.74
(e)	 Stores & Spares 309.68 121.43
(f )	 Stock in Trade 931.70 1,191.70
Total 21,231.47 19,511.79

	 (i)	 Inventories are given as security for borrowings as disclosed under note 18(ii).	

	 (ii)	� Inventory write down are accounted, considering the nature of inventory, ageing and net realisable value ` 503.34 Lakhs 
(March, 2022 ` 141.43 Lakhs). The changes in write downs are recognised as an expense in the statement of Profit and 
loss.	

12	 Trade receivables

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Unsecured, Considered good 27,375.76 23,217.42
Trade receivables Credit impaired 87.30 78.06
Less:- Allowance for doubtful trade receivables 87.30 78.06
Total 27,375.76 23,217.42

	 (i)	 The Company’s exposure to credit and currency risk, and loss allowances are disclosed in Note 38.	

	 (ii)	 Includes receivables from related parties [refer note 39 (c) ].	

	 (iii)	 Trade Receivables are given as security for borrowings as disclosed under note 18(ii).	

	 (iv)	 Movements in the expected credit loss allowance:

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Opening balance 78.06 112.69
Add / (less) : Provision made / (reversed) during the year 9.24 (34.63)
Less: Provision used during the year - -
Closing balance 87.30 78.06

	 (v)	 Trade receivables Ageing Schedule:	

Particulars Not Due Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment Total
Less than  
6 months

6 months  
to 1 year

1 to 2  
years

2 to 3  
years

More than  
3 years

(i)	� Undisputed Trade receivables  
- considered good

 18,434.53  7,203.27  1,331.87  377.59  28.50  -    27,375.76 

(ii)	� Undisputed Trade Receivables
	 - credit impaired

 -    -    -    18.15  6.91  62.24  87.30 

As at 31 March 2023  18,434.53  7,203.27  1,331.87  395.74  35.41  62.24  27,463.06 
(i)	� Undisputed Trade receivables   

- considered good
 14,249.46  8,024.98  912.53  30.45  -    -    23,217.42 

(ii)	� Undisputed Trade Receivables   
- credit impaired

 -    -    -    5.81  5.15  67.10  78.06 

As at 31 March 2022  14,249.46  8,024.98  912.53  36.26  5.15  67.10  23,295.48 

8	 Investments	
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13	 Cash and Bank Balances

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

(a)	 Cash and cash equivalents
	 Cash on hand 1.63 1.15
	 Balance with Banks

	 In Current accounts 348.29 65.54
	 In Exchange Earners' Foreign Currency (EEFC) account - -
	 Total cash and cash equivalents 349.92 66.69
(b)	 Other bank balances

	 Term Deposits with Maturity more than 3 months but less than 12 months [Refer note below] 3,994.77 8,826.48
	 Total other bank balances 3,994.77 8,826.48

	 (i)	� Out of total term deposits of ` 3,994.77 Lakhs, Term deposits amounting to ` 936.77 Lakhs (P.Y. ` 101.48 Lakhs) are lodged 
as margin money against Bank Guarantees and other Commitments.	

14	 Other financials assets

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Current

Subsidy receivable [Refer Note (i) below] 124.37 1,819.25
Interest Accrued but not due on deposits 78.88 212.17
Derivative financial instruments 25.00 49.83
Insurance claims 73.89 38.28
Security Deposit 31.65 48.05
Product Linked Incentive Receivable [Refer Note (ii) below] 1,591.17 -
IPO expense reimbursement receivable [Refer Note (iii) below] 1,268.16 -
Other Receivables [Refer Note (iv) below] 466.78 30.64
Total 3,659.90 2,198.22

	 (i)	� Company is eligible to get various incentive namely – Capital subsidy, interest subsidy, power subsidy, employment 
generation incentive subsidy etc. from GSBTM (Gujarat State Biotechnology Mission) under Biotechnology Policy of Gujarat 
for establishing new API Plant at Limbasi. Company has received claims of subsidies on timely manner from GSBTM. The 
Company has received Capital subsidy pertianing for the claim of the GSBTM in FY 2022-2023. As at 31 March 2023, the 
Company has outstanding receivable on account of various subsidies as follows - Interest Subsidy ` 46.12 Lakhs for interest 
paid on term loan, Power Tariff Subsidy ` 65.62 Lakhs, Employment Generation Incentive ` 12.62 Lakhs (as at 31 March 
2022 Capital Subsidy ` 1430.90 lakhs, Interest Subsidy ` 140.20 lakhs for interest paid on term loan, Power Tariff Subsidy 
` 106.53 lakhs, Employment Generation Incentive ` 24.48 lakhs and Electricity Duty ` 117.14 lakhs)	

	 (ii)	� The Company is eligible for claiming benefits under the Production Linked Incentive [PLI] Scheme of the Government of 
India. Based on the Claims Submitted by PLI department, the Company has recognised the PLI Income.	

	 (iii)	� Expenses incurred in relation to IPO that will be recovered by the Company from the selling shareholder upon completion 
of IPO process as per offer agreement.	

	 (iv)	� Other receivable includes ` 461.72 lakhs of amount recoverable from customer towards bank guarantees invoked.

15	 Other current assets	

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Advance to Supplier 130.97 251.61
Balances with indirect tax authorities 1,398.35 736.20
Prepaid expenses 551.85 476.05
Returnable assets 71.16 -
Export Incentive Receivable 306.13 627.06
Advances to Employees 6.72 7.84
Total 2,465.18 2,098.76

16	 Equity Share Capital	

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Authorised
110,000,000 (Previous Year - 10,000,000) equity shares of ` 1/- each(as on 31 March, 2022 ` 10/-) 
(Refer note below)

1,100.00 1,000.00

1,100.00 1,000.00
Issued, Subscribed and fully paid-up
104,616,204 (Previous Period - 9,510,564 ) equity shares of ` 1/- (Previous Period ` 10/- ) each fully 
paid up [Refer Note (v) below]

1,046.16 951.06

1,046.16 951.06

	� The Authorized Share Capital of the Company was increased from ` 10,00,00,000 (consisting of 1,00,00,000 equity shares 
of face value of ` 10 each) to ` 11,00,00,000 (consisting of 11,00,00,000 equity shares of face value of ` 1 each) through an 
ordinary resolution passed by the Shareholders of the Company in Extra Ordinary General Meeting of Company held on 8 July 
2022.	

	 (i)	 Reconciliation of equity shares outstanding at the beginning and at the end of the reporting year:	

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Number of Shares ` in Lakhs Number of Shares ` in Lakhs

As at the beginning of the year 95,10,564 951.06 95,10,564 951.06
Add: Issued on account of Split off of shares during 
the period [refer Note (v) below]

8,55,95,076 - 

Add: Issued on account of Bonus shares during the 
period [refer Note (v) below]

95,10,564 95.10 - -

Outstanding at the end of the year 10,46,16,204 1,046.16 95,10,564 951.06

	 (ii)	 Terms/rights attached to equity shares with voting rights:	
		�  The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of ` 1 per share. Each holder of equity shares is entitled 

to one vote per share. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of the equity shares will be entitled to receive 
remaining assets of the Company, after distribution of all preferential amounts, if any. The dividend proposed by the Board 
of Directors is subject to the approval of the shareholders in the ensuring Annual General Meeting.

	 (iii)	 Details of shareholders holding more than 5% shares in the company:

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
No. of shares % Holding No. of shares % Holding

Equity Shares of ` 10 each fully paid
Mr. Sudhir Jairam Vaid 3,01,69,524 28.84% 27,42,684 28.84%
Helix Investment Holdings Pte Limited, Singapore 2,09,25,652 20.00% 19,02,332 20.00%
Mrs. Manju Sudhir Vaid 99,87,384 9.55% 9,07,944 9.55%
Nishtha Jhunjhunwal Disc Trust 83,99,732 8.03% 7,63,612 8.03%
Aryavir Jhunjhunwal Disc Trust 83,99,754 8.03% 7,63,614 8.03%
Aryaman Jhunjhunwal Disc Trust 83,99,754 8.03% 7,63,614 8.03%
M/s. Ontario Inc. 56,40,536 5.39% 5,12,776 5.39%

	 (iv)	 Shares held by Promoters & Promoters group at the end of the Year:

Particulars As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022 % of change 
during the 

year
No. of shares % of total 

Shares
No. of shares % of total 

Shares
Promoters
Mr. Sudhir Vaid  3,01,69,524 28.84%  27,42,684 28.84%  -   
Mr. Ankur Vaid  5,86,520 0.56%  53,320 0.56%  -   
Promoters Group
Mrs. Manju Sudhir Vaid  99,87,384 9.55%  9,07,944 9.55%  -   
Mrs. Megha Vaid  5,47,008 0.52%  49,728 0.52%  -   
Mrs. Sonal Kumra  73,920 0.07%  6,720 0.07%  -   
Sudman Consultants LLP  47,52,000 4.54%  4,32,000 4.54%  -   
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	 (v)	� Pursuant to the approval of the shareholders at the Extra Ordinary General Meeting of the Company held on 8 July 2022, 
each equity share of face value of ` 10/- per share was sub-divided into 10 equity shares of face value of ` 1/- per share 
and approved the issuance of 1 bonus shares of face value ` 1 each for every 10 existing fully paid-up equity share of 
face value ` 1 each and accordingly 95,10,564 bonus shares were issued and allotted on 20 July 2022 out of securities 
premium.	

17	 Other Equity

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Reserve and Surplus
Retained Earnings  1,16,835.20  98,157.23 
General Reserve  2,921.79  2,921.79 
Securities premium [Refer note 16(v)]  8,197.10  8,292.20 
Total  1,27,954.09  1,09,371.22 

	 Nature and purpose of reserves:

	 (i)	 General reserve:
		�  The general reserve is used from time to time to transfer profits from retained earnings for appropriation purposes. There 

is no policy of regular transfer. Items included under General Reserve shall not be reclassified back into the Statement of 
Profit & Loss .	

	 (ii)	 Retained Earnings:
		�  Retained Earnings are the profits that the Company has earned till date less any transfer to general reserve, dividends and 

other distributions to shareholder.	

	 (iii)	 Securities Premium:
		  This reserves represents Security Premium received at the time of issuance of Equity Shares.	

18	 Borrowings

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Non-current
Secured
Term Loan (Refer Note i below) 3,123.56 5,624.86
Less: Current maturities of term Loan (2,500.00) (2,500.00)
Total 623.56 3,124.86
Current borrowing
Secured
Cash Credit Facility (Refer Note ii below) - 433.72
Current maturities of long term liabilities 2,500.00 2,500.00
Total 2,500.00 2,933.72

	 (i)	� The Company has availed Term Loan from State Bank of India. Term Loan of ` 10,000 Lakhs (outstanding amounting as at 
31 March 2023 ` 3123.56 lakhs and 31 March 2022 ` 5624.86 lakhs) and is secured by first charge on Factory Land & 
Building and Plant & Machinery of Unit-III at Limbasi, Dist. Kheda, (Survey No. 666,667,668 and 84 at Village Malavada and 
Survey No. 94A,94B,119,120,126,135 and 136 at Ranasar ) and charge on the same has been created. Interest rate is 3 
months MCLR + 0.20% p.a and loan is repayable in 16 quarterly instalments of ` 625 Lakhs each starting from October, 
2020.

	 (ii)	� Short term Borrowings from banks are in nature of working capital facilities which are secured by first pari passu charge on 
entire current assets of the Company. Interest rate is MCLR + 0.05% and this borrowing is repayable on demand.	

	 (iii)	� The Company has Fund-based and Non-fund-based limits of Working Capital from Banks. For the said facility, the revised 
submissions made by the Company to its bankers based on closure of books of accounts at the respective year end, the 
revised quarterly returns or statements comprising stock statements, book debt statements, statements on ageing analysis 
of the debtors, and other stipulated financial information filed by the Company with such banks or financial institutions 
are in agreement with the unaudited books of account of the Company of the respective quarters and no material 
discrepancies have been observed.	

19	 Provisions

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Non-current
Provisions for compensated absences 229.66 187.41
Total 229.66 187.41
Current
Provision for Compensated Absences 147.85 81.32
Provision for Sales Return [Refer note 24(c) and i below] 2,542.05 -
Provision for Gratuity (Refer Note : 36) 57.67 93.45
Total 2,747.57 174.77

	 Note:	

	 (i)	 Provision for Sales Returns:
		�  One of the distributor based out at America has terminated exclusive distribution and supply agreement with effect from 

the date of 180 days from the letters for products supplied by the Company vide termination notice dated 5 August 2022 
and 14 December 2022. As per the Agreement, the Company is required to purchase the remaining unsold inventory based 
on mutual understanding between the Parties. Provision is made for inventory lying with distributor of all the terminated 
products. Out of total sales return provision Goods amounting to ` 2163.70 lakhs which are expected to be received are 
primarily in nature of expired or near expiry products. The Company has also made additional provision for expected sales 
return on the basis of evaluation of the contractual terms with other customers, trade practices with customers, market 
conditions and historical experience.

		�  Further, the Company has also made additional provision on the basis of evaluation of the contractual terms with the 
customers, trade practices with customers, market conditions and historical experience.

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Opening Balance
Add: Provision made during the period 3,843.54 -
Less: Provision utilised during the period (1,301.49) -
Closing Balance 2,542.05 -

20	 Income taxes	
	 The major component of income tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are as follows:

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Statement of Profit and Loss
Current tax 7,953.00 5,849.00
Short / (excess) provision related to earlier years 1.61 39.40
Deferred tax expense 238.16 370.53
Income tax expense in the Statement of Profit and Loss 8,192.77 6,258.93
Statement to Other comprehensive income (OCI)
Tax expense related to items recognised in OCI during the year 8.66 (18.77)
Income tax credit recognised in OCI 8.66 (18.77)
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	 (a)	� Reconciliation of tax expense and the accounting profit multiplied by domestic tax rate for the year ended 31st March, 
2023 and 31st March, 2022.	

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Accounting profit before tax 32,201.34 23,751.94
Tax Rate 25.168% 25.168%
Current tax expenses on Profit before tax expenses at the enacted income tax rate in India 8,104.43 5,977.89
Adjustment
	 Tax impact in income charged under capital gain (22.35) (46.82)
	 (Excess) / Short tax provision related to earlier year 1.61 39.40
	 Expenditure not deductible under tax 142.15 204.70
	 Income not chargable to tax (49.31) -
	 Changes in temporary differences of earlier years 12.30 67.68
	 Others 3.94 16.08
Total Income tax expense 8,192.77 6,258.93
Effective tax rate 25.44 26.35

	 (b)	 Deferred tax:
		�  The Company has accrued amounts of deferred tax. Components of Deferred tax (assets) & liabilities recognized in the 

financial statements of the Company as follows:	

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Deferred tax liabilities
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 2,387.06 2,134.76
Fair Valuation of Investments 175.17 156.97
Leases - -
Total 2,562.23 2,291.73
Deferred tax assets
Employee benefit obligations 116.45 88.03
Allowances for doubtful debts & other receivables 79.09 76.76
Other disallowable expenses 21.51 16.31
Leases 1.28 13.55
Total 218.33 194.65
Deferred Tax liabilities (Net) 2,343.90 2,097.08
Total 2,343.90 2,097.08

		  Movement of deferred tax liabilities / (assets) during the year:

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Deferred tax liabilities / (assets) in relation to:
Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 252.30 336.19
Fair Valuation of Investments 18.20 151.54
Leases 12.27 (14.79)
Employee benefit obligations (28.42) (46.02)
Allowances for doubtful debts & other receivables (2.33) (65.69)
Other disallowable expenses (5.20) (9.47)
Deferred tax expense 246.82 351.76

		  (i)	� There are certain income-tax related legal proceedings which are pending against the Company. Potential liabilities, 
if any have been adequately provided for, and the Company does not currently estimate any probable material 
incremental tax liabilities in respect of these matters. Refer note 34 (b).	

		  (ii)	� The Company offsets tax assets and liabilities if and only if it has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets 
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the 
same tax authority.	

		  (iii)	� The Tax rate used for Financial Year 2022-23 and 2021-22 , in reconciliation above is the corporate tax rate of 25.168% 
payable by corporate entity in India on taxable profits under the Indian Tax Law.	

	 (c)	 Non-Current tax asset / (Current tax Liabilities)

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Provision for Income Tax (19,355.26) (18,907.40)
Advance payment of Tax 18,721.90 19,267.85
Net Non-Current tax asset / (Current tax Liabilities) (633.36) 360.45

21	 Trade Payables	

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Due to micro and small enterprise ('MSME') (Refer note : 42) 1,702.27 896.88
Due to others 7,677.73 7,413.68
Total 9,380.00 8,310.56

	 (a)	 Trade Payables Ageing Schedule:

Particulars Not Due Outstanding for following periods 
from due date of payment

Total

Less than  
1 Year

1 to 2  
years

2 to 3  
years

More than  
3 years

(i)	� MSME  1,488.55  213.17  0.33  -    0.22  1,702.27 
(ii)	� Others  5,550.31  1,889.40  141.83  37.83  58.36  7,677.73 
As at 31 March 2023  7,038.86  2,102.57  142.16  37.83  58.58  9,380.00 
(i)	� MSME  433.35  432.35  27.30  3.33  0.55  896.88 
(ii)	� Others  2,731.52  3,999.33  400.08  173.76  108.99  7,413.68 
As at 31 March 2022  3,164.87  4,431.68  427.38  177.09  109.54  8,310.56 

22	 Other financial liabilities

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings 25.97 36.32
Payables for employee benefits 1,009.21 884.56
Security Deposits 10.00 10.00
Derivative financial instruments 0.00 3.16
Payable on purchase of Property, Plant and Equipment 2,089.17 1,229.85
Total 3,134.35 2,163.89

23	 Other current liabilities

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Payable to Statutory and other authorities 221.17 218.84
Advance from customers 155.51 1,228.02
Deferred Income [Refer note 8 (a) (i)] 131.27 327.20
Total 507.95 1,774.06
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24	 Revenue From Operations

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Sale of products - (Refer Note Below) 83,045.34 70,398.60
Sale of Services 17.88 445.41

83,063.22 70,844.01
Other Operating Income
Export benefits 662.43 449.34
Product Linked Incentive Income [Refer note 14 (ii)] 1,591.17 -

2,253.60 449.34
Total 85,316.82 71,293.35

	 (a)	 Disaggregate revenues from contracts with customers based on geography for the year ended 31 March 2023.

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Domestic 43,213.41 33,919.67
Exports 42,103.41 37,373.68
Total 85,316.82 71,293.35

	 (b)	 Disaggregate revenues from contracts with customers based on products:

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

API 76,131.40 57,490.76
Formulations 9,185.42 13,802.59
Total 85,316.82 71,293.35

	 (c)	 Reconciliation of Revenue from operations with contract price:

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Contract Price 89,172.52 72,605.47
Less : Adjustment made to contract price on account of:
Sales Return (3,843.54) (1,303.77)
Others - rate difference (12.16) (8.35)
Total 85,316.82 71,293.35

25	 Other Income

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Interest income
From Bank 444.08 478.74
Net gain on sale of investments 299.36 509.38
Net gain on FV of investments in mutual fund 72.33 13.58
Net foreign exchange gain 1,022.15 635.89
Subsidy income 832.38 541.82
Insurance claim Received 65.10 30.35
Miscellaneous income 158.72 97.26
Receivables from Bank Guarantee 461.72 -
Excess provision no longer required written back 175.09 -
Reversal / (Provision) of doubtful debts, net - 34.63
Total 3,530.93 2,341.65

26	 Cost of materials consumed

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Opening Stock 8,080.81 6,463.41
Add: Purchases 16,669.21 17,343.14

24,750.02 23,806.55
Less: Closing stock 8,042.87 8,080.81
Total 16,707.15 15,725.74

27	 Changes in inventories of finished goods, work-in-progress and stock-in-trade:	

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Opening stock
Finished goods 1,027.07 1,034.38
Stock-in-trade 1,191.70 972.47
Work-in-progress 9,018.04 6,831.95

11,236.81 8,838.80
Less : Closing stock
Finished goods 548.49 1,027.07
Stock-in-trade 931.70 1,191.70
Work-in-progress 11,319.82 9,018.04

12,800.01 11,236.81
Net (increase) in stock (1,563.20) (2,398.01)

28	 Employee benefits expense:

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Salaries, wages and bonus 10,314.23 8,840.48
Contribution to provident and other funds 523.82 572.43
Staff welfare expenses 189.80 156.54
Total 11,027.85 9,569.45

29	 Finance costs

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Interest expense on borrowings 365.98 516.99
Interest on Income tax 66.86 -
Interest Expense on lease liabilities (Refer Note 7) 18.19 31.37
Total 451.03 548.36

30	 Depreciation and amortization

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Depreciation for the year on tangible assets(Refer Note 5) 4,954.45 4,555.76
Amortization for the year on intangible assets (Refer Note 6) 337.94 339.54
Amortization for the year on right of use assets (Refer Note 7) 110.85 109.78
Total 5,403.24 5,005.08
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31	 Other expenses

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Power & Fuel Consumed 9,765.37 7,164.47
Consumption of stores and spare parts 1,305.77 919.16
Laboratory Charges & Testing Expenses 2,158.59 1,856.61
Repairs & Maintenance 1,187.48 790.75
Rent Expense (Refer Note 7) 0.71 0.15
Rates & Taxes 589.09 500.74
Royalty Expenses 380.08 472.03
Insurance Expense 295.51 257.36
Bank Charges 67.42 65.06
Travelling and conveyance 897.04 754.01
Communication, IT and Stationery Expenses 243.33 219.33
Payment to Auditors (Refer Note-33) 25.46 28.14
Legal & Professional Fees 485.89 553.32
Directors Sitting Fee 16.70 4.80
Selling, Distribution and Advertisement Expenses 2,369.85 2,143.64
Loss due to Fire 3.05 -
Net loss on sale of Property, plant & equipment 9.40 3.37
Bad Debt written off - -
Export incentive receivables written off - 645.44
Provision for doubtful debts 9.24 -
Provision against other receivables - 226.95
Corporate Social Responsibilities Expense (Refer Note 35) 497.30 449.49
Donation - 0.03
Bank Guarantee Expense [Refer Note 14(iv)] 461.72 -
Miscellaneous Expenses 1,170.40 940.48
Total 21,939.40 17,995.33

32	 Earnings per share (EPS)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Basic and Diluted EPS
(A)	� Net profit after tax before other comprehensive income as per consolidated statement of 

profit and loss (` in lakhs) (A)
24,008.57 17,493.01

(B)	� Weighted average number of equity shares considered after split of shares into ` 1 each (Refer 
Note 16)

9,51,05,640 9,51,05,640

(C)	 Bonus shares issued subsequent to 31 March 2022 (Refer Note 16) 95,10,564 95,10,564
(D)	 Weighted average number of equity shares considered for calcuation of EPS (B + C) 10,46,16,204 10,46,16,204
(E)	 Basic and Diluted Earning Per Share (`) (A/D) 22.95 16.72
(F)	 Nominal Value of equity share 1.00 1.00

	� The impact of split of shares and issue of bonus shares are retrospectively considered for the computation of EPS as per the 
requirement of Ind AS 33.	

33	 Auditors Remuneration

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Audit Fees 18.11 14.00
Certification fees 5.50 9.64
Other fees - 4.50
Reimbursement of expense 1.85 -
Total 25.46 28.14

	� Company has paid fees ` 144.20 lakhs for issuing various reports and certificates in connection with the proposed initial 
public offering (IPO). This expenses are recoverable from the selling shareholders and are not included in the above information.

34	 (a)	 Commitments and Contingencies

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Estimated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account and not provided 
for in respect of the Property, Plant & Equipment (Net of Advances)

1,228.39 7,838.46

Total 1,228.39 7,838.46

	 (b)	 Contingent liabilities

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Claims against the company / disputed liabilities not acknowledged as debts:
Disputed demand of Excise duty for which an appeal has been preferred 376.37 376.37
-	� The Company has preferred Appeal to ITAT against order received from Assessing officer 

in respect of short payment of Excise duty, non reversal of input credit
Disputed demand of Income Tax in which company has preferred Appeal or filed 
rectification with Department :

1,054.56 955.45

-	� The Company has preferred Appeal to CIT(A) against order received from Assessing 
officer in respect of disallowance of additional depreciation in A.Y. 2013-14

-	� The Company has preferred Appeal to CIT(A) against order received from Assessing 
officer in respect of Penalty imposed u/s 271(1)(C ) in A.Y. 2015-16 & 2016-17

-	� The Company has preferred Appeal to CIT(A) against order received from Assessing 
officer in respect of disallowance of Purchase of Raw Material in A.Y. 2016-17

-	� The Company has preferred Appeal to CIT(A) against order received from Assessing 
officer in respect of disallowance of u/s 35(2)(AB) and Rule 8D r.w.s 14A in A.Y. 2018-19

-	� The Company has filed rectification with Assessing officer against intimation received 
from CPC regarding payment of Dividend Distribution Tax for A.Y. 2020-21. The 
Company has also filed Appeal to CIT(A) against order received from Assessing officer in 
respect of disallowance u/s Rule 8D r.w.s 14A in A.Y. 2020-21 and regarding not granting 
credit of payment of Dividend Distribution Tax.

Total 1,430.93 1,331.82

		  (i)	� It is not practicable for the Company to estimate the timing of cash outflows, if any, in respect of the above pending 
litigations of the respective proceedings.	

		  (ii)	 The Company does not expect any reimbursements in respect of the above contingent liabilities.	

		  (iii)	� The Company believes that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings will not have a material adverse effect on the 
Company's financial position and results of operations. These demands are with respect to income tax and service tax 
matters for which appeals have been filed.	

35	 Corporate Social responsibilities	
	 Amount spent towards CSR activities during the year are as follows:

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

(i)	 Amount required to be spent by the company during the year 495.46 448.03
(ii)	 Amount of expenditure incurred 497.30 449.49
(iii)	 Excess / (Shortfall) at the end of the year 1.84 1.46
(iv)	 Total of previous years shortfall - -
(v)	 Reason for shortfall NA NA
(vi)	 Nature of CSR activities Medical, 

Educational, 
Environmental 

sustainability, 
Promoting sports, 

Social, Rural 
Development

Medical, 
Educational, 

Environmental 
sustainability, 

Promoting sports, 
Social, Rural 

Development
(vii)	� details of related party transactions, e.g., contribution to a trust controlled by the company in 

relation to CSR expenditure as per relevant Accounting Standard
NA NA

(viii)	� where a provision is made with respect to a liability incurred by entering into a contractual 
obligation, the movements in the provision during the year shall be shown separately.

NA NA
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36	 Employee benefits plans:	
	 (a)	 Defined contribution plans:	
		�  The Company makes contributions towards provident fund, a defined contribution retirement benefit plan for qualifying 

employees. The provident fund is operated by the Regional Provident Fund Commissioner. The Company recognized 
` 425.67 Lakhs (Previous Year ` 385.90 Lakhs) for provident fund contributions in the Statement of Profit and Loss. The 
contributions payable to these plans by the company are at rates specified in the rules of the scheme.	

	 (b)	 Defined benefit plans:	
		�  The Company makes annual contributions to the Employee's Group Gratuity cash accumulation scheme of the LIC, 

a funded defined benefit plan for qualifying employees. The Scheme provides for payment to vested employees at 
retirement/death while in employment or on termination of employment as per the provisions of the Gratuity Act, 1972. 
Vesting occurs on completion of 5 years of service. The present value of the defined benefit obligation and the related 
current service cost are measured using the Projected Unit Credit Method as per actuarial valuation carried out at the 
balance sheet date.	

	 Characteristics of Defined Benefit Plans and risk associated with them:	
	� Valuation of defined benefit plan are performed on certain basic set of pre-determined assumptions and other regulatory 

framework, which may vary over time. Thus, Company is exposed to various risks in providing the above benefit plans which are 
as follows:	

	 (i)	 Interest rate risk:
		�  The plan exposes the Company to the risk of fall in interest rates. A fall in interest rates will result in an increase in the 

ultimate cost of providing the above benefit and will thus result in an increase in the value of the liability (i.e. value of 
defined benefit obligation).	

	 (ii)	 Salary escalation risk:
		�  The present value of the defined benefit plan is calculated with the assumption of salary increase rate of plan particulars 

in future. Deviation in the rate of increase of salary in future for plan participants from the rate of increase in salary used to 
determine the present value of obligation will have a bearing on the plan's liability.	

	 (iii)	 Demographic risk:
		�  The Company has used certain mortality and attrition assumptions in valuation of the liability. The Company is exposed to 

the risk of actual experience turning out to be worse compared to the assumptions.	

	� The following table sets out the status of the gratuity plan as required under Ind AS-19 and the amounts recognized in the 
Company's financial statements as at 31 March 2023:	

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

i.	 Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of defined benefit obligation:
	 Liability at the beginning of the Year 689.81 493.90
	 Current Service Cost 122.51 107.44
	 Interest Cost 47.60 34.33
	 Benefits paid (59.84) (16.71)
	 Net Actuarial losses / (gain) Recognized (39.93) 70.85
	 Liability at the end of the Year 760.15 689.81
ii.	 Reconciliation of Opening and Closing Balances of the Fair value of Plan assets:
	 Plan assets at the beginning of the Year, at Fair value 596.36 471.77
	 Expected return on plan assets 41.13 32.79
	 Contributions 130.35 112.23
	 Benefit paid (59.84) (16.71)
	 Actuarial gain/(loss) on plan assets (5.52) (3.72)
	 Plan assets at the end of the Year, at Fair Value 702.48 596.36
iii.	 Present value of defined benefit obligation and Fair value of plan assets:
	 Obligations at the end of the Year 760.15 689.81
	 Plan assets at the end of the Year, at Fair value 702.48 596.36
	 Liability recognized in balance sheet at the end of the Year 57.67 93.45

36	 Employee benefits plans: (Continued…)

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

iv.	 Expense recognised in the statement of profit and loss for the year
	 Current Service Cost 122.51 107.44
	 Interest Cost 47.60 34.33
	 Expected returns on plan assets (41.13) (32.79)
	 Total 128.98 108.98
v.	 Expense recognised in the other comprehensive income for the year
	 Actuarial (gain)/loss on obligation for the period (39.93) 70.85
	 Return on planned asset, excluding Interest Income 5.52 3.72
	 Total (34.41) 74.57
vi.	 Actuarial Assumptions
	 Discount Rate (per annum) 7.35% 6.90%
	 Expected rate of return on plan assets 7.35% 6.90%
	 Salary Escalation 9.00% 9.00%
	 Attrition Rate 12.00% 10.00%
	 Weighted average duration of defined benefit obligation 6 Years 7 Years
	 Retirement Age 58 Years 58 Years
	 Mortality Rate Indian Assured 

Lives Mortality 
(2012-14) Urban

Indian Assured 
Lives Mortality 

(2012-14) Urban

	� * The discount rate is based on the prevailing market yields of government of India securities as at the balance sheet date for the 
estimated term of the obligations.

	 **Expected rate of return on plan assets is determined based on the nature of assets and prevailing economic scenario.

	� *** The estimate of future salary increases considered, takes into account inflation, seniority, promotion, increments and other 
relevant factors.	

	 vii.	 Sensitivity Analysis for each significant actuarial assumption:
		�  The significant actuarial assumptions for the determination of the defined benefit obligations are discount rate and 

expected salary increase. The sensitivity analysis below have been determined based on reasonably possible changes of 
the respective assumptions occurring at the end of the reporting period, while holding all other assumptions constant.

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Projected Benefit Obligation on Current Assumptions 760.14 689.79
Impact of increase in discount rate by 1 % (37.56) (39.29)
Impact of decrease in discount rate by 1 % 41.76 44.24
Impact of increase in salary escalation rate by 1 % 38.24 40.30
Impact of decrease in salary escalation rate by 1 % (35.18) (36.81)
Impact of increase in employee turnover rate by 1 % (5.25) 6.54
Impact of decrease in employee turnover rate by 1 % 5.57 7.01

		�  The sensitivity analysis presented above may not be representative of the actual change in the defined benefit obligations 
as it is unlikely that the change in assumptions would occur in isolation of one another as some of the assumptions may be 
correlated.	

		�  Furthermore, in presenting the above sensitivity analysis, the present value of the defined benefit obligations has been 
calculated using the projected unit credit method at the end of the reporting period, which is the same as that applied in 
calculating the defined benefit obligation liability recognised in the balance sheet.	

	 viii.	 Investment details of plan assets:
		�  The plan assets are managed by Insurance Company viz Life Insurance Corporation of India who has invested the funds 

substantially as under:	

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

Insurance Fund - investment in LIC policy 702.48 596.36
Total 702.48 596.36
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36	 Employee benefits plans: (Continued…)	
	 ix.	 Maturity Profile

Particulars Year ended 
31 March 2023

Year ended 
31 March 2022

1st Following Year 99.24 87.26
2nd Following Year 79.27 58.79
3rd Following Year 104.79 72.50
4th Following Year 85.57 82.86
5th Following Year 80.07 65.22
Sum of Years 6 to 10 351.87 305.99
Sum of Years 11 and above 422.00 485.49

	 x.	 Expected contribution during the next annual reporting period	
		  The Company's best expected contribution during the next year is ` 177.55 Lakhs.	

	 (c)	 Compensated absences:	
		�  Actuarial Valuation for Compensated Absences is done as at the year end and the provision is made based on leave 

balances derived as per Company's Rules with corresponding charge to the Statement of Profit and Loss amounting to 
` 144.71 lakhs ( Previous Year ` 48.98 Lakhs) and it covers all regular employees. Major drivers in actuarial assumptions, 
typically, are years of service and employee compensation.	

37	� The Company has taken various derivatives to hedge its risk associated with foreign exchange fluctuations. These transactions 
have been undertaken to act as economic hedges for the Company’s exposures to various risks in foreign exchange markets. 
Forward exchange contracts (being derivative instruments), which are not intended for trading or speculative purposes but for 
hedge purposes are entered, which are available at the settlement date of certain payables and receivables.

Particular As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Amount (in Lakhs) Amount (` in Lakhs) Amount (in Lakhs) Amount (` in Lakhs)

Hedging of Trade Receivables 
Forward Contracts USD 50.55 4,153.69 USD 80.40 6,093.72

	 The details of foreign currency exposures not hedged by derivative instruments are as under:

Particular As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Amount (in Lakhs) Amount (` in Lakhs) Amount (in Lakhs) Amount (` in Lakhs)

Trade Receivables USD 66.40 5,460.20 USD 47.12 3,572.50
EURO 6.19 553.93 EURO 6.35 535.52

JPY 2002.00 1,233.23 JPY 2310.00 1,435.72
Other Current Assets USD 5.62 461.72 - -
Trade Payables USD 41.82 3,436.26 USD 23.40 1,773.54
Other Current Financial Liability USD 4.50 369.70 - -

38	 Financial Instruments: Fair Value and Risk Management	
	 (i)	 Categories of Financial instruments: Financial assets and liabilities

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Financial Assets :
Amortised cost
Trade receivables 27,375.76 23,217.42
Cash and cash equivalents 349.92 66.69
Term deposits other than cash and cash equivalent 3,994.77 8,826.48
Others 4,654.40 2,397.95
Fair value through profit or loss
Non-current Investment - Investments in Mutual Funds 12.46 25.56
Current Investment - Investments in Mutual Funds 13,693.01 7,347.33
Derivative instruments 25.00 49.83
Total 50,105.32 41,931.26

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Financial Liabilities :
Amortised cost
Borrowings (including current maturities) 3,123.56 6,058.58
Lease Liability 31.07 190.68
Trade payables 9,380.00 8,310.56
Other Financial Liabilities 3,134.35 2,160.74
Fair value through profit or loss
Derivative instruments 0.00 3.16
Total 15,668.98 16,723.72

	 (ii)	 Fair value hierarchy :	
		�  The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are determined based on the price that would be received to sell an 

asset or paid to transfer a liability at the reporting date considering the fair value hierarchy as under:	

		�  Level 1: It includes financial instruments measured using quoted prices. This includes listed equity instruments that have 
quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in the stock exchanges is valued using the closing 
price as at the reporting period.	

		�  Level 2: The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market (for example, traded bonds, over-the 
counter derivatives) is determined using valuation techniques which maximize the use of observable market data and rely 
as little as possible on entity-specific estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are observable, 
the instrument is included in level 2.	

		�  Level 3: If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in level 
3. This is the case for unlisted equity securities, contingent consideration and indemnification asset included in level 3.

		  Fair value hierarchy	
		�  The following tables categorise the financial assets and liabilities held at fair value by the valuation methodology applied in 

determining their fair value.

As at 31 March 2023 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets :
Investment in Mutual Funds 13,705.46 - - 13,705.46
Derivative financial assets - 25.00 - 25.00
Financial liability:
Derivative financial liability - 0.00 - 0.00
As at 31 March 2022 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Financial Assets :
Investment in Mutual Funds 7,372.89 - - 7,372.89
Derivative financial assets - 49.83 - 49.83
Financial liability:
Derivative financial liability - 3.16 - 3.16

		  Determination of fair values:	
		�  Basis of assumptions used to estimated the fair value of financial assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value on 

recurring basis :	

		�  Investment in Mutual Funds: The fair values represent net asset value as stated by the issuers of these mutual fund units 
in the published statements. Net asset values represent the price at which the issuer will issue further units in the mutual 
fund and the price at which issuers will redeem such units from the investors.	

		�  Derivative instruments: For forward contracts, future cash flows are estimated based on forward exchange rates and 
forward interest rates (from observable forward exchange rates / yield curves at the end of the reporting period) and 
contract forward exchange rates and forward interest rates, discounted at a rate that reflects the credit risk of various 
counterparties.	

	 (iii)	 Financial Risk Management	
		�  The Company’s activities are exposed to variety of financial risks. These risks include market risk (including foreign 

exchange risk and interest rate risks), credit risks and liquidity risk. The Company’s overall risk management program seeks 
to minimize potential adverse effects on the financial performance of the Company through established policies and 
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processes which are laid down to ascertain the extent of risks, setting appropriate limits, controls, continuous monitoring 
and its compliance.	

		  A	 Market Risk :	
			�   Market risk refers to the possibility that changes in the market rates may have impact on the Company’s profits or the 

value of its holding of financial instruments. The Company is exposed to market risks on account of foreign exchange 
rates, interest rates and underlying equity prices.	

		  A1	 Foreign currency exchange rate risk :	
			�   The Company’s foreign currency risk arises from its foreign currency transactions and foreign currency borrowings. 

The fluctuation in foreign currency exchange rates may have potential impact on the income statement and equity, 
where any transaction references more than one currency or where assets/liabilities are denominated in a currency 
other than the functional currency of the company.

			�   The overall objective of the foreign currency risk management is to minimize the short term currency impact on its 
revenue and cash-flow in order to improve the predictability of the financial performance.	

			�   The major foreign currency exposures for the Company are denominated in USD. Additionally, there are transactions 
which are entered into in other currencies and are not significant in relation to the total volume of the foreign 
currency exposures. The Company hedges some trade receivables and future cash flows upto a maximum of 6 
months forward based on historical trends, budgets and monthly sales estimates.	

			   The following table sets forth information relating to foreign currency exposure:	 (` in Lakhs)
As at 31 March 2023 US Dollars Others* Total
Assets :
Trade and other receivables 10,075.61 1,787.16 11,862.77
Total 10,075.61 1,787.16 11,862.77
Liabilities :
Trade and other payables 3,805.96 - 3,805.96
Total 3,805.96 - 3,805.96
Net Balance (Assets - Liabilities) 6,269.65 1,787.16 8,056.81

(` in Lakhs)
As at 31 March 2023 US Dollars Others* Total
Assets :
Trade and other receivables  9,666.22  1,971.24  11,637.46 
Total  9,666.22  1,971.24  11,637.46 
Liabilities :
Trade and other payables  1,773.54  -    1,773.54 
Total  1,773.54  -    1,773.54 
Net Balance (Assets - Liabilities)  7,892.68  1,971.24  9,863.92 

			   *Others mainly includes currencies namely Euro and Japanese Yen.	

			   Foreign currency sensitivity 
			�   The following tables demonstrate the sensitivity to a reasonably possible change in USD rates to the functional 

currency of entity, with all other variables held constant. The Company’s exposure to foreign currency changes for 
all other currencies is not material. The impact on the Company’s profit after tax is due to changes in the fair value of 
monetary assets and liabilities.

Particulars Changes in 
USD rate

Effect on 
profit and loss

As at 31 March 2023 +2% 93.83
-2% (93.83)

As at 31 March 2022 +2% 118.12
-2% (118.12)

		  A2	 Interest rate risk :
			�   Interest rate risk refers to the possibility that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate 

because of changes in market interest rate. The Company is exposed to fluctuations in interest rates in respect of 
term loan carrying a floating rate of interest. In respect of term loan, the Company has outstanding borrowing of 
` 3123.56 lakhs as at 31 March, 2023 (As at 31 March 2022: ` 5624.86 lakhs) . The following table demostrates the 
sensitivity to a reasonable possible change on interest rates on that postion of borrowing afffected. with all other 

variables held constant, the Company's profit before tax is affected through the impact on floating rate of borrowing 
as follows:	

Particulars Effect on Profit before tax
Year ended 

31 March 2023
Year ended 

31 March 2022
Increase by 50 basis points (15.62) (28.12)
Decrease by 50 basis points 15.62 28.12

		  B	 Credit Risk :	
			�   Credit risk is the risk that the counterparty will not meet its obligation under a financial instrument or customer 

contract, leading to financial loss. The credit risk arises principally from its operating activities (primarily trade 
receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks and financial institutions and other 
financial instruments.	

			�   The Company establishes an allowance for impairment that represents its estimate of expected losses in respect of 
trade receivables. The maximum exposure to credit risk as at reporting date is from trade receivables amounting to ` 
87.30 Lakhs (March 31, 2022: 78.06 Lakhs). The movement in allowance for impairment in respect of trade receivables 
during the year was as follows:

Allowance for Impairment As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Opening Balance 78.06 112.69
Add: Impairment Loss (reversed) / recognised (Net) 9.24 (34.63)
Less: Impairment Loss Recognised - -
Closing Balance 87.30 78.06

			�   Receivable from the customer of the Company more than 10 percent of the Company’s total trade receivables 
as at 31 March 2023 is Nil (March 31, 2022 one customer – ` 2,585.60 Lakhs). Refer note 12 for ageing of trade 
receivables.	

		  C	 Liquidity Risk :	
			�   Liquidity risk refers to the risk that the Company will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with 

its financial liabilities that are settled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The objective of liquidity risk 
management is to maintain sufficient liquidity and ensure that funds are available for use as per requirements. The 
Company generates cash flows from operations to meet its financial obligations, maintains adequate liquid assets 
in the form of cash & cash equivalents and has undrawn short term line of credits from banks to ensure necessary 
liquidity.	

			   Contractual maturities of significant financial liabilities are as below:	

As at 31 March 2023 Due in Year 0 to 1 Due in Year 1 to 2 Due in Year 2 to 5 Due after Year 5 Total
Borrowings 2,500.00 623.56 - - 3,123.56
Lease Liabilities 14.69 7.84 8.54 - 31.07
Trade payables 9,380.00 - - - 9,380.00
Other financial 
Liabilities

3,134.35 - - - 3,134.35

Total 15,029.04 631.40 8.54 - 15,668.98

As at 31 March 2022 Due in Year 0 to 1 Due in Year 1 to 2 Due in Year 2 to 5 Due after Year 5 Total
Borrowings  2,933.72  2,500.00  624.86  -    6,058.58 
Lease Liabilities  159.61  14.69  16.38  -    190.68 
Trade payables  8,310.56  -    -    -    8,310.56 
Other financial 
Liabilities

 2,163.89  -    -    -    2,163.89 

Total  13,567.78  2,514.69  641.24  -    16,723.71 

	 (iv)	 Capital Management	
		�  The capital structure of the Company consists of equity and debt. The Company’s objective for capital management is to 

maintain the capital structure which will support the Company’s strategy to maximize shareholder’s value, safeguarding 
the business continuity and help in supporting the growth of the Company.	
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		�  The Company monitors capital using gearing ratio, which is net debt (total debt less cash and bank balance) divided by 
total capital plus net debt.	

		  Gearing Ratio	

Particulars As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Total borrowings (refer note 18) 3,123.56 6,058.58
Less: Cash & Bank Balances (refer note 13) 349.92 66.69
Net Debt (A) 2,773.64 5,991.89
Total Equity (B) 1,29,000.25 1,10,322.28
Total Equity & Net Debt (C = A+B) 1,31,773.89 1,16,314.17
Gearing Ratio (D=A/C) 2.10% 5.15%

39	 Related party transactions	
	 (a)	 List of related parties and relationship	
		  Key Management Personnel (KMP):	
		  Mr. Sudhir Vaid, Chairman & Managing Director	 Mr. Amitabh Thakore, Independent Director

		  Mr. Ankur Vaid, Joint Managing Director & CEO	 Mrs. Bharti Khanna, Independent Director	

		  Mr. Utpal Sheth, Non-executive Director	 Mr. Anil Katyal, Independent Director	

		  Mr. Amit Varma, Non-executive Director	 Mr. Rajeev Agrawal, Independent Director (Upto 30 May 2022 )

		  Mr. Rajiv Ambrish Agarwal, Non-executive Director	 Mr. Arvind Agarwal, Independent Director (W.e.f 24 May 2022)

		  Mr. Ravi Kapoor, Non-executive Director	 Mr. Jayaram Easwaran, Independent Director (W.e.f. 14 June 2022)

		  Mr. Lalit Sethi, Chief Financial Officer	 Mr. Mandayam Chakravarthy Sriraman, Independent Director	
		  (W.e.f. 14 March 2022)			   (W.e.f. 14 June 2022)	

		  Mr. Prakash Sajnani, 											         
		  AVP - Finance & Company Secretary	

		  Relative of Key Management Personnel:	
		  Mrs. Manju Vaid					    Mrs. Megha Vaid	

		  Col. S. K. Vaid					     Mrs. Sonal Kumra	

		  Enterprises controlled by / under significantly influenced by Directors and/or their relatives:	
		  Sudman Consultants LLP			   Ravi Kapoor & Associates	

		  Joint Venture:	
		  Concord Biotech Japan K.K.	
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40	 Segment reporting	
	� The chief operational decision maker monitors the operating results of its Business segment separately for the purpose of 

making decision about resource allocation and performance assessment. Segment performance is evaluated based on profit or 
loss and is measured consistently with profit or loss in the financial statements. Operating segment have been identified on the 
basis of nature of products and other quantitative criteria specified in the Ind AS 108.	

	� Bulk Drug business is identified as single operating segment for the purpose of making decision on allocation of resources and 
assessing its performance.	

	 Geographical segment	
	� Geographical segment is considered based on sales within India and outside India. In outside India, company separately 

disclosed sales to America and Others.

Particulars Year Ended 
31 March 2023

Year Ended 
31 March 2022

i)	 Segment Revenue
	 Revenue from Operations
	 (a)	 Within India 43,213.41 33,919.67
	 (b)	 Outside India
		  (i)	 America 14,725.14 13,145.04
		  (ii)	 Others 27,378.27 24,228.63
	 Total Revenue from Operations 85,316.82 71,293.34
ii)	 Non Current operating assets [*]:
	 (a)	 Within India 77,329.68 67,737.50
	 (b)	 Outside India - -
		  (i)	 America - -
		  (ii)	 Others - -
	 (c)	 Unallocable - -
	 Total Non Current operating assets 77,329.68 67,737.50

	 [*] Other than Financial Assets	

	 Information about major customers:	
	� Revenue from major export and domestic customers is Nil (Previous year Nil Lakhs). Revenue from other individual customer is 

less than 10% of total revenue.	

41	 Research & Development	
	� The Company’s facility is approved for Research & Development by Department of Science & Industrial Research (DSIR). The 

company has incurred expenditure of revenue nature on Research & Development, details of which are as under:

Particulars Year Ended 
31 March 2023

Year Ended 
31 March 2022

Cost of Materials Consumed  610.04  381.19 
Salaries & Wages        1,046.42  955.51 
Power & Fuel  66.18  76.61 
Depreciation  182.98  183.59 
Others  1,053.28  987.75 
Total  2,958.90  2,584.65 
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42	 Disclosure in respect of Micro and Small Enterprises:

Particulars Year Ended 
31 March 2023

Year Ended 
31 March 2022

(i)	� Principal amount and the interest due thereon remaining unpaid to each supplier at the end 
of each accounting year (but within due date as per the MSMED Act)

	 Principal amount due to micro and small enterprise 1,594.47 832.12
	 Interest due on above 43.04 34.25
(ii)	� Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and Medium 

Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along-with the amount of the payment made to the 
supplier beyond the appointed day during the period.

- -

(iii)	� Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which have been paid 
but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without adding interest specified under 
the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act, 2006.

- -

(iv)	 The amount of interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of each accounting year. 107.80 64.76
(v)	� Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such date when the 

interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises.
- -

	� Dues to Micro and Small Enterprises have been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of 
information collected by the Management. This has been relied upon by the auditors.	

43	 Disclosure requirement as per Schedule III	
	 (i)	 The Company does not have any Benami property, where any proceeding has been initiated or pending against the 

Company for holding any Benami property.	

	 (ii)	 The Company does not have any charges or satisfaction which is yet to be registered with ROC beyond the statutory 
period.	

	 (iii)	 The Company has not traded or invested in Crypto currency or Virtual Currency during the financial year.	

	 (iv)	 The Company has not advanced or loaned or invested funds to any other person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities 
(Intermediaries) with the understanding that the Intermediary shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons 
or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (Ultimate Beneficiaries) or (b) provide any 
guarantee, security or the like to or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.	

	 (v)	 The Company has not received any fund from any person(s) or entity(is), including foreign entities (Funding Party) with the 
understanding (whether recorded in writing or otherwise) that the Company shall: (a) directly or indirectly lend or invest in 
other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party (Ultimate Beneficiaries) 
or (b) provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

	 (vi)	 The Company does not have any transaction which is not recorded in the books of accounts that has been surrendered or 
disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 (such as, search or survey or 
any other relevant provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

	 (vii)	 The Company is not declared as wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution (as defined under the Companies Act, 
2013) or consortium thereof or other lender in accordance with the guidelines on wilful defaulters issued by the Reserve 
Bank of India.

	 (viii)	 The Company has not revalued any of its Property, Plant and Equipment (including Right-of-Use Assets) during the year.

	 (ix)	 The Company doesn’t have any co-owned properties or the properties (including properties for which the lease agreement 
executed and disclosed as 'Right-of-Use Assets' in restated consolidated financial information) title deed of which are held 
by the others.

	 (x)	 The Company has not granted any Loans or Advances in the nature of loans to promoters, Directors, KMPs and the related 
parties (as defined under Companies Act, 2013), either severally or jointly with any other person.

	 (xi)	 The Company has used the borrowings from the banks for its intended purpose during the financial year.

	 (xii)	 The Company did not have any transaction with companies struck off under Section 248 of the Companies Act, 2013 or 
Section 560 of Companies Act, 1956 during the current and previous financial year.	

	 (xiii)	 Ratio Analysis	

Name Numerator Denominator Year Ended 31 
March 2023

Year Ended 31 
March 2022

% 
Variance

Reason

(a)	� Current Ratio
	 (in times)

Total current assets Total current 
liabilities

3.79 4.08 -6.97% NA

(b)	 Debt-Equity Ratio
	 (in times)

Debt consists of 
borrowings

Total equity 0.02 0.05 -55.91% Debt reduced as 
term loan quarterly 
instalments are 
paid and increase 
in other equity

(c)	� Debt Service 
Coverage Ratio 
(DSCR) (in times)

Earning for Debt 
Service = Net 
Profit after taxes 
+ Depreciation 
and Amortisation 
expenses + Interest

Debt service 
= Interest and 
lease payments 
+ Principal 
repayments

10.32 7.14 44.41% DSCR Increased 
due to Increase in 
profitability due to 
increase in revenue 
from Operation 
which includes 
Incentives

(d)	� Return on Equity 
Ratio/ Return on 
Networth Ratio (in %)

Profit for the year Average total 
equity

20.06% 16.64% 20.58% NA

(e)	� Inventory turnover 
ratio (in times)

Cost of goods sold Average inventory 0.88 0.94 -5.96% -

(f )	� Trade Receivables 
turnover ratio

	 (in times)

Revenue from 
operations

Average trade 
receivables

3.28 3.46 -5.06% -

(g)	� Trade payables 
turnover ratio

	 (in times)

Purchases of 
materials and & 
purchase of stock-
in-trade

Average trade 
payables

2.21 3.15 -29.92% Purchases reduced 
compared to the 
previous year 
financial year

(h)	� Net capital turnover 
ratio (in times) 
less Total current 
liabilities)

Revenue from 
operations

Average working 
capital (i.e. Total 
current assets

1.59 1.49 6.64% NA

(i)	� Net profit ratio (in %) Profit for the year Revenue from 
operations

28.14% 24.54% 14.69% NA

(j)	� Return on Capital 
employed (in %)

Profit before tax 
and finance costs 
(excl. Interest 
expense on lease 
liabilities)

Capital employed = 
Tangible Net worth 
+ Total Borrowings 
+ Deferred tax 
liabilities

24.27% 20.55% 18.12% NA

(k)	� Return on investment 
(in %)

Income generated 
from invested 
funds

Average invested 
funds in treasury 
investments

4.41% 6.16% -28.40% Negative impact 
is pertaining 
to Capital 
Expenditure at 
New Facility

44	 Other Notes:	
	� The Indian Parliament has approved the Code on Social Security, 2020 which would impact the contributions by the company 

towards Provident Fund and Gratuity. The Ministry of Labour and Employment had released draft rules for the Code on Social 
Security, 2020 on November 13, 2020, and invited suggestions from stakeholders which are under consideration by the Ministry. 
The Company will assess the impact and its evaluation once the subject rules are notified. The Company will give appropriate 
impact in its financial statements in the period in which, the Code becomes effective and the related rules to determine the 
financial impact are published.

45	 Interest in Joint Venture

Sr No. Name of Entity Country of 
Incorporation

Remarks Activities As at 
31 March 2023

As at 
31 March 2022

Joint Venture
1 Concord Biotech Japan K.K. Japan Pharmaceutical 50% 50%

	 *There is no contingent liability in the books of Concord Biotech Japan K.K.	
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46	 Additional information pursuant to Schedule III of Companies Act, 2013

Name of Entity For the financial year ending on / as at 31 March 2023
Net Assets i.e. Total Assets 

minus Total Liabilities
Share in 

Profit or (loss)
Share in other 

Comprehensive Income
Share in Total 

Comprehensive Income
As a % of 

consolidated 
net assets

Amount As a % of 
consolidated 
profit / (loss)

Amount As a % of 
consolidated 

OCI

Amount As a % of 
consolidated Total 

Comprehensive 
Income / (loss)

Amount

Concord Biotech 
Ltd

100.00% 1,29,000.25 99.18% 23,812.64 100.00% 25.75 99.18% 23,838.39

Joint Venture
Concord Biotech 
Japan K.K

0.00% - 0.82% 195.93 0.00% - 0.82% 195.93

Grand Total 100.00% 1,29,000.25 100.00% 24,008.57 100.00% 25.75 100.00% 24,034.32

Name of Entity For the financial year ending on / as at 31 March 2022
Net Assets i.e. Total Assets 

minus Total Liabilities
Share in 

Profit or (loss)
Share in other 

Comprehensive Income
Share in Total 

Comprehensive Income
As a % of 

consolidated 
net assets

Amount As a % of 
consolidated 
profit / (loss)

Amount As a % of 
consolidated 

OCI

Amount As a % of 
consolidated Total 

Comprehensive 
Income / (loss)

Amount

Concord Biotech 
Ltd

100.00%  1,10,322.28 102.08%  17,856.78 100.00%  (55.80) 102.09%  17,800.98 

Joint Venture
Concord Biotech 
Japan K.K

0.00%  -   (2.08%)  -363.77 0.00%  -   (2.09%)  (363.77)

Grand Total 100.00% 1,10,322.28 100.00%  17,493.01 100.00%  (55.80) 100.00%  17,437.21 

47	 Events after the reporting period:	
	� The Board of Directors in their meeting held on 1 July 2023, proposed a final equity dividend of ` 6.83 per equity share of ` 1 

each fully paid up for the financial year 2022-23.	

48	� Previous period figures have been re-grouped/ re-classified wherever necessary, to confirm to current period’s classification in 
order to comply with the requirements of the amended Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013 effective from April 1, 2021.

	 For and on behalf of board of directors of
	 Concord Biotech Limited			 
	 CIN:U24230GJ1984PLC007440			 

	 Sudhir Vaid	 Ankur Vaid 	
	 Chairman & Managing Director	 Joint Managing Director & CEO
	 DIN: 00055967	 DIN: 01857225 		

	 Lalit Sethi	 Prakash Sajnani 	
	 Chief Financial Officer	 Asst. Vice President -  
		  Finance & Company Secretary
	 Place:  Ahmedabad			 
	 Date: 1st July, 2023
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